
City Council Agenda 
January 15, 2019 at 6:30 PM 

1001 11th Avenue, City Center South, Greeley, CO 80631 

  

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Recognitions and Proclamations 

5. Citizen Input 

6. Approval of the Agenda 

7. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

8. Petitions from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda is a meeting management tool to allow 

the City Council to handle several routine items with one action. 

Council or staff may request an item be “pulled” off the Consent 

Agenda and considered separately under the next agenda item 

in the order they were listed. 

9. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of December 

18, 2018 

10. Consideration of a Resolution of the City of Greeley 

authorizing the City to enter into an Intergovernmental 

Agreement with Greeley Irrigation Company for 

Stormwater Improvements in 7th Avenue between 13th 

Street and 16th Street 

11. Consideration of a Resolution approving an 

Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of 

Greeley and the Greeley Downtown Development 

Authority for economic development services 

12. Consideration of a Resolution approving an 

Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of 

Greeley and The State of Colorado acting for and on 

behalf of the Board of Trustees of the University of 

Northern Colorado for the use and benefit of the Small 

Business Development Center and the BizHub  

 
 

Mayor 

John Gates 

Councilmembers 

Jonathan Smail 

Ward I 

Brett Payton 

Ward II 

Michael Fitzsimmons 

Ward III 

Dale Hall 

Ward IV 

Stacy Suniga 

At-Large 

Robb Casseday 

At-Large 

 

A City Achieving 

Community Excellence 
Greeley promotes a 

healthy, diverse economy 

and high quality of life 

responsive to all its 

residents and 

neighborhoods, 

thoughtfully managing its 

human and natural 

resources in a manner 

that creates and sustains 

a safe, unique, vibrant 

and rewarding 

community in which to 

live, work, and play. 

 

1



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Collaborative for economic development services 

13. Consideration of a Resolution of the City of Greeley Council Authorizing Dissolution of the 

Greeley Building Authority effective December 31, 2018 

14. Consideration of a Resolution Of The Greeley City Council Declaring Its Official Intent To 

Reimburse Itself With The Proceeds Of One Or More Tax-Exempt Financings For Certain 

Capital Construction And Equipment Expenditures 

15. Consideration of a resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding between the City of Greeley and the Board of County Commissioners of 

Weld County regarding wireless radio services 

16. Consideration to approve a change order in the amount of $150,000 to the contract with 

All Pro Paving for concrete infrastructure repair within several City of Greeley Parks and 

Keep Greeley Moving Neighborhoods, and bringing the revised contract amount from 

$1,184,935.16 to $1,334,935.16 

17. Introduction and first reading of an ordinance appropriating additional sums to defray the 

expenses and liabilities of the City of Greeley for the balance of the fiscal year of 2019 

and for funds held in reserve for encumbrances at December 31, 2018 

End of Consent Agenda 

18. Pulled Consent Agenda Items 

19. Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance amending Chapter 9.44 of the Greeley 

Municipal Code to expand the Ban On Smoking in Public Places and Common Areas 

20. Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance authorizing the acquisition of interests in 

real property located in the City of Greeley for road improvements by purchase or 

exercise of power of eminent domain pursuant to Section 7 of Article XVI, Section 15 of 

article II, and Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and Colorado 

Revised Statute § 38-1-101, et seq. (47th Avenue Turn Lane and Centerplace Drive Turn 

Lane Projects) 

21. Appointment of applicants to the Commission on Disabilities. 

22. Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

23. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required 

resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this 

meeting and at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 

all such resolutions, agreements and ordinances 

24. Adjournment 

  

2



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 1 

 

Title 

Call to Order 

                                 

3



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 2 

 

Title 

Pledge of Allegiance 

                                 

4



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 3 

 

Title 

Roll Call 

Summary 

Mayor Gates 

Councilmember Smail 

Councilmember Payton 

Councilmember Casseday 

Councilmember Fitzsimmons 

Councilmember Suniga 

Councilmember Hall 
                                 

5



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 4 

 

Title 

Recognitions and Proclamations 

Summary 

Councilmember Fitzsimmons will present the What’s Great about Greeley Report. 

 

Mayor Gates will present two proclamations; one that recognizes January as School 

Board Recognition Month for the hard work and dedication of local school board 

members and one that recognizes February as Black History Month to observe 

programs and activities that celebrate the contributions of African Americans to life in 

the United States. 

 

Attachments 

January 15, 2019 What’s Great about Greeley Report 

School Board Appreciation Month Proclamation 

Black History Month Proclamation 
                                 

6



Slide 1 

Greeley City Council
January 15, 2019
Councilmember Michael Fitzsimmons

GreeleyGov.com

 

 

Slide 2 
“If you belittle what you 

have…it becomes less.

If you appreciate what

you have …

it becomes more.”
~Gelene McDonald

 

At each Council Meeting, we 
recognize the people, 
organizations and businesses 
that make Greeley Great. 
Tonight it’s my turn to announce 
the recognitions.  I’ll start with a 
quote, “If you belittle what you 
have, it becomes less.  If you 
appreciate what you have, it 
becomes more.”  With these 
announcements we are 
appreciating the good work of 
our residents, showing support 
for their efforts, and encouraging 
everyone to share the word that 
Greeley is Great. 
 
 

 

7



Slide 3 Aims Community College
Award for Construction Excellence

 

Aims Community College 
received the Award for 
Construction Excellence in the 
category for Best Building Project 
($10-$40 million) for the Aims’ 
Greeley north campus refresh 
project. The award criteria 
included solutions 
demonstrating construction 
innovations, state of the art 
advancements, 
environment/safety, excellence 
in project execution/team 
approach and excellence in client 
service. 
 
 
 
 

Slide 4 Aims Community College
Testing Center Gets Top Certification

 

And, more good news from 
Aims.  The Greeley Campus 
Testing Center has achieved the 
top certification offered by the 
National College Testing 
Association. 
 
 

8



Slide 5 University of Northern Colorado

Board of Trustees Appointment

 

Dick Monfort of Greeley has 
been reappointed by Colorado 
Gov. John Hickenlooper to the 
University of Northern Colorado 
Board of Trustees.  Mr. Monfort 
has served on the board since 
1999. 
 
 

Slide 6 University of Northern Colorado
Big Sky Player of the Week

 

For the second-straight week 
and third time this season, 
Northern Colorado basketball 
senior guard Jordan Davis has 
been named the Big Sky 
Conference Men's Basketball 
Ready Nutrition Player of the 
Week.  
 
 

Slide 7 Engineering Excellence Award
American Council of Engineering Companies

 

Providence Infrastructure 
Consultants and the City of 
Greeley have been presented 
with a 2018 Engineering 
Excellence Award by the 
Colorado Chapter of the 
American Council of Engineering 
Companies for their work on the 
60-inch Bellvue water 
transmission pipeline.  The 
award honors firms for projects 
that demonstrate an exceptional 
degree of innovation, 
complexity, achievement and 
value. 

9



Slide 8 Colorado Assessors’ Association

2018 Assessor of the Year

 

Weld County Assessor Chris 
Woodruff was named the 2018 
Assessor of the Year by a group 
of his peers at the Colorado 
Assessors' Association. 
Chris has served as Weld 
County's assessor since January 
2007. 
 
 

Slide 9 President of Colorado Chapter

International Code Council

 

The City of Greeley’s Chief 
Building Official, Tim Swanson, 
was recently sworn in as the 
President of the Colorado 
Chapter of the International 
Code Council.  The Colorado 
Chapter is known nationally as 
one of the most successful 
chapters in the Council with 
many of their recommended 
building code changes being 
adopted into the international 
codes. 
 
 

Slide 10 Top 50 Cities for Beer Drinkers
by Smart Asset

 

Greeley has been listed as the 
fourth best city in Colorado for 
beer drinkers by New York-based 
financial tech company Smart 
Asset.  With the addition of 
Rocky Mountain Taphouse in 
2018, Greeley is home to seven 
microbreweries and brewpubs. 
 
 

10



Slide 11 

Greeley City Council - 2019   

GreeleyGov.com

 

 

 

11



 

School Board Recognition 
Month 

WHEREAS, School board members are elected to sit in trust for their diverse 
communities, and in that capacity are charged with meeting the community’s expectations and 
aspirations for the public education of their children; and 

 WHEREAS, School board members are entrusted with the guardianship and wise 
expenditure of scarce tax dollars, and they are responsible for maintaining and preserving the 
buildings, grounds and other areas of the school district that the community has put in their 
trust; and 
 

WHEREAS, School board members are responsible for providing leadership that 
ensures a clear, shared vision of public education for their schools, that sets high standards for 
the education of all students, and requires the effective and efficient operation of their districts; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, School board members adopt policies to give voice to that leadership and 
employ a superintendent to administer board policy, and are also responsible for the regular 
monitoring of the district’s performance and compliance with policies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the men and women elected to school board positions deserve recognition 
and thanks for their countless hours of volunteer service to public education and the children of 
our state. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, John Gates, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor 

of the City of Greeley, do hereby proclaim the month of January 2019, as School Board 
Recognition Month and urge all citizens to join me in recognizing the dedication and hard 
work of local school board members and in working with them to mold an education system 
that meets the needs of both today’s and tomorrow’s children. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the 
official seal of the City of Greeley, Colorado, this 15th day of January, 2019. 

     
 
 

____________________________ 
     John Gates 
     Mayor  

12



 
 

Black History Month 2019 
WHEREAS, Black History Month offers an opportunity to recognize the heritage and 

achievements of African Americans across the nation, including in Greeley and Weld County; 
and,  

WHEREAS, the contributions African Americans have made and continue to make are 
an integral and essential part of our society and community, and reflect the resilience and 
innovative spirit that defines our nation; and,  

 WHEREAS, attention to this month offers us a reminder of the importance of reaching 
and reflection upon the many roles and achievements African Americans have made in 
advancing the strength of the nation, our state, and local community; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Greeley community is especially fortunate to have the Marcus Garvey 
Cultural Center on the campus of the University of Northern Colorado, which offers a local 
resource to learn and appreciate the history and achievements of African Americans; and, 

 
WHEREAS, in recognition of Black History Month, the City Greeley urges the 

community to reflect upon and honor the accomplishments of African Americans in every area 
of endeavor throughout our country’s history this month and throughout the year.   

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, John D. Gates, by virtue of the authority vested in me as 

Mayor of the City of Greeley, do hereby proclaim February 2019, as Black History  
Month in the City of Greeley, and urge the people of Greeley, CO to observe Black History 
Month with appropriate programs and activities that celebrate the contributions of African 
Americans to life in the United States. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the 
official seal of the City of Greeley, Colorado, this 15th day of January 2019. 

     
 
 

____________________________ 
     John D. Gates 
     Mayor  

13



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 5 

 

Title 

Citizen Input 

Summary 

During this 15-minute portion of the meeting, anyone may address the Council on any 

item of City business appropriate for Council’s consideration that is not already listed 

on this evening’s agenda. 

 

Individual speakers will be limited to 3 minutes each.  Council and staff will respond 

tonight, if possible, to questions or requests.  If further time or discussion is needed, a 

staff member will contact you within the next couple of days.  Some items may need 

to be scheduled for a future meeting. 
                                 

14



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 6 

 

Title 

Approval of the Agenda 

                                 

15



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 7 

Title 

Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Summary 
During this portion of the meeting any Councilmember may offer announcements or 

reports on recent events and happenings.  These reports should be a summary of the 

Councilmember’s attendance at assigned board/commission meetings and should 

include key highlights and points that may require additional decision and discussion by 

the full Council at a future time.   

Board/Commission Meeting Day/Time Assignment  
--Team of 2--  Board/Commission Interviews Monthly as Needed Council Rotation 

Water & Sewer Board 3rd Wed, 2:00 pm Gates 

Youth Commission Liaison 4th Mon, 6:00 pm Smail 

Historic Preservation Loan As Needed Suniga 

Police Pension Board Quarterly Suniga 

Employee Health Board As Needed Suniga 

Human Relations Commission Liaison 2nd Monday, 12:30 P.M. Suniga 

Airport Authority 3rd Thur, 3:30 pm Casseday/Payton 

Visit Greeley 3rd Wed, 7:30 am Fitzsimmons 

Upstate Colorado Economic Development Last Wed, 7:00 am Gates/Hall 

Greeley Chamber of Commerce 4th Mon, 11:30 am Gates 

Island Grove Advisory Board 1st Thur, 3:30 pm Smail 

Weld Project Connect Committee (United Way) As Needed Fitzsimmons 

Downtown Development Authority 3rd Thur, 7:30 am Casseday/Smail 

Transportation/Air Quality MPO 1st Thur, 6:00 pm Casseday/Gates 

Poudre River Trail 1st Thur, 7:00 am Hall 

Interstate 25 Coalition As Needed Gates 

Highway 85 Coalition As Needed Payton 

Highway 34 Coalition As Needed Payton 

CML Policy Committee (Council or Staff) As Needed Payton and City Manager Roy 
Otto/Fitzsimmons alternate 

CML Executive Board opportunity As Needed  

CML - Other opportunities As Available/Desired  
 

 16



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 8 

 

Title 

Petitions from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting any Councilmember may bring before the Council 

any business that the member feels should be deliberated upon by the Council.  

These matters need not be specifically listed on the Agenda, but formal action on 

such matters shall be deferred until a subsequent Council meeting. 

 

Petitions will generally fall into three categories: 

 

1) A policy item for Council deliberation and direction for a future 

Worksession, Committee meeting, or regular/special Council meeting; 

 

2) A request to the City Manager for information or research; 

 

3) A request involving administrative processes or procedures. 

 

At the close of this portion of the meeting, the Mayor will confirm Council’s consensus 

that the individual requests be pursued. 

 

Attachments 

Status Report of Council Petitions and Related Information 

                                 

17



Greeley City Council 

 

Status Report of Council Petitions 

 

 

 

Council Request 

Council Meeting, 

Worksession, or 

Committee 

Meeting Date 

Requested 

Status or Disposition 

(After completion, item is shown one time 

as completed and then removed.) Assigned to: 

02-2018 Councilmember Hall requested 

that staff begin exploring options 

in regards to refuse around the 

University of Northern Colorado 

to manage the problem 

June 5, 2018 

Council Meeting 

Staff met with Councilmember Hall 

to review issues with alley trash 

and, based upon that discussion, 

modified inspection protocols as 

possible.  About the same time and 

coincidentally, the Greeley Urban 

Renewal Authority recommended  

a pilot program to pave alleys in the 

Redevelopment District from the 

annual CDBG budget, which 

Council approved.  The nature of 

this code compliance issue is 

chronic and Councilmember Hall 

notes that issues persist.   Staff met 

again with Councilmember Hall on 

November 16th to evaluate other or 

additional actions to impact this 

issue and are now:  1) Reviewing 

the last community survey results 

concerning trash hauling; 2) 

Researching/updating info on trash 

collection practices in other 

jurisdictions; 3) Consider how a 

pilot program for single hauler 

services managed by the City might 

work in a test area. 

Brad Mueller 

 

18



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 9 

Key Staff Contact: Betsy Holder, City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

  

Title:  

Approval of the City Council Proceedings of December 18, 2018 

Summary:  

A meeting of the City Council was held on December 18, 2018, in Council’s Chambers 

at the City Center South Campus, 1001 11th Avenue, Greeley, Colorado. 

Decision Options:  

1) 1.  To approve the proceedings as presented; or 

2) 2.  Amend the proceedings if amendments or corrections are needed, and approve 

3)  as amended. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to approve the City Council proceedings as presented. 

Attachments: 
December 18, 2018 Proceedings 

 

 

 

19



142 
 

City of Greeley, Colorado 
CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 

December 18, 2018 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
Mayor John Gates called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., in the Council’s Chambers at the City Center 
South Campus, 1001 11th Avenue. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Gates led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
Jessica Diagana, Assistant City Clerk, called the roll.  Those present were Mayor John Gates and 
Councilmembers Robb Casseday, Michael Fitzsimmons, Dale Hall, Brett Payton, Jon Smail and Stacy 
Suniga.   
 
4. Recognitions and Proclamations 
 
Councilmember Casseday presented the What’s Great About Greeley Report. 
 
5. Citizen Input 
 
Todd Loschen, Greeley resident, reported that there is still a problem with the intersection at 18th Street 
and 58th Avenue where pedestrians and cars are almost hit daily because people are running the stop sign.  
He stated that he drives his kids to school, which is less than a mile away, due to this.  He stated that he 
will continue to call and come to every single meeting until something is done about the intersection. 
  
Mark Jones, Police Chief, spoke of information provided to Council in which this intersection has been 
looked at on numerous occasions this year including work from the Patrol and Traffic Unit of the Police 
Department and working with Public Works to setup cameras that watched the intersection for two 
weeks.  Chief Jones stated that after these observations, this intersection does not rise to the level of the 
complaints that they have received from Mr. Loschen as far as people running the intersection at high 
speeds.  Chief Jones stated that twice that week he had been to this intersection before school hours, and 
that the traffic at this intersection is so busy that it makes it almost impossible not to stop at the 
intersection.  He stated that there certainly is a lot of traffic in the area and that it is busy before school, 
during lunchtime, and after school.  However, after reviewing records, no traffic accidents had been 
found for this intersection.   
 
Councilmember Suniga expressed concern about individuals running this stop sign and the possible 
infrastructure that could prevent this.  Chief Jones reported that Public Works has installed larger stop 
signs with reflective tape to make them more visible while reiterating that the complaints from Mr. 
Loschen do not rise to the level of needing additional infrastructure.  Roy Otto, City Manager, reported 
that there are several speed bumps to the east of the school and that he would not recommend additional 
infrastructure without substantiated claims.   
 

20



143 
 

Mayor Gates stated that he has seen a litany of emails, camera footage, and noted the considerable 
amount of time that that Public Works and the Police Department have spent at this intersection.  He 
informed Mr. Loschen that he is welcome to call and attend Council meetings as much as he would like.  
 
6. Approval of Agenda 
 
The agenda was approved as presented. 
 
7. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
Councilmember Smail reported on his attendance at the Front Range Fire Consortium Graduation, the 
swearing in ceremony for new officers with the Police Department, the final design meeting for a skate 
park, and the Youth Commissions’ warm clothing drive. 
  
Councilmember Hall spoke of his attendance at the Colorado Municipal League Executive Board 
meeting in which the upcoming legislaive session was discussed including issues relative to sales tax.  
 
Councilmember Suniga spoke of her attendance at the Human Relations Commission meeting, the 
upcoming Martin Luther King Jr. Celebration, the Women’s March, and the City of Greeley Employee 
Holiday Lunch. 
  
Councilmember Casseday expressed his condolences for the family of Vern Nelson, former Greeley 
Mayor, after his passing, his attendance at the Evening to Discuss Water Collaboration event and 
provided kudos to the City Manager for having the foresight to see the importance of water, the Aims 
Board of Trustees Reception, and the Monfort Elementary School essay contest on kindness that he was 
part of. 
  
Mayor Gates spoke of the Wreaths Across America event in which he presented a proclamation and the 
Evening to Discuss Water Collaboration event that he attended. 
  
8. Petitions from Mayor and Councilmembers 
 

* * * * Consent Agenda * * * * 
 
9. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of December 4, 2018 
 
The Council action recommended was to approve the Proceedings. 
 
10. Acceptance of the Report of the December 11, 2018 City Council Worksession 
 
The Council action recommended was to accept the Report. 
 
11. Consideration of a Resolution authorizing the City to enter into the Fourth Amendment 

to the Fifth Interim Agreement between the Municipal Subdistrict, Northern Colorado 
Water Conservancy District Windy Gap Firming Project Water Activity Enterprise, and 
the City of Greeley for participation in the Windy Gap Firming Project 

 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 83, 2018) 
 
City Council Proceedings                                            2                                                                    December 18, 2018 

21



144 
 

12. Consideration of a Resolution of the Greeley City Council authorizing the City to enter  
 into an Intergovernmental Agreement for Water Resources Monitoring with the Colorado 

Division of Water Resources 
 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 84, 2018) 
 
13. Consideration of a Resolution of the City of Greeley Council authorizing the city to enter 

into an intergovernmental agreement with the Colorado Department of Transportation 
for the operation and maintenance of traffic control devises on state highways within the 
City of Greeley 

 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 85, 2018) 
 
14. Consideration of a Resolution authorizing City staff to submit an Energy and Mineral 

Impact Assistance Program (EIAF) application to the Colorado Department of Local 
Affairs (DOLA) for the purpose of funding road improvements to East 8th Street 

 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 86, 2018) 
 
15. Consideration of a Resolution of the City of Greeley Council authorizing the City 

Attorney to initiate appropriate legal action before the Colorado Public Utilities 
Commission for the closing of the Sixth Street Railroad Crossing 

 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 87, 2018) 
 
16. Consideration of a Resolution approving a Redevelopment Agreement between Greeley 

Land, LLC and the City of Greeley 
 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 88, 2018) 
 
17. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance amending Chapter 9.44 of the Greeley 

Municipal Code to expand the Ban On Smoking in Public Places and Common Areas 
 
The Council action recommended was to introduce the ordinance and schedule the public hearing and 
final reading for January 15, 2019. 
 
18. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance authorizing the acquisition of interests in 

real property located in the City of Greeley for road improvements by purchase or 
exercise of power of eminent domain pursuant to Section 7 of Article XVI, Section 15 of 
article II, and Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and Colorado 
Revised Statute § 38-1-101, et seq. (47th Avenue Turn Lane and Centerplace Drive Turn 
Lane Projects) 

 
The Council action recommended was to introduce the ordinance and schedule the public hearing and 
final reading for January 15, 2019. 
 

* * * * End of Consent Agenda * * * * 
 
City Council Proceedings                                            3                                                                   December 18, 2018 

22



145 
 

Councilmember Payton moved, seconded by Councilmember Hall to approve the items on the Consent 
Agenda and their recommended actions.  The motion carried:  7-0 
 
19. Pulled consent agenda items 
 
No items were pulled from the Consent Agenda. 
 
20. Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance amending Chapter 3.16 of the Greeley 

Municipal Code 
 
Sharon McCabe, Human Resources Director, reported that the Police Chief desires to change the titles 
of Lieutenant and Captain to be consistent with positions with equivalent levels of duty and 
responsibility of other Colorado Municipalities.  She recommended that the position title of Lieutenant 
be changed to Commander and the position title of Captain be changed to Deputy Chief. 
 
Mayor Gates opened the public hearing at 7:10 p.m., and no comments were offered. 
 
Councilmember Casseday moved, seconded by Councilmember Suniga to adopt the ordinance and 
publish with reference to title only.  The motion carried: 7-0 (Ordinance No. 57, 2018) 
 
21. Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance re-authorizing various Boards and 

Commissions for three years 
 
Ms. Diagana reported that this ordinance seeks reauthorization of the Construction Trades Advisory & 
Appeals Board, the Greeley Art Commissions, the Greeley/Weld Housing Authority, and the Union 
Colony Civic Center Advisory Board for three years.   
 
Mayor Gates opened the public hearing at 7:12 p.m., and no comments were offered. 
 
Councilmember Suniga moved, seconded by Councilmember Hall to adopt the ordinance and publish 
with reference to title only.  The motion carried: 7-0 (Ordinance No. 58, 2018) 
 
22. Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance appropriating additional sums to defray 

the expenses and liabilities of the City of Greeley for the balance of the fiscal year of 2018 
and for funds held in reserve for encumbrances at December 31, 2017 

 
Robert Miller, Budget & Compliance Manager, reviewed the final additional appropriation of 2018 
highlighting the fund budget balance, requests from the following funds including: the General Fund, 
Community Development Fund, Streets and Roads Fund, Sales and Use Tax Fund, Designated Revenue 
Fund, Conference Center Development Fund, Greeley Building Authority Fund, Public Improvement 
Fund, Public Art Fund, Food Tax Fund, Police Development Fund, Transportation Development Fund, 
Quality of Life Fund, Water Capital Replacement Fund, Cemetery Fund, Municipal Golf Courses Fund, 
Stormwater Construction Fund, Sewer and Water Debt Service Funds, Equipment Maintenance Fund, 
Information Technology Fund, Fleet Replacement Fund, 600 Funds, and provided a summary of his 
presentation.   
 
Mayor Gates opened the public hearing at 7:34 p.m., and no comments were offered. 
 
City Council Proceedings                                            4                                                                    December 18, 2018 
 

23



146 
 

Councilmember Hall moved, seconded by Councilmember Payton to adopt the ordinance and publish 
with reference to title only.  The motion carried: 7-0 (Ordinance No. 59, 2018) 
 
23. Appointment of applicants to the Citizen Budget Advisory Committee, Greeley Urban 

Renewal Authority, Greeley/Weld Airport Authority, Greeley/Weld Housing Authority, 
Union Colony Civic Center Advisory Board, and Youth Commission 

 
Citizen Budget Advisory Committee   Bill Baker 
       Jesse Quinby 
 
Greeley Urban Renewal Authority   Theresa Paz 
 
Greeley/Weld Airport Authority   Cruz Moncivais 
 
Greeley/Weld Housing Authority   Jodi Hartman 
 
Union Colony Civic Center Advisory Board  Alison Hamling 
 
Youth Commission     Cooper Malone 
 
24. Scheduling of meetings, other events 
 
Mr. Otto reminded Council of the cancellations of the December 25, 2018, Council Meeting and the 
January 1, 2019, Council Meeting. 
 
25. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required 

resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this 
meeting and at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 
all such resolutions, agreements, and ordinances 

 
Councilmember Casseday moved, seconded by Councilmember Payton to approve the above 
authorizations, and the motion carried: 7-0 
 
26. Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Gates adjourned the meeting at 7:37 
p.m. 
 

___________________________________ 
John Gates, Mayor 

 
___________________________________ 
Jessica Diagana, Assistant City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City Council Proceedings                                            5                                                                    December 18, 2018 24



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 10 

Key Staff Contact: Betsy Holder, City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

  

Title:  

Acceptance of the Report of the January 8, 2019 City Council Worksession 

Summary:  

A City Council Worksession was held on January 8, 2019, in Council’s Chambers at the 

City Center South Campus, 1001 11th Avenue, Greeley, Colorado. 

Decision Options:  

1) 1.  To accept the Report as presented; or 

2) 2.  Amend the Report if amendments or corrections are needed, and accept as 

  amended. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to accept the Report as presented. 

Attachments: 
January 8, 2019 Report 

 

 

25



1 
 

City of Greeley, Colorado 
COUNCIL WORKSESSION REPORT 

January 8, 2019 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Mayor Gates in the Council’s Chambers at the City Center 
South Campus, 1001 11th Avenue. 
 
Those present were Mayor John Gates and Councilmembers Robb Casseday, Michael Fitzsimmons, Brett 
Payton, and Jon Smail. Councilmembers Dale Hall and Stacy Suniga were excused.     
 
1. ANNUAL REVIEW DISCUSSION OF PROCESS FOR COUNCIL’S DIRECT 

REPORTS 
 
Sharon McCabe, Human Resources Director, briefly discussed and highlighted the current process for 
performance reviews of the positions reporting directly to Council: City Manager, City Attorney, and 
Municipal Judge. She recommended that Council continue with the processes as they have been done in 
the past. 
 
Consensus was reached by Council giving direction to Human Resources to continue with the current 
process of reviewing the City Manager, City Attorney, and Municipal Judge. 
   
2. SALES AND USE TAX RE-AUTHORIZATION ALLOCATION PLAN 
 
Victoria Runkle, Assistant City Manager, provided a background of the Sales and Use Taxes that were 
approved by voters in November 2018. She continued by discussing the 0.16% Tax (Public Safety Tax) 
Fund including 2019 estimates, additional revenues, and outstanding obligations on the fund. Ms. Runkle 
also highlighted specific projects that will be funded with the Public Safety Tax. She then discussed the 
Initial Allocation Plan, the challenges and solutions related to projects being immediately funded by the 
Public Safety Tax, and debt related to projects being funded by Public Safety Tax. 
 
Councilmember Casseday expressed his appreciation to the Finance Department for including potential 
economic and housing downturns in their projections so the City is prepared for that eventuality. 
 
In response to a question from Councilmember Smail, Becky Safarik, Assistant City Manager, explained 
that the cost of building a new Fire Station would be approximately $5-6 million. 
 
Ms. Runkle then discussed the 0.30% Tax (Quality of Life Tax) Fund including 2019 estimates, additional 
revenues, and outstanding obligations on the fund. She continued by highlighting the projects that are 
being funded by this tax from 2019-2042. 
 
Mayor Gates expressed his disappointment that the project to fix a number of intersections along U.S. 
Highway 34 will not begin until 2025. Joel Hemesath, Public Works Director, explained that 2025 is an 
estimate. Mr. Hemesath added that design of these projects will begin this month and that the Colorado 
Department of Transportation (CDOT) has moved these project up on their priority list because of the 
funding provided by these taxes. 
 
In reference to a question from Councilmember Smail, Roy Otto, City Manager, explained that the City 
has not prioritized any road project over another. He added that the City is prepared to begin work on the 
interchanges along U.S. Highway 34 as soon as CDOT is ready.  
 26



2 
 

Ms. Runkle continued by highlighting the Initial Allocation Plan, the challenges and solutions related to 
projects being funded by the Quality of Life Tax, and debt related to projects being funded by Public Safety 
Tax. She also highlighted the Shurview property project so Council was updated on the project if the 
property becomes available for purchase in the future. 
 
Councilmember Casseday questioned how the Shurview property fit in to Greeley’s overall development 
plan. Andy McRoberts, Culture, Parks, and Recreation Director, explained that is would become the 
western boundary of the City and highlighted a number of possible funding sources if the City decided to 
purchase the property. Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, explained that this property 
would fit in well with the City’s overall development picture by highlighting a number of similar projects 
in the past. 
 
Consensus was reached by Council giving direction to the Finance Department to continue with all of the 
proposals/projects as presented. 
 
Ms. Runkle concluded by highlighting the next steps for the City regarding the taxes and the projects being 
funded by them.  
 
 
3. SCHEDULING OF MEETINGS, OTHER EVENTS 
   
No additional meetings or other events were scheduled. Mr. Otto reminded Council of the Greeley Police 
Department Awards Ceremony starting at 5:00 pm on January 9th at the Union Colony Civic Center. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Gates adjourned the meeting at 6:25 
p.m.  
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Jerry Harvey, Assistant City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council Worksession Report                                                     2                                                                   January 8, 2019 

27



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 11 

Key Staff Contact: Ben Snow, Economic Health & Housing Director, 970-350-9384 

  

Title:  

Consideration of a resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement between 

the City of Greeley and the Greeley Downtown Development Authority for economic 

development services 

Summary: 
 

As part of its 2019 budget approval the City Council awarded funding to the 

Downtown Development Authority (DDA) for certain economic development services 

related to the central business district.  Staff memorializes the scope of services 

contract in an agreement.  Because the DDA is considered a quasi-governmental 

entity, the Council must approve the agreement by resolution as an IGA.     

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? $48,750 

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

Intergovernmental Agreements must be approved by Council Resolution. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

Civic Infrastructure 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

28



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the Resolution. 

Attachments: 

Resolution 

Contract 

 

 

29



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION _________, 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF GREELEY AND THE GREELEY DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY APPROVING FUNDING FOR CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

ACTIVITIES 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Greeley undertakes economic development initiatives in a 

number of areas for the betterment of the community; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley also contracts with partner organizations to carry out 

economic development work on behalf of the City; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved funding to the Greeley Downtown Development 

Authority to undertake certain economic development activities in the city’s central business 

district; and 

 

WHEREAS, entering into an agreement with another governmental entity requires the 

additional action by City Council to adopt a Resolution approving the funding and work to be 

performed. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 

 

Section 1. The Greeley City Council approves the attached Essential Services 

Contract with the Greeley Downtown Development Authority, attached 

hereto as Exhibit A. 

 

Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED, APPROVED AND IN EFFECT THIS 15
TH

 DAY OF 

JANUARY 2019. 

 

 

ATTEST:      GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

___________________________________  By:  ________________________________ 

City Clerk              Mayor 

 

 

30



CITY OF GREELEY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES FUNDING AGREEMENT 


ESSENTIAL SERVICE CONTRACT 


THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this 1st day of January 2019 by and between 
the City of Greeley, a home rule municipality ("City") whose address is 1000 10th Street, 
Greeley, CO 80631 and Greeley Downtown Development Authority ("Recipient") whose 
address is 802 9th Street, Greeley, CO 80631. 

I. BACKGROUND 

A. Recipient has requested funds from the City for the purpose of furnishing the 
services described in its application (summarized in the Scope of Services, below); and 

B. The City has determined that the Recipient's proposed use of funds furthers a 
municipal and public purpose; and 

C. This Agreement describes the mutual understanding between the Recipient and 
the City relative to the conditions under which City funds are therefore provided to the 
Recipient. 

II. AGREEMENT 

A. Scope of Services: City of Greeley funds will be used to support the Recipient's 
administrative support (detailed further in Attachment A) to provide the following 
services to Greeley residents: 

o 	 As a primary function, 
- Promote the Downtown District Area, and its attractions, as key 

destination venue 
- Attract new residential development 
- Enhance services and amenities for area residents 
- Promote area commercial reinvestment 
- Support redevelopment projects consistent with the Downtown Plan for 

Development and City Comprehensive Plan, including the use of tax 
increment funds for building and infrastructure improvements 

- Attract new jobs through new and expanded businesses attraction 

o 	 Provide community-wide downtown special events, in cooperation with 
the City of Greeley, for such events as: 
- Friday Fest 
- First Friday Artwalk 
- Monster Day 
- Oktobrewfest 

1 


EXHIBIT A

31



The Recipient agrees to perform the Services as described in the Scope of Services and 
represents that it has the authority and capacity to perform the services in compliance 
with the provisions of this Agreement. In addition to the described Scope of Services, 
Recipient agrees to the following conditions in exchange for the City'S funds for the 
services described as part of this Agreement: 

1. 	 Service to Greeley Residents: The Recipient shall not use the funds 
received from the City from this Agreement to serve persons living 
outside of the City; 

2. 	 Advertising: Recipient shall include the wording "Sponsored in part by 
the City of Greeley" on all promotional, advertising, invitations, and other 
print or media material for Recipient's programs and services for which 
City Funds are made available under this Agreement; 

3. 	 Special Conditions: In the course ofproviding the Scope of Services 
Recipient shall also adhere to the following special conditions: 

None 

4. 	 Compliance with CRS standards: Recipient shall limit services to United 
States citizens, permanent residents ofthe United States, or lawfully 
present in the United States pursuant to federal law (see Section L of this 
Agreement). 

B. City's Responsibilities. With this Agreement the City designates the Economic 
Health and Housing Director for the City ofGreeley, or hislher designee, as a 
representative of the City authorized to make all necessary decisions required ofthe City 
on behalf of the City in connection with execution of this Agreement and disbursement of 
funds. 

C. Grant Award. If Recipient is not in default in any part of the terms of this 
Agreement, and subject to paragraph G below, the City may provide funds to the 
Recipient as follows: 

1. 	 Twelve (12) monthly installments in equal amounts, totaling a maximum 
of $48,750 upon City's receipt of an invoice from the Recipient, which 
contains the following information: 

a. 	 Description of those services provided for the month as described 
in the Scope of Services; 

b. 	 Detailed accounting of the use of the funds as requested for 
reimbursement by City; 

c. 	 Description or estimate of the number of Greeley residents or event 
attendees served and method ofascertaining participation; 

d. 	 Evidence, if relevant, that persons served were legally present in 
the United States at the time the service was provided. 

2 

32



2. 	 The City will endeavor to make payment within two weeks and no later 
than 30 days following receipt of Recipient's invoice. Upon satisfactory 
showing of need, City may advance to Recipient, once during the term of 
this Agreement, an amount not to exceed one monthly installment. The 
final monthly installment shall be paid not later than thirty (30) days from 
the final request for payment following services rendered by the Recipient. 
Any funds remaining that had been authorized for services provided in this 
Agreement and not expended by December 31,2019 or drawn as of 

. February 1,2020 shall be reprogrammed by the City at its sole discretion. 

D. Term. The City's obligation to provide funding under this. Agreement shall begin 
on the date this Agreement is executed by the City (the "Effective Date") and end on 
December 31, 2019, unless earlier terminated as set forth in paragraph G below. The 
City shall not pay any costs or expenses incurred by the Recipient before the Effective 
Date of this Agreement. Funding shall not be guaranteed after December 31, 2019. 

E. Applicable Law. This Agreement is made subject to and incorporates herein, as if 
set out in full, the Charter and Ordinances of the City of Greeley, and all applicable 
Federal and State Laws and regulations, and Recipient agrees to abide by and comply 
with same. 

F. Assurances. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that City funds shall not be used 
for lobbying for the purpose of influencing pending or proposed legislation, nor to 
influence quasi-judicial decision making by any elective bodies. Recipient further 
acknowledges and agrees that no person shall, on the grounds of disability, race, creed, 
color, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, ancestry, or religion, be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subject to discrimination 
under any ofRecipient's programs or activities receiving City financial assistance 
hereunder. 

G. 	 Termination. 

1. For Cause by the City. The City may immediately terminate this 
Agreement if the Recipient materially fails to comply with any term or condition 
of the Agreement. 

2. Without Cause by Either Party. Either party may terminate the Agreement 
upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. No payments will be due 
or owing from the City to the agency on or following the date of the written 
notice, including payments for services completed prior to the termination date. 

3. Upon Change in Program, Scope of Services or Budget. If Recipient 
desires to reduce, terminate, or materially modify its Scope of Services or Budget, 
Recipient shall, before implementing any such change, immediately notify the 
City in writing of its intention to make such a change. City will evaluate the 
merits of the change in Scope of Services and may elect to either terminate the 

3 

33



Agreement or amend it at a level that corresponds with the change as proposed by 
the Recipient. Such determination by the City shall be provided in writing to the 
Recipient within thirty (30) days of receiving notice of the proposed change. 
Recipient's failure to so notify the City shall cause this Agreement, without any 
further action on the part of the City, to be immediately terminated, and all future 
installment payments of City Funds to Recipient shall cease. 

4. Materials and Documents. In the event this Agreement is terminated, all 
finished or unfinished materials, documents, data, studies, and reports prepared by 
the Recipient pursuant to this Agreement shall, at the option of the City, become 
the City's property. 

5. Recipient's Obligations. Termination of this Agreement shall not release 
or discharge the Recipient from any obligation incurred prior to the date of 
termination and the provisions of paragraphs hereof shall survive such 
termination. 

6. Return ofFunds. Upon termination of this Agreement, all City Funds then 
in possession ofRecipient which have not been spent or obligated in conformity 
with Recipient's Budget and this Agreement shall immediately be returned to the 
City. 

H. Independent Contractor Status. Recipient shall, at all times, be deemed an 
independent Contmctor and neither Recipient, nor its officers, agents and employees shall 
at any time be deemed employees, officers, or agents of the City. Recipient shall be 
solely responsible for the acts of its officers, agents, and employees and payment ofall 
withholding taxes, social security, unemployment compensation, workman's 
compensation, or other taxes, and shall hold the City harmless and indemnify the City 
from all claims for same. 

1. Monitoring and Evaluation. The City reserves the right to monitor and evaluate 
the progress and performance of the Recipient to ensure that the terms of this Agreement 
are being satisfactorily met in accordance with the City and other applicable monitoring 
and evaluating criteria and standards. The Recipient shall cooperate with the City 
relating to such monitoring and evaluation. 

J. Recipient Files and Activity Reports. The Recipient shall retain information in its 
files which shall clearly document all activities performed in conjunction with this 
Agreement including, but not limited to, financial transactions, conformance with 
assurances, and Recipient activity reports. A Recipient activity report shall be submitted 
with all requests for reimbursement or payment by the City. 

K. Indemnification. As to City, Recipient agrees to assume the risk of all personal 
injuries, including death and bodily injury, to persons, and damage to, and destruction of, 
property, including loss of use thereof, caused by, or sustained, in whole, or in part, in 
connection with, or arising out of, the performance of this Agreement by Recipient, or by 

4 

34



the conditions created thereby. Recipient further agrees to indemnify and save harmless 
the City, and its officers, agents, and employees, from and against all claims, liabilities, 
judgments, penalties, costs, expenses, and attorney fees arising out of or resulting from 
such injuries to persons, or damages to property, or based upon, or arising out of, the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement by Recipient, or acts or omissions of 
Recipient, its employees, officers, and agents, or out of any violation by Recipient ofany 
statute, ordinance, rule, or regulation. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement to the contrary, no term or condition ofthis Agreement shall be construed or 
interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, ofany of the immunities, rights, benefits, 
protection, or other provisions of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, CRS 24-10
101, et. seq., as now or hereafter amended. 

L. Compliance with C.RS. § 24-76.5-103. 

1. Recipient acknowledges that the funds provided pursuant to this 
Agreement are a "public benefit" within the meaning ofC.RS. § 24-76.5-103. As 
such, the Recipient shall ensure compliance with C.RS. § 24-76.5-103 by 
performing the required verifications. Specifically, when required the Recipient 
shall ensure that: 

a. If the public benefit provided by the funds flows directly to a 
natural person (i.e., not a corporation, partnership, or other legally-created 
entity) 18 years ofage or older, he/she must do the following: 

complete the affidavit attached to this Agreement as Attachment B 
attach a photocopy of the front and back ofone of the following forms 
of identification: a valid Colorado driver's license or Colorado 
identification card; a United States military card or military 
dependent's identification card; a United States Coast Guard Merchant 
Mariner identification card; or a Native American tribal document. 

b. If an individual applying for the benefits identified herein executes 
the affidavit stating that he/she is an alien lawfully present in the United 
States, Recipient shall verifY hislher lawful presence through the federal 
systematic alien verification or entitlement program, known as the "SAVE 
Program," operated by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security or a 
successor program designated by said department. In the event Recipient 
determines through such verification process that the individual is not an 
alien lawfully present in the United States, the Recipient shall not provide 
. benefits to such individual with funds awarded pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

c. Exemptions. City acknowledges that the Scope of Services 
provided by Recipient herein may fall within several exceptions to the 
verification requirements of C.RS. § 24-76.5-103 for non-profits. For 
example, certain programs, services, or assistance such as, but not limited 

5 

35



to, soup kitchens, crisis counseling aild intervention, short-term shelter or 
prenatal care are not subject to the verification requirements of C.R.S. § 
24-76.5-103. 

M. Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient covenants that no member of its Board of 
Directors or any officer or employee presently has any personal interest in the Project 
and shall not acquire any interest therein that would conflict with the performance of the 
Services required under this Agreement or by any applicable law, regulation, or 
ordinance. 

N. Alteration. No addition, alteration, amendment, or modification of the terms of 
this Agreement, nor verbal understandings ofthe parties, their officers, agents or 
employees, shall be valid unless reduced to writing and executed by the parties hereto. 

O. Assignment. Recipient may not assign this Agreement in whole or in part without 
the prior written consent of the City. 

P. Prior Agreements. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and 
understandings, whether written or verbal, of the parties hereto relating to City funds to 
be paid Recipient by the City, and, upon execution of this Agreement by all the parties 
hereto, all such prior agreements and understandings, whether written or verbal, shall 
terminate except as otherwise provided herein. 

Q. Enforcement. Enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all 
rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the City and the 
Recipient, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall give or allow any claim or right 
ofaction by any other or third person under this Agreement. It is the express intention of 
the City and the Recipient that any person other than the City or the Recipient receiving 
services or benefits under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary 
only. 

R. Notice. Notice shall be deemed to have been duly given if mailed first class mail, 
postage prepaid to: 

CITY: RECIPIENT: 
City ofGreeley Downtown Development Authority 
Benjamin Snow Bianca Fisher 
Economic Health & Housing Director Executive Director 
1000 10th Street 802 9th Street, Suite 100 
Greeley, CO 80631 Greeley, CO 80631 

With copy to: 
City Attorney 

City Attorney's Office 

1100 10th Street, Suite 401 


, Greeley, CO 80631 

6 

36



---------------------------

---------------------------

Or such other address as Recipient or City shall hereafter designate in writing delivered 
to the other party. 

S. Authority to Bind. The person or persons signing below on behalf of Recipient 
represent and warrant that such person or persons has the requisite authority to execute 
this Agreement for and on behalf of Recipient and legally bind Recipient thereto. 

T. Appropriation. Pursuant to law, this Agreement is subject to adequate 
appropriation in any given fiscal year ofthe City of Greeley. Should adequate funds not 
be appropriated in any fiscal year to maintain the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
the parties agree that the Agreement shall immediately terminate. It is expressly 
understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that the only expenditures to be 
made by the City are those expenditures specifically provided for herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Recipient have executed this Agreement the day 
and year first above written. 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO: RECIPIENT: 

By: __________________________ 

Mayor Bianca Fisher 
Executive Director 

ATTEST: 

By: ___________________________ 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE 

By: ______________________ 
City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

By: 
City Attorney 

AS TO AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 

By: 
Director ofFinance 

7 

37



ATTACHMENT A 


(Scope ofServices: Recipient Proposed Use ofFunds) 

SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CITY CONTRACTED SERVICES 


Funded Activity Cityfund City % oftotal PeTj'ormance Measure 
amount used funding 

for the activity 
· Salary ofAlison Hamling (Director $48,750 100% Establishing calendar ofevents, 

ofDowntown Experience) scheduling entertainment & event 
support, obtaining event sponsors, 
providing media andprogram 
marketing, managing liquor 
licensin2, preparinf( reports. 

8 

38



ATTACHMENT B 


AFFIDAVIT PURSUANT TO C.R.S. 24-76.5-103 


I, _--:-:-______, swear or afftrm under penalty ofperjUI)' under the laws of the State of 
Colorado that (check one): 

I am a United States citizen, or 

I am a legal permanent resident ofthe United States, or 

I am lawfully present in the United States pursuant to Federal law. 

I understand that this sworn statement is required by law because I have applied for apublic benefit. I 
understand that state law requires me to provide proof that I am lawfully present in the United States prior 
to receipt of this public benefit. I further acknowledge that making a false, fictitious, or fraudulent 
statement or representation in this sworn affidavit is punishable under the criminal laws of Colorado as 
perjUI)' in the second degree under Colorado Revised Statute § 18-8-503 and it shall constitute a separate 
criminal offense each time a public benefit is fraudulently received. 

Signature Date 

INTERNAL USE ONLY Valid forms of identification 
---current Colorado driver's license, minor driver's license, probationary driver's license, commercial driver's license, 

restricted driver's license, instruction permit 
---current Colorado identification card 
---U.S. military card or dependent identification card 
---U.S. Coast Guard Merchant Mariner card 
---Native American Tribal Document 

The following forms of identification may be accepted pursuant to HB06S-1023, effective August I 2007. * 
---certificate verifYing naturalized status by an authorized agency ofthe United States bearing Applicant's intact 

photograph impressed and the raised embossed seal of the issuing agency; 
---certificate verifYing United States citizenship issued by an authorized agency ofthe United States bearing 

Applicant's intact photograph impressed with the raised embossed seal of the issuing agency; 
---order of adoption by a U.S. court with seal of certification 
---valid driver's license or ID card bearing applicant's photograph issued by a lawful presence state. (All states are 

lawful presence states including the District of Columbia with the exception of: HI, IL, MD, NE, NM, UT, and WA. 
If on the face of the license or ID card presented it says that it is an Enhanced driver license or ID card, then it is to be 
accepted as a lawful presence document.) 

---valid immigration documents demonstrating Lawful Presence and verified through the Systematic Alien 
Verification for Entitlements, administered by the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services of the 
Department of Homeland Security. Valid immigration documents are as follows: Unexpired Foreign Passport bearing an 
unexpired "Processed for 1-551" stamp or with an attached unexpired "Temporary 1-551" visa; Unexpired Foreign 
Passport accompanied by an "1-94" indicating a specific future "until" date; "1-94" with refugee or asylum status; and 
Unexpired "Resident Alien" card, "Permanent Resident" card, or "Employment Authorization" card. 

*If individual applicants for a public benefit cannot produce the documentation necessary to prove lawful presence, they 
may request a waiver. The waiver is available for individuals who: (1) due to a chronic health or medical condition, lack 
sufficient mobility to appear in person to apply for a Colorado driver license ofColorado identification card, or (2) due 
to lack ofa permanent physical address in Colorado, do not qualifY for a Colorado driver license or Colorado 
identification card, or (3) may lack sufficient documentation to receive a Colorado driver license ofColorado 
identification card. Contact your department director. 

9 

39



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 12 

Key Staff Contact: Ben Snow, Economic Health & Housing Director, 970-350-9384 

  

Title:  

Consideration of a resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement between 

the City of Greeley and The State of Colorado acting for and on behalf of the Board 

of Trustees of the University of Northern Colorado for the use and benefit of the Small 

Business Development Center and the BizHub Collaborative for economic 

development services 

Summary: 
 

As part of its 2019 budget approval the City Council awarded funding to the Small 

Business Development Center and the BizHub Collaborative for certain economic 

development services related to start-up business support.  Staff memorializes the 

scope of services contract in an agreement.  Because the agreement is with another 

governmental entity (UNC) the Council must approve the agreement by resolution as 

an IGA.     

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? $15,000 

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

Intergovernmental Agreements must be approved by Council Resolution.   

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

Civic Infrastructure 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

40



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the Resolution. 

Attachments: 

Resolution  

Agreement 

 

 

41



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION _________, 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF GREELEY AND THE STATE OF COLORADO ACTING FOR AND ON 

BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UNIVERSITY OF NORHERN 

COLORADO FOR THE USE AND BENEFIT OF THE SMALL BUSINESS 

DEVELOPMENT CENTER AND THE BIZHUB COLLABORATIVE  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Greeley undertakes economic development initiatives in a 

number of areas for the betterment of the community; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley also contracts with partner organizations to carry out 

economic development work on behalf of the City; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved funding to the Small Business Development 

Center and the BizHub Collaborative located at the University of Northern Colorado campus y to 

undertake certain economic development activities related to business development; and 

 

WHEREAS, entering into an agreement with another governmental entity requires the 

additional action by City Council to adopt a Resolution approving the funding and work to be 

performed. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 

 

Section 1. The Greeley City Council approves the attached Essential Services 

Contract with the State of Colorado acting for and on behalf of the Board of Trustees of 

the University of Northern Colorado for the use and benefit of the Small Business 

Development Center and the BizHub Collaborative, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 

Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED, APPROVED AND IN EFFECT THIS 15
TH

 DAY OF 

JANUARY 2019 

 

ATTEST:      GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

___________________________________  By:  ________________________________ 

City Clerk              Mayor 

 

 

42



 

 
1 

CITY OF GREELEY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES FUNDING AGREEMENT 

ESSENTIAL SERVICE CONTRACT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this 1st day of January 2019 by and between 

the City of Greeley, a home rule municipality (“City”) whose address is 1000 10
th

 Street, 

Greeley, CO  80631 and The State of Colorado acting for and on behalf of the Board of Trustees 

of the University of Northern Colorado, 501 20
th

 Street, Greeley, CO 80639, for the use and 

benefit of the Small Business Development Center and the BizHub Collaborative (collectively 

the “Recipient”) whose address is 807 17
th

 Street, Greeley, CO 80631.  

 

I. BACKGROUND 

 

A. Recipient has requested funds from the City for the purpose of furnishing the 

services described in its application (summarized in the Scope of Services, below); and 

 

 B. The City has determined that the Recipient's proposed use of funds furthers a 

 municipal and public purpose; and 

 

C. This Agreement describes the mutual understanding between the Recipient and 

the City relative to the conditions under which City funds are therefore provided to the 

Recipient.   

 

II. AGREEMENT 
 

 A. Scope of Services:  City of Greeley funds will used by the Recipient for general 

administrative and operating support (detailed further in Attachment A) to enhance the 

economic viability of Greeley via the following services:   

 

1. Business counseling and technical training to Greeley business owners; 

 

2. Provide virtual incubator services via the BizHub Collaborative; 

 

3. Referral of businesses within Greeley to appropriate City of Greeley staff based 

upon specific services needed, which will require a basic understanding of the 

City of Greeley business registration, expansion and development processes; 

 

4. Reporting of job creation and capital invested by businesses within Greeley; 

 

5.  Delivery of targeted business education and training seminars; 

 

6. Actively collaborate and promote all Weld County economic development 

partners. 

 

 

 
EXHIBIT A 

43



 

 
2 

   The Recipient agrees to perform the Services as described in the Scope of Services and 

represents that it has the authority and capacity to perform the services in compliance 

with the provisions of this Agreement.   In addition to the described Scope of Services, 

Recipient agrees to the following conditions in exchange for the City’s funds for the 

services described as part of this Agreement:   

 

1. Service to Greeley Residents:  The Recipient shall not use the funds 

received from the City from this Agreement to serve persons living 

outside of the City;  

 

2. Advertising:  Recipient shall include the wording “Sponsored in part by 

the City of Greeley” on all promotional, advertising, invitations, and other 

print or media material for Recipient’s programs and services for which 

City Funds are made available under this Agreement; 

 

3. Special Conditions:  In the course of providing the Scope of Services 

Recipient shall also adhere to the following special conditions:    
None 

 

4. Compliance with CRS standards:  Recipient shall limit services to United 

States citizens, permanent residents of the United States, or lawfully 

present in the United States pursuant to federal law (see Section L of this 

Agreement).   

  

 B. City’s Responsibilities. With this Agreement the City designates the Economic 

Health and Housing Director for the City of Greeley, or his/her designee, as a 

representative of the City authorized to make all necessary decisions required of the City 

on behalf of the City in connection with execution of this Agreement and disbursement of 

funds. 

 

 C. Grant Award.   If Recipient is not in default in any part of the terms of this 

Agreement, and subject to paragraph G below, the City may provide funds to the 

Recipient as follows: 

 

1. Four (4) quarterly installments in equal amounts, totaling a maximum of 

$15,000 ($10,000 for SBDC and $5,000 for BizHub) upon City’s receipt 

of an invoice from the Recipient, which contains the following 

information: 

 

a. Description of those services provided for the month as described 

in the Scope of Services; 

b. Detailed accounting of the use of the funds as requested for 

reimbursement by City; 

c. Description of number and type of businesses served and method 

of ascertaining participation;  

d. Evidence, if relevant, that persons served were legally present in 

the United States at the time the service was provided. 

44



 

 
3 

2.  The City will endeavor to make payment within two weeks and no later 

than 30 days following receipt of Recipient’s invoice. Upon satisfactory 

showing of need, City may advance to Recipient, once during the term of 

this Agreement, an amount not to exceed one monthly installment. The 

final monthly installment shall be paid not later than thirty (30) days from 

the final request for payment following services rendered by the Recipient.  

Any funds remaining that had been authorized for services provided in this 

Agreement and not expended by December 31, 2019 or drawn as of 

February 1, 2020 shall be reprogrammed by the City at its sole discretion. 

 

D. Term.  The City’s obligation to provide funding under this Agreement shall begin 

on the date this Agreement is executed by the City (the “Effective Date”) and end on 

December 31, 2019, unless earlier terminated as set forth in paragraph G below.  The 

City shall not pay any costs or expenses incurred by the Recipient before the Effective 

Date of this Agreement.  Funding shall not be guaranteed after December 31, 2019.  

 

E. Applicable Law. This Agreement is made subject to and incorporates herein, as if 

set out in full, the Charter and Ordinances of the City of Greeley, and all applicable 

Federal and State Laws and regulations, and Recipient agrees to abide by and comply 

with same.   

 

F. Assurances.  Recipient acknowledges and agrees that City funds shall not be used 

for lobbying for the purpose of influencing pending or proposed legislation, nor to 

influence quasi-judicial decision making by any elective bodies.  Recipient further 

acknowledges and agrees that no person shall, on the grounds of disability, race, creed, 

color, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, ancestry, or religion, be 

excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subject to discrimination 

under any of Recipient's programs or activities receiving City financial assistance 

hereunder.   

 

G. Termination.   

 

 1. For Cause by the City.  The City may immediately terminate this 

Agreement if the Recipient materially fails to comply with any term or condition 

of the Agreement.   

 

 2. Without Cause by Either Party.  Either party may terminate the Agreement 

upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party.  No payments will be due 

or owing from the City to the agency on or following the date of the written 

notice, including payments for services completed prior to the termination date. 

 

 3. Upon Change in Program, Scope of Services or Budget.  If Recipient 

desires to reduce, terminate, or materially modify its Scope of Services or Budget, 

Recipient shall, before implementing any such change, immediately notify the 

City in writing of its intention to make such a change.  City will evaluate the 

merits of the change in Scope of Services and may elect to either terminate the 

45



 

 
4 

Agreement or amend it at a level that corresponds with the change as proposed by 

the Recipient.  Such determination by the City shall be provided in writing to the 

Recipient within thirty (30) days of receiving notice of the proposed change.  

Recipient's failure to so notify the City shall cause this Agreement, without any 

further action on the part of the City, to be immediately terminated, and all future 

installment payments of City Funds to Recipient shall cease. 

 

 4. Materials and Documents.  In the event this Agreement is terminated, all 

finished or unfinished materials, documents, data, studies, and reports prepared by 

the Recipient pursuant to this Agreement shall, at the option of the City, become 

the City’s property.  

 

 5. Recipient’s Obligations. Termination of this Agreement shall not release 

or discharge the Recipient from any obligation incurred prior to the date of 

termination and the provisions of paragraphs hereof shall survive such 

termination. 

 

 6. Return of Funds.  Upon termination of this Agreement, all City Funds then 

in possession of Recipient which have not been spent or obligated in conformity 

with Recipient's Budget and this Agreement shall immediately be returned to the 

City. 

 

 H. Independent Contractor Status.  Recipient shall, at all times, be deemed an 

independent Contractor and neither Recipient, nor its officers, agents and employees shall 

at any time be deemed employees, officers, or agents of the City.  Recipient shall be 

solely responsible for the acts of its officers, agents, and employees and payment of all 

withholding taxes, social security, unemployment compensation, workman's 

compensation, or other taxes, and shall hold the City harmless and indemnify the City 

from all claims for same.  

  

 I. Monitoring and Evaluation.  The City reserves the right to monitor and evaluate 

the progress and performance of the Recipient to ensure that the terms of this Agreement 

are being satisfactorily met in accordance with the City and other applicable monitoring 

and evaluating criteria and standards.  The Recipient shall cooperate with the City 

relating to such monitoring and evaluation. 

 

 J. Recipient Files and Activity Reports.  The Recipient shall retain information in its 

files which shall clearly document all activities performed in conjunction with this 

Agreement including, but not limited to, financial transactions, conformance with 

assurances, and Recipient activity reports.  A Recipient activity report shall be submitted 

with all requests for reimbursement or payment by the City. 

 

 K. Indemnification.   Liability for claims for injuries to persons or property arising 

from the negligence of the Parties, their departments, boards, commissions committees, 

bureaus, offices, employees and officials shall be controlled and limited by the provisions 

of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S.; the Federal 

46



 

 
5 

Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. Pt. VI, Ch. 171 and 28 U.S.C. 1346(b), and the State’s risk 

management statutes, §§24-30-1501, et seq. C.R.S. No term or condition of this 

Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the 

immunities, rights, benefits, protection, or other provisions of the Colorado 

Governmental Immunity Act, CRS 24-10-101, et. seq., as now or hereafter amended. 

 

 L. Compliance with C.R.S. § 24-76.5-103.   

 

1. Recipient acknowledges that the funds provided pursuant to this 

Agreement are a “public benefit” within the meaning of C.R.S. § 24-76.5-103. As 

such, the Recipient shall ensure compliance with C.R.S. § 24-76.5-103 by 

performing the required verifications. Specifically, when required the Recipient 

shall ensure that: 

 

a. If the public benefit provided by the funds flows directly to a 

natural person (i.e., not a corporation, partnership, or other legally-created 

entity) 18 years of age or older, he/she must do the following: 

 

- complete the affidavit attached to this Agreement as Attachment B.  

- attach a photocopy of the front and back of one of the following forms 

of identification: a valid Colorado driver’s license or Colorado 

identification card; a United States military card or military 

dependent’s identification card; a United States Coast Guard Merchant 

Mariner identification card; or a Native American tribal document.   

 

b. If an individual applying for the benefits identified herein executes 

the affidavit stating that he/she is an alien lawfully present in the United 

States, Recipient shall verify his/her lawful presence through the federal 

systematic alien verification or entitlement program, known as the “SAVE 

Program,” operated by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security or a 

successor program designated by said department.  In the event Recipient 

determines through such verification process that the individual is not an 

alien lawfully present in the United States, the Recipient shall not provide 

benefits to such individual with funds awarded pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

 

c. Exemptions.  City acknowledges that the Scope of Services 

provided by Recipient herein may fall within several exceptions to the 

verification requirements of C.R.S. § 24-76.5-103 for non-profits. For 

example, certain programs, services, or assistance such as, but not limited 

to, soup kitchens, crisis counseling and intervention, short-term shelter or 

prenatal care are not subject to the verification requirements of C.R.S. § 

24-76.5-103.   

 

 M. Conflicts of Interest.  The Recipient covenants that no member of its Board of 

Directors or any officer or employee presently has any personal interest in the Project 

47



 

 
6 

and shall not acquire any interest therein that would conflict with the performance of the 

Services required under this Agreement or by any applicable law, regulation, or 

ordinance. 

 

 N. Alteration.  No addition, alteration, amendment, or modification of the terms of 

this Agreement, nor verbal understandings of the parties, their officers, agents or 

employees, shall be valid unless reduced to writing and executed by the parties hereto. 

 

 O. Assignment.  Recipient may not assign this Agreement in whole or in part without 

the prior written consent of the City. 

 

 P. Prior Agreements.  This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and 

understandings, whether written or verbal, of the parties hereto relating to City funds to 

be paid Recipient by the City, and, upon execution of this Agreement by all the parties 

hereto, all such prior agreements and understandings, whether written or verbal, shall 

terminate except as otherwise provided herein.   

 

 Q. Enforcement.  Enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all 

rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the City and the 

Recipient, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall give or allow any claim or right 

of action by any other or third person under this Agreement.  It is the express intention of 

the City and the Recipient that any person other than the City or the Recipient receiving 

services or benefits under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary 

only. 

 

 R. Notice.  Notice shall be deemed to have been duly given if mailed first class mail, 

postage prepaid to: 

 

 CITY:      RECIPIENT: 
City of Greeley   University of Northern Colorado 

Benjamin Snow  Office of Sponsored Programs 

   Economic Health & Housing Director Trisha Brinton 

  1000 10
th

 Street     Kepner Hall 

  Greeley, CO  80631    Campus Box 43 

        Greeley, CO  80639 

  With copy to: 

  City Attorney 

  City Attorney’s Office 

1100 10th Street, Suite 401 

  Greeley, CO 80631 

 

Or such other address as Recipient or City shall hereafter designate in writing delivered 

to the other party. 

 

48



 

 
7 

 S. Authority to Bind.  The person or persons signing below on behalf of Recipient 

represent and warrant that such person or persons has the requisite authority to execute 

this Agreement for and on behalf of Recipient and legally bind Recipient thereto. 

 

T. Appropriation.  Pursuant to law, this Agreement is subject to adequate 

appropriation in any given fiscal year of the City of Greeley. Should adequate funds not 

be appropriated in any fiscal year to maintain the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 

the parties agree that the Agreement shall immediately terminate. It is expressly 

understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that the only expenditures to be 

made by the City are those expenditures specifically provided for herein. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Recipient have executed this Agreement the day 

and year first above written.  

 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO: RECIPIENT: 

 

 

By:  _______________________________  By:  ______________________________ 

        Mayor          Cira Mathis 

         

ATTEST:              ________________________________    

          Assoc. Director, Sponsored Prog.       

By:  _______________________________ 

        City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE         
 

By:        

       City Manager             

 

        

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 

By: _______________________________ 

      City Attorney 

       

 

AS TO AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 
 

By: _______________________________ 

       Director of Finance 

49



 

 
8 

 

 
 

(Scope of Services:  Recipient Proposed Use of Funds) 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CITY CONTRACTED SERVICES 

 

Funded Activity City fund 

amount used 

City % of total 

funding 

 for the activity 

Performance Measure 

SBDC Activity; consulting, 

outreach, training  

$15,000.00 varies Quarterly Reporting (at time of 

invoice) 

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

50



 

 
9 

ATTACHMENT B 

 
AFFIDAVIT PURSUANT TO C.R.S. 24-76.5-103 

I, __________________, swear or affirm under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 

Colorado that (check one): 

___       I am a United States citizen, or 

___       I am a legal permanent resident of the United States, or  

___       I am lawfully present in the United States pursuant to Federal law. 

I understand that this sworn statement is required by law because I have applied for a public benefit. I 

understand that state law requires me to provide proof that I am lawfully present in the United States prior 

to receipt of this public benefit.  I further acknowledge that making a false, fictitious, or fraudulent 

statement or representation in this sworn affidavit is punishable under the criminal laws of Colorado as 

perjury in the second degree under Colorado Revised Statute § 18-8-503 and it shall constitute a separate 

criminal offense each time a public benefit is fraudulently received. 

___________________________   _______________ 
Signature       Date 

 

INTERNAL USE ONLY        Valid forms of identification 

 ---current Colorado driver’s license, minor driver’s license, probationary driver’s license, commercial driver’s license, 

restricted driver’s license, instruction permit 

 ---current Colorado identification card 

 ---U.S. military card or dependent identification card 

 ---U.S. Coast Guard Merchant Mariner card 

 ---Native American Tribal Document 

The following forms of identification may be accepted pursuant to HB06S-1023, effective August 1, 2007.* 

 ---certificate verifying naturalized status by an authorized agency of the United States bearing Applicant’s intact 

photograph impressed and the raised embossed seal of the issuing agency; 

 ---certificate verifying United States citizenship issued by an authorized agency of the United States bearing 

Applicant’s intact photograph impressed with the raised embossed seal of the issuing agency; 

 ---order of adoption by a U.S. court with seal of certification 

 ---valid driver’s license or ID card bearing applicant’s photograph issued by a lawful presence state. (All states are 

lawful presence states including the District of Columbia with the exception of:  HI, IL, MD,  NE, NM,  UT,  and WA. 

If on the face of the license or ID card presented it says that it is an Enhanced driver license or ID card, then it is to be 

accepted as a lawful presence document.) 

 ---valid immigration documents demonstrating Lawful Presence and verified through the Systematic Alien 

Verification for Entitlements, administered by the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services of the 

Department of Homeland Security. Valid immigration documents are as follows: Unexpired Foreign Passport bearing an 

unexpired “Processed for I-551” stamp or with an attached unexpired “Temporary I-551” visa; Unexpired Foreign 

Passport accompanied by an “I-94” indicating a specific future “until” date; “I-94” with refugee or asylum status; and 

Unexpired “Resident Alien” card, “Permanent Resident” card, or “Employment Authorization” card. 

 

*If individual applicants for a public benefit cannot produce the documentation necessary to prove lawful presence, they 

may request a waiver. The waiver is available for individuals who: (1) due to a chronic health or medical condition, lack 

sufficient mobility to appear in person to apply for a Colorado driver license of Colorado identification card, or (2) due 

to lack of a permanent physical address in Colorado, do not qualify for a Colorado driver license or Colorado 

identification card, or (3) may lack sufficient documentation to receive a Colorado driver license of Colorado 

identification card. Contact your department director. 

 

51



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 13 

Key Staff Contact: Victoria Runkle, Assistant City Manager, 970-350-3190 

  

Title:  

Consideration of a resolution of the City of Greeley Council Authorizing Dissolution of 

the Greeley Building Authority effective December 31, 2018 

Summary: 
 

The Greeley City Council on August 9, 1980 established the Greeley Building Authority 

(GBA) by adopting Articles of Incorporation, as well as Bylaws, and appointed a five-

member board.  The organization was established to finance and construct city 

facilities.  Since that time several facilities have been built including the Greeley 

Senior Center, Island Grove Event Center and refunding the Union Colony Civic 

Center debt.   Over the years the regulations and best practices in the finance 

industry have changed and now a paying agent can be retained to perform the 

same function as the GBA was serving with regard to issuing Certificates of 

Participation (generally a lease purchase) for constructing buildings.  After vetting 

requests for proposals Zion Bank was selected to serve as the City’s paying agent.  

They were used as the paying agent for the City Center and for other debt issuances 

(i.e., water and sewer revenue bonds).  The State Statutes allow for the incorporators 

(City Council) to dissolve the GBA when there are not sufficient board of directors to 

take action.  There does not appear to be a quorum available on the current GBA 

Board. There are no more outstanding obligations.  Staff is recommending that the 

City Council dissolve the Greeley Building Authority, because there is no longer a 

compelling reason to establish a new board or to conduct business using the current 

GBA structure. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

 

52



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Legal Issues:   

The City Attorney’s Office and outside bond counsel, Kutak Rock, are in agreement 

that the Greeley Building Authority is no longer necessary for the purpose of 

constructing and financing city facilities. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

A remaining traditional use of a building authority is to create a means of 

constructing and maintaining a jointly owned facility by two or more governmental 

entities, governed with board that has representation from all owner entities.  Should 

that opportunity arise in the future, the organization can be set up to specifically 

address the needs of the owner agencies. 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

Infrastructure & Growth:  Provide a framework of public services, facilities, and 

equipment that support a safe, pleasing and successful community.  Good 

stewardship of the public funds would suggest that it is time to dissolve an obsolete 

method of financing for the construction of public facilities. 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the Resolution. 

Attachments: 

Resolution 

 

 

53



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION____, 2019 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GREELEY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING 

DISSOLUTION OF THE GREELEY BUILDING AUTHORITY EFFECTIVE 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

WHEREAS, on August 9, 1980, the Greeley City Council adopted Articles of 

Incorporation and Bylaws to establish the Greeley Building Authority (GBA), a nonprofit 

corporation, for the purpose of financing and constructing facilities, and appointed a five-

member Board of Directors (Directors);  

WHEREAS, the GBA served its purpose over the years by financing the construction of 

several City facilities that have benefited the citizens of Greeley, including the Greeley Senior 

Center, Island Grove Event Center, and refunding the lease for the Union Colony Civic Center; 

WHEREAS, all obligations of the GBA have been met as of December 31, 2018; 

 WHEREAS, current regulations allow for alternate, more efficient methods for financing 

facilities’ construction, and by Resolution 28, 2016, the City Council authorized a contract with 

Zions Bank to perform “paying agent” services, as an alternative to the GBA; 

WHEREAS, there does not appear to be a quorum available to allow the current 

Directors to vote to dissolve the GBA; 

WHEREAS, the C.R.S. § 7-134-101(1) provides that dissolution of a nonprofit 

corporation with no directors may be authorized by a majority of its incorporators; and 

WHEREAS, as the GBA’s incorporators, the City Council can dissolve the GBA. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, 

COLORADO:  

Section 1.   The GBA is hereby dissolved and all Directors are relieved of responsibilities 

and liabilities. 

Section 2.  This City Council action will allow for the filing of the Articles of Dissolution 

of a Nonprofit Corporation with the Colorado Secretary of State, pursuant to C.R.S. § 7-

134-103. 

Section 3.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS 15
TH

 DAY OF JANUARY, 

2019. 

 

ATTEST:        CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

By: City Clerk       By: Mayor  

54



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 14 

Key Staff Contact: Victoria Runkle, Assistant City Manager, 970-350-3190 

  

Title:  

Consideration of a resolution of the Greeley City Council declaring its official intent to 

reimburse itself with the proceeds of one or more tax-exempt financings for certain 

capital construction and equipment expenditures 

Summary: 
 

The City intends to issue external debt in the form of certificates of participation 

(COPS), or a lease purchase type of financing, to build Fire Station 6 (west station in 

Promontory) with the related engine and replace Station 2 ( 23rd and Reservoir). 

These projects were included in the financial plan for the .16% public safety sales tax 

extension approved by the voters of Greeley in November, 2018. 

 

This resolution will allow the City to reimburse itself for project costs incurred from the 

financing proceeds within 60 days before the adoption of the resolution and up to 18 

months from the first expenditure.  This has been the standard practice for the City. It 

allows the design to be completed so that the debt issued is for the amount actually 

needed to construct the stations and purchase the engine.  It also prevents the City 

from having to pay interest until construction begins. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Committing existing 

accumulated resources for 

station design and  order 

the fire engine.  Generates 

interest savings by deferring 

the issuance of the debt 

until it is needed for 

construction. 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? Approximately $2.1M 

(design and pay for the cab 

and chassis of the engine) 

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  Designated Revenue 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? Design will be paid from 

accumulated fund balance 

generated by the existing 

tax. 

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

55



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

This is a strategy allowed for in the State Statutes as referenced in the Resolution.   

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None. 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

Manage the health, safety and welfare in a way that promotes a sense of security 

and well-being for residents, businesses, and visitors.  Establish the capital and human 

infrastructure to support and maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and dynamic 

community. 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the Resolution. 

Attachments: 

Resolution 

 

 

56



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION ______, 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GREELEY CITY COUNCIL DECLARING ITS OFFICIAL INTENT TO 

REIMBURSE ITSELF WITH THE PROCEEDS OF ONE OR MORE TAX-EXEMPT FINANCINGS FOR 

CERTAIN CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Greeley, Colorado (the “City”) in the State of 

Colorado (the “State”) is a political subdivision duly organized and existing pursuant to the 

constitution and laws of the Sate; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “Council”) is the governing body of the City; 

and  

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City of 

Greeley to make certain capital expenditures which general consist of the construction of fire 

stations and the acquisition of capital equipment; and  

WHEREAS, the Council currently intends and reasonably expects to enter into one or 

more tax-exempt financing by June, 2020 (the “Financings”), in an aggregate amount which is 

currently estimated not to exceed $12,900,000, to reimburse the City of the portion of such 

capital construction and equipment incurred or to be incurred subsequent to a period 

commencing 60 days prior to the date hereof, and ending prior to the later of 18 months of the 

date of such capital equipment; and  

WHEREAS, the Council hereby desires to declare its official intent, pursuant to 26 C.F.R. 

§ 1.150-2, to reimburse the City for such capital expenditures with the proceeds of the City’s 

Financings 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Greeley as follows: 

1. The City shall, presently intends, and reasonably expects to finance the capital 

construction of two fire stations and a fire engine with legally available funds. 

2. All the capital construction and equipment covered by this Resolution were or will be 

made on and after the day which is 60 days prior to the effective date of this Resolution. 

3. The City presently intends and reasonable expects to enter into the Financings within 18 

months of the first expenditure of moneys for the capital equipment, whichever is later, 

and to allocate from said Financing as aggregate amount not to exceed the Advanced 

Amount to reimburse the City for its expenditures. 

57



4. All prior acts and doings of the officials, agents and employee of the City which are in 

conformity with the purpose and intend of the Resolution, and in furtherance of the 

equipment purchase, shall be and the same herby are in all respects ratified, approved 

and confirmed. 

5. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage, as provided by the 

Greeley City Charter.   

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS 15TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2019.  

 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

By:______________________________   By:_______________________________ 
City Clerk      Mayor 

 

 

58



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 15 

Key Staff Contact: Mark Jones, Police Chief, 970-350-9665 

  

Title:  

Consideration of a resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding between the City of Greeley and the Board of County Commissioners 

of Weld County regarding wireless radio services 

Summary: 
 

This resolution is between the City of Greeley, Police and Fire Department and the 

Weld County Regional Communications Center for the use of wireless radio services. 

Previous public safety contracts through Motorola, cost approximately $99,000 per 

year. This intergovernmental agreement provides a $48,900 savings for the City of 

Greeley. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? $31,000 police, $19,100 fire = 

$50,100 

What is the annual impact? Unknown 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  General Fund 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? General Fund 

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

None. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None. 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

Safety – Crime prevention and suppression 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

59



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the Resolution. 

Attachments: 

Resolution 

Board of County Commissioners of Weld County, Colorado Resolution 

WCRCC User Agreement Amendments for Wireless Radio Services 

 

 

60



THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

RESOLUTION _________, 2019 
 

 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF GREELEY’S POLICE 

AND FIRE DEPARTMENT AND THE WELD COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY OF WELD, COLORADO. 

   

 WHEREAS, the City of Greeley’s Police and Fire Department and the Weld County 

Regional Communications Center (WCRCC) desire to enter into an intergovernmental 

agreement regarding wireless radio services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Greeley Police and Fire Departments are willing to cooperate in this 

matter under terms and conditions set forth in the WCRCC user agreement amendment for 

wireless radio services; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Greeley to enter into 

this agreement between the Greeley Police and Fire Department and the WCRCC for law 

enforcement wireless radio services.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 

 

1.   The Mayor of the City of Greeley, Colorado, is authorized to execute a Memorandum 
of Understanding between and the City of Greeley, Colorado and Weld County Board of County 
Commissioners 

 
2.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS 15TH DAY OF JANUARY, 

2019. 

 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      John Gates, Mayor 

61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



WELD COUNTY REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS 
USER AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 
FOR WIRELESS RADIO SERVICES 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE WELD COUNTY REGIO 	COMMANICATIONS USER AGREEMENT (this 
"First Amendment") is made and entered into this 	ay of  Lietlaq/5047  2018 by and between 
SlefifliGeV Ate Par/i6triertur-   and the COUNTY OF WELD, a body corporate and politic 

of the State of Colorado, by and through its Board of County Commissioners (the "County"). 

WHEREAS, each participating City/Town/District shall agree to these changes upon the expiration of any 
current vendor contract to perform similar services. The Amendment must be approved no later than 
January 1, 2019 and no earlier than June 1, 2018, and 

WHEREAS, the costs of the maintenance shall be provided in an appendix to each City/Town/District. For 
2018-2019 they are attached hereto and incorporated herein as Appendix 1. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein contained and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby confessed and 
acknowledged, the parties agree to amend and modify the WELD COUNTY REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS 
USER AGREEMENT by adding the following provisions, which shall be incorporated and included as an 
amendment: 

1. PROVISION OF WIRELESS RADIO SERVICES BY THE COUNTY: 

a. The County, through Public Safety Wireless, shall provide the following additional 
Wireless services: 

i. Annual Radio Programming (1-Radio Template Change) 
ii. Provide all parts and labor to repair equipment for Vendor Supported 

Models as outlined in Appendix 2 
iii. Annual Over-the-Air Identification Radio Preventative Maintenance (to 

include PM work if identified) 
iv. 24x7 Consolette Service 
v. Alias Changes 
vi. Database Management of FRCC/DTRS 
vii. Annual Radio Training Resources 
viii. Warranty Repair/Replacement Service for Vendor Supported Models as 

outlined in Appendix 2 
ix. Annual Reporting to the Director of Public Safety Communications for 

Radio Maintenance and Programming 

b. The Public Safety Wireless services listed in 1(a) shall be provided to the 
City/Town/District Monday through Friday 8am to 5pm with exception of above 
identified 24x7 services 

2018-4165('i) 

70



WELD COUNTY REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS 
USER AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 
FOR WIRELESS RADIO SERVICES 

c. If the City/Town/District desires additional Wireless services beyond those described 

herein, it may request such services from the County. It shall be in the sole discretion 

of the County whether to accommodate such requests and any additional services 

provided shall be the subject of a separate agreement. 

d. The County is not responsible for the maintenance or costs associated with: 

i. Batteries, Antennas, Microphones, Speakers, Accessories 

ii. Liquid Damage or Abuse 

iii, 	Act of God 

iv. 	Lightning Damage 

v, 	Station Alerting past demark of Radio/Consolette 

vi. 	Audio Headsets past Radio Demark 

e. Additional Services Offered: 

i. Radio Firmware upgrade at cost 

ii. Radio Programming at cost 

2. Model numbers which are not pre-approved by the county, or are from a vendor who is 

not on the list in Appendix 2 shall not be eligible for the maintenance or support under 

this agreement, 

3. The cost basis for public safety wireless services for the following year will be provided 

to the City/Town/District by June 1 of each year, based on Annual User Radio System 

Inventory as of May 15th of each year. 

4. The Amendment must be approved no later than January 1, 2019 or the County reserves 

the right to exercise the termination provisions in the User Agreement. 

5. Except as expressly amended or modified herein all terms and provisions of the WELD 

COUNTY REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS USER AGREEMENT shall remain the same. In the 

event of any conflict between the terms and provisions of this First Amendment and the 

terms and provisions of the WELD COUNTY REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS USER 

AGREEMENT, the terms and provisions of this First Amendment shall control. 

71



CITY/TOWN/DISTRICT: 

a lAv/he rogrpor 

Date 	  

Name:  1)440 LY414-4/ 

Deputy Cle to th Steve Moreno, Chair DEC 2 6 2018 

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 

BY: 

WELD COUNTY REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS 
USER AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 
FOR WIRELESS RADIO SERVICES 

I 	WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this Agreement this 	1r  day of 

	 , 201  g'  • 

Title:  PLejf Cif/re/7r 

WELD COUNTY: 

ATTEST: ddri
tet) 
	jejezo;ok. 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Weld County Clerk to the Board 
	

WELD COUNTY, COLORADO 

Elected Official or Department Head 

72



WELD COUNTY REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS 
USER AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 
FOR WIRELESS RADIO SERVICES 

APPENDIX 1 

COSTS FOR PUBLIC SAFETY WIRELESS SERVICES 

WIRELESS RADIO SERVICES COSTS 

a. beginning June 1, 2018 and for the year 2019 the costs are the Flat Rate of: 

i. $100.00 per Mobile Radio 

ii. $100.00 per Portable Radio 

iii. $500.00 per Consotette Radio 

iv. $40.00 per radio for additional reprogramming 

b. 	All parts listed in section d.i. of the amendment will be provided at cost to the 
City/Town/District 

73



WELD COUNTY REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS 
USER AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 
FOR WIRELESS RADIO SERVICES 

APPENDIX 2 

SUPPORTED VENDOR LIST 

Motorola 

Bendix King 

Harris 

EF Johnson 

Kenwood 

74



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 16 

Key Staff Contact: Joel Hemesath, Public Works Director, 970-350-9795 

  

Title:  

Consideration to approve a change order in the amount of $150,000 to the contract 

with All Pro Paving for concrete infrastructure repair within several City of Greeley 

Parks and Keep Greeley Moving Neighborhoods, and bringing the revised contract 

amount from $1,184,935.16 to $1,334,935.16 

Summary: 
 

Change Order #2 with All Pro Paving involves additional concrete repairs required to 

meet ADA standards and mitigate trip hazards in City parks and in Keep Greeley 

Moving neighborhoods.  All Pro Paving has a 2018 contract with the City of Greeley, 

executed in April 2018, for concrete repairs throughout the City.  Change Order #2 for 

$150,000.00 will increase the contract total from $1,184,935.16 to $1,334,935.16 an 

increase of 12%, but 37% between change orders 1 and 2.   

 

This concrete work would have been completed normally by year end, but repairs to 

the concrete roundabout on 29th Street west of 65th Avenue in the St. Michael’s 

subdivision near the new UC Health hospital were prioritized above the some of the 

other work scheduled for 2018.  Our 2018 concrete contractor is wanting to continue 

work over the winter when weather permits, so the work in the parks and 

neighborhoods is being added to the All Pro Paving contract to get this work 

completed sooner and not add to the workload in spring/summer of 2019. 

 

Change order 1 was for $200,000 to do the work on the 29th Street roundabout. 

 

Fiscal Impact:  

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? Onetime - $150,000 

What is the annual impact? N/A 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  Food Tax: $87,000 

Keep Greeley Moving: 

$64,000 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? Food Tax 

Keep Greeley Moving (Sales 

Tax) 

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

75



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

Greeley Municipal Code 4.20.160 requires that change orders over 25% of the 

contract amount be referred to City Council for approval. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None. 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

Infrastructure and Safety – Pedestrian Infrastructure 

Safety – Pedestrian Safety 

Decision Options:  

1. Approve change order as recommended, 

2. Amend change order and approve as amended, 

3. Deny change order, or 

4. Continue item to a date specific. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to approve Change Order #2. 

Attachments: 

All Pro Paving’s Original Contract 

Change Order #1 

 

 

76



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

CityofGreeley, Colorado
ContractInformation

ProjectName2018 Concrete Repair ProgramBid Number: FA17-365-2

Vendor:AllProPavement

extra $135k isavailable after Joseposts thePO#:18000691BUN/ 3210006006190900 8202 ( 
appropriation.) 

Contract Amount: $984,935.16

Engineers Estimate:  $  

Purchasing Manager: 

Project Manager Reviewed: 

Department Reviewed: 

Department Reviewed: 

Department Reviewed: 

Department Reviewed: 

Department Head Reviewed: 

Other Relevant Information about Contract: THISISYEAR2OFA3YEAR CONTRACT. 

77



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

78



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

79



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

80



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

81



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

82



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

83



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

84



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

85



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

86



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

87



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

88



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

89



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

90



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

91



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SECTION 00350

LIENWAIVERRELEASE

TO:    CityofGreeley, Colorado (hereinafter referredtoas "theOWNER".) 

FROM: ALLPRO( hereinafter referredtoas “theCONTRACTOR”) 

PROJECT:  2018CONCRETE REPAIR-FA18-365-2

1.TheCONTRACTORdoes herebyreleaseallMechanic'sLiensRights, MillerActClaim (40
USCA270), StopNotice, EquitableLiensandLaborandMaterialBondRightsresulting from
laborand/ormaterials, subcontract work, equipmentorotherwork, rents, servicesorsupplies
heretofore furnished inandfortheconstruction, design, improvement, alteration, additions to
orrepairoftheabove describedproject. 

2.Thisreleaseisgivenforandinconsideration ofthesumof $      andothergoodand
valuable consideration.  Ifnodollarconsideration ishereinrecited, itisacknowledged that
otheradequate consideration hasbeenreceivedbytheCONTRACTORfor thisrelease. 

3.Infurtherconsideration ofthepaymentmadeortobemadeasabovesetforth, andto
inducetheOWNERto makesaidpayment, theCONTRACTORagrees todefendandhold
harmless theOWNER, employees, agentsandassignsfrom anyclaimorclaimshereinafter
madebytheCONTRACTORand/oritsmaterialsuppliers, subcontractors oremployees, 
servants, agentsorassignsofsuchpersonsagainst theproject.  TheCONTRACTOR agreesto
indemnifyorreimburseallpersonssorelyinguponthisreleaseforanyandallsums, including
attorney'sfeesandcosts, whichmaybeincurredastheresultofanysuchclaims. 

4.Itisacknowledged thatthedesignation oftheaboveprojectconstitutes anadequate
description ofthepropertyandimprovements forwhichtheCONTRACTORhas received
consideration forthisrelease. 

5.Itisfurtherwarranted andrepresented thatallsuchclaimsagainst theCONTRACTORor the
CONTRACTOR'ssubcontractors and/ormaterialsuppliershavebeenpaidorthatarrangements, 
satisfactory totheOWNERand CONTRACTOR, havebeenmadeforsuchpayments. 

6.Itisacknowledged thatthisreleaseisforthebenefitofandmayberelieduponbythe
OWNER, theCONTRACTOR, andconstruction lenderandtheprincipalandsuretyonanylabor
andmaterialbondfortheproject. 

92



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

LienWaiverRelease
Page2

7.Inadditiontotheforegoing, thisinstrument shallconstitutea *** (full, finalandcomplete) 
partial) releaseofallrights, claimsanddemandsoftheCONTRACTORagainst theOWNER

arisingoutoforpertaining totheabovereferenced project.  Ifpartial, allrightsandclaimson
theprojectarereleaseduptoandincluding the dayofMonth, 20  . 

Datedthis _________________ dayof _____________, 20____. 

CONTRACTOR

By:  ______________________________ 

Title:  _____________________________ 

STATEOF______________ )  
ss.  

COUNTYOF____________ )  

Theforegoing instrument wasacknowledged beforemethis _________dayof _____________,  

20___by _____________________________________________________________________. 

MyCommission expires: 

NotaryPublic

Strikewhennotapplicable

93



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

94



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SECTION 00410

NOTICETOPROCEED

Month   , 20

TO:ALLPRO

PROJECT: 2018CONCRETE REPAIR-FA18-365-2

ToWhomItMayConcern:  

Youareherebynotifiedtocommence workontheabove-referenced project inaccordance with
theContractAgreement datedMonth   , 20  .  

Youaretocomplete thisprojectbyMonth   , 20

CITYOFGREELEY, COLORADO

By: __________________________________________________________ 

Title: _________________________________________________________ 

Signature

95



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SECTION 00420

PROJECT MANAGER NOTIFICATION

20______ 

TO: ALLPRO

PROJECT:2018CONCRETEREPAIR- FA18-365-2

TheOwnerherebydesignates RickDorseyas itsProjectManagerandauthorizes thisindividual,  
undertheauthorityoftheDirectorofPublicWorkstomakeallnecessary andproperdecisions
withreference totheproject.  Contract interpretations, changeordersandotherrequests for
clarification orinstructionshallbedirectedtotheProjectManager.  TheDirectorofPublic
Worksshall beauthorized tobindtheOwnerwithrespecttoanydecisionmadeinaccordance
withthecontractdocument. 

CITYOFGREELEY,COLORADO

Title: 

96



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SECTION 00430

CERTIFICATEOFSUBSTANTIALCOMPLETION

TO: 

PROJECT:2018CONCRETEREPAIR- FA18-365-2

Projectordesignatedportionshallinclude: DescribeScope. 

Theworkperformedunderthiscontracthasbeenreviewedandfoundtobesubstantially
complete.TheDateofSubstantialCompletionoftheProjectorportionthereofdesignated
aboveisherebyestablishedasMonth, 20   . 

ThedateofcommencementofapplicablewarrantiesrequiredbytheContractDocumentsis
stipulatedinSection00440- Certificate ofFinalAcceptance. 

DEFINITIONOFDATEOFSUBSTANTIALCOMPLETION

TheDateofSubstantial Completion oftheWorkordesignated portion thereof isthedate
certifiedbytheProjectManagerwhenconstruction issufficiently complete, inaccordance with
theContractDocuments, sotheOwnercanoccupyorutilizetheWorkordesignated portion
thereoffortheuseforwhichitisintended, asexpressed intheContractDocuments. 

Alistofitemstobecompletedorcorrected, preparedbytheContractor andverifiedand
amendedbytheProjectManager isattachedhereto.  Thefailuretoincludeanyitemsonsuch
listdoesnotaltertheresponsibility oftheContractor tocompleteallWorkinaccordance with
theContractDocuments. Thedateofcommencement ofwarranties foritemsontheattached
listisasstipulated inSection00440 – CertificateofFinalAcceptance. 

TheOwnershalloperateandmaintain theWorkorportionoftheWorkdescribed abovefrom
theDateofSubstantial Completion andberesponsible forallcostsassociated withthe
completed workexcludingcostrelatedtowarranteework.  

97



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

CertificateofSubstantial Completion
Page2

TheContractor willcompleteorcorrecttheWorkonthelistofitemsattachedheretowithin
daysfromtheaboveDateofSubstantial Completion. 

Contractor

Owner

Note--Owner'sandContractor'slegalandinsurancecounsel shouldreviewanddetermine
insurance requirements andcoverage; Contractor shallsecureconsentofsuretycompany, if
any.) 

98



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SECTION 00440

CERTIFICATEOFFINALACCEPTANCE

TO: 

PROJECTNAME:2018CONCRETEREPAIR- FA18-365-2

Theworkperformedunderthiscontracthasbeenreviewedandfoundtomeetthedefinitionof
finalacceptance.ThisCertificateofFinalAcceptanceappliestothewholeofthework. 

TheDateofFinalAcceptance oftheProjectdesignatedabove isherebyestablishedas:Month
20at2:00pm. Thisdateisalsothedateofcommencementofapplicablewarranties

associatedwiththeProjectdescribedaboveandasrequiredbytheContractDocuments. 

DEFINITIONOFDATEOFFINALACCEPTANCE

TheDateofFinalAcceptance oftheWorkisthedate certifiedbythe CityofGreeley’sProject
Managerwhentheworkis100% complete,inaccordancewiththeContractDocuments, as
amendedbychangeorder(s),orasamendedbelow: 

AmendmenttotheCertificateofFinalCompletion( ifany):DecribeAmmendments. 

TheContractorand/ortheCityOfGreeleyshalldefineanyclaimsorrequestsforadditional
compensationabove(orasattachmentstothisdocument). 

FinalAcceptanceshallnotbeachieveduntiltheContractorprovidestheCityOfGreeleywithall
contractspecifiedContractorandSub- contractorcloseoutdocumentsincludingfinallien
waivers,releases,insurances,manuals,training,testresults,warranties,andotherdocuments
requiredbytheContractDocuments, asamended. 

UponissuanceoftheCertificateofFinalAcceptancetheContractormaysubmitanapplication
forpaymentrequestingfinalpaymentfortheentireWork. Liquidateddamages(ifany)willbe
assessedatthistime. 

Contractor’sacceptanceofthefinalpaymentshallconstituteawaiverbytheContractorofall
claimsarisingoutoforrelatingtotheWork; exceptasnotedunder‘Amendmenttothe
CertificateofFinalAcceptance’above. 

Agreed: 

20__________________________20
Contractor’sRepresentative DATE ProjectManager (COG)       DATE

99



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SECTION00510

CITYOFGREELEY
GENERALCONDITIONSOFTHECONTRACTFORCONSTRUCTION

REVISEDNOVEMBER2016)  

ARTICLE1
DEFINITIONS

Bidder1.1:  Anarchitect, engineer, individual, firm, partnership, corporation orcombination
thereof, submitting aBidfortheWork.  

ChangeNotice1.2:  Adocument issued totheContractor specifying aproposed change to
theContract Documents.  Unless otherwise expressly statedonthefaceoftheChange Notice, a
Change Notice isaproposal whichmayresult inaChange Order.  

ChangeOrder1.3:  Adocument issued totheContractor modifying theContract.  

ConstructionContract1.4:  The Contract Documents, including theContract for
construction (hereinafter “thecontract”) executed bytheContractor andtheOwner covering the
performance oftheWork including thefurnishing oflabor, superintendence, materials, toolsand
equipment asindicated intheContract Documents.  

ContractDocuments1.5:  Documents applicable toandspecific totheconstruction ofan
individual Project, including theContract andallotherdocuments executed bytheContractor and
Owner covering theperformance ofthework including butnotlimited to Specifications, Insurance
Requirements, Contract Drawings, Conditions oftheContract (General andSupplementary), Owner- 
Contractor Agreement, allAddenda, allchange orders issued afterexecution oftheContract,  
Performance andPayment Bonds, andanyotherspecial provisions. 

ContractDrawings(ProjectDrawings) 1.6: Contract drawings, Theplans, toinclude but
notlimited toplans, profiles, typical crosssections, general cross-sections, elevations, schedules,  
schematics, notes anddetails whichshowlocations, character, dimensions, anddetailsoftheWork.  

Contractor: 1.7 Theindividual, firm, partnership, orcorporation, orcombination thereof,  
private, municipal, orpublic, including jointventures, which, asanindependent contractor, has
entered intoacontract with theOwner, whoisreferred tothroughout theContract Documents by
singular number andmasculine gender.  

Days1.8:  Unless otherwise designated, daysmeancalendar days.  

ExtraWork1.9:  Worknotprovided forintheContract asawarded butfoundtobe
essential tothesatisfactory completion oftheContract, within itsintended scope.  Reimbursement for
extraworkisgoverned byArticle28, CHANGES, orArticle31, CONTRACTOR PROPOSALS.   

Page 1of44 100



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

FieldOrder1.10: Awrittenorder issued toacontractor bytheOwner, orProject Manager,  
effecting aminorchange orclarification withinstructions toperform worknotincluded inthecontract. 
Theworkwilleventually become aChange Order. AfieldOrder isanexpedient process used inan
emergency orneedsituation thatinmanycases doesnotinvolve anadjustment tothecontract sum
oranextension ofthecontract sumoranextension ofthecontract time.  

FinalAcceptance1.11:  Theformal written acceptance bytheOwnerofthecompleted
Work. 

ForceAccount1.12:  Amethod ofpayment, other thanlumpsumorunitprice, forWork
ordered byChange Orderorbywritten notice fromtheOwner.  Reimbursement forforceaccount
workisgoverned byArticle36, FORCE ACCOUNT WORK.  

Furnishing1.13:  Manufacturing, fabricating anddelivering tothesiteoftheWorkmaterials,  
plant, power, tools, patterns, supplies, appliances, vehicles andconveyances necessary orrequired
forthecompletion oftheWork.  

GeneralConditions (GC) 1.14:  Asection oftheContract Documents whichspecifies, in
general, thecontractual conditions.  

GeneralTerms1.15:  Directed, required, permitted, ordered, designated, selected,  
prescribed orwordsoflikeimportshallbeunderstood tomeanthedirection, requirement, permission,  
order, designation, selection orprescription oftheProject Manager.  Approved, satisfactory, equal,  
necessary orwordsoflikeimportshallbeunderstood tomeanapproved by, acceptable to,  
satisfactory to, equal, necessary intheopinion oftheProject Manager.  

Indicated1.16:  Atermmeaning asshown ontheContract Drawings, orasspecified and
detailed intheContract Documents.  

Installation, Install, orInstalling1.17:  Completely assembling, erecting andconnecting
material, parts, components, appliances, supplies andrelated equipment specified orrequired forthe
completion oftheWork.  

LimitofWork1.18:  Boundary withinwhichtheWork, excepting utilityanddrainage workin
Public RightOfWayandEasements, istobeperformed.  

NoticetoProceed1.19:  Written notice fromtheOwner totheContractor toproceed with
theWork.  

NoticeofTermination1.20:  Written notice fromtheOwner totheContractor tostopwork
under theContract onthedateandtotheextent specified intheNoticeofTermination.  

Owner1.21:  TheCityofGreeley.  

PermanentDrainageEasement1.22:  Area required toconstruct andmaintain permanent
drainage facilities forretention, release, andpassage ofsurface water.  

PermanentUtilityEasement1.23:  Arearequired toconstruct andmaintain utility facilities.  

Page 2of44 101



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

Project1.24:  Thatspecific portion oftheWork indicated intheContract Documents.  

ProjectManager1.25: TheOwner’sdesignated representative.  TheProject Manager has
theauthority todelegate portions ofhisresponsibilities toothers.   

Provide1.26:  Inreference towork tobeperformed bytheContractor, provide means
furnish andinstall completely inplace.  

PunchList1.27: Workdetermined tobeincomplete orunacceptable attimeofinspection for
substantial completion.  

Samples1.28:  Physical examples which illustrate materials, equipment, fixtures and
workmanship whichestablish standards bywhich theWorkwillbejudged.  

Schedule1.29: Acceptable schedules areBARorGANTT ChartorCPMschedule.  

ShopDrawings1.30:  Documents furnished bytheContractor toillustrate specific portions
oftheWork.  ShopDrawings include drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, charts, brochures,  
tablesandotherdatadescribing fabrication andinstallation ofspecific portions oftheWork.  

Specifications1.31:  Adocument applicable toconstruction contracts containing the
Technical Provisions.  

Subcontractor1.32:  Anyperson, firmorcorporation, other thantheemployees ofthe
Contractor, whocontracts withtheContractor tofurnish labor, material orlaborandmaterials, under
thisContract.  

SpecialProvisions1.33:  Provisions especially applicable tothisContract which invoke,  
modify andsupplement theGeneral Conditions which areincluded intheContract Documents.  

SubstantialCompletion1.34      :  Thestate intheprogress ofWorkwhentheWork, ora
designated portion thereof, issufficiently complete inaccordance withtheContract Documents, so
thatOwner mayaccess, occupy, use, andenjoytheProject, ordesignated portion thereof, forits
intended purpose.  Substantial Completion shallnotoccuruntilatemporary orpermanent Certificate
ofOccupancy isissuedandonlyminorpunch listitemsremain forsuchWork.  

TechnicalProvisions1.35      : Those provisions which specify thematerials andexecution of
construction forworkentering intotheproject.  

Work1.36:  Theconstruction, labor, materials, equipment, andcontractual requirements as
indicated intheContract Documents, including alterations, amendments, orextensions thereto made
byauthorized changes.  

WorkSite1.37:  Theareaenclosed bytheLimitofWork indicated intheProject Drawings
andboundaries oflocalstreets andpublic easements inwhich theContractor istoperform work
under theContract.  Itshallalsoinclude areasobtained bytheContractor foruseinconnection with
theContract, when contiguous totheLimitofWork.  

Page 3of44 102



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE2
INTERPRETATION

2.1 Thedocuments comprising theContract Documents arecomplementary andindicate
theconstruction andcompletion oftheWork.  Anything mentioned intheContract Specifications and
notshown ontheContract Drawings, orshown ontheContract Drawings andnotmentioned inthe
Contract Specifications, shallbeoflikeeffectasifshownormentioned inboth.  

2.2 Where "asindicated", "asdetailed", orwordsofsimilar importareused, itshallbe
understood thatthereference ismadetothespecifications ordrawings accompanying thisContract
unless stated otherwise.  

2.3 References toArticles orSections include subarticles orsubsections under theArticle
Reference (forexample, areference toArticle2isalsoareference to2.1through 2.9, andreferences
toparagraphs similarly include references tosubparagraphs).  

2.4 Referenced Standards:  Material andworkmanship specified bythenumber, symbol, or
titleofareferenced standard shallcomply withthelatestedition orrevision thereof andamendments
andsupplements thereto ineffectonthedateoftheInvitation toBidexcept whereaparticular issue
isindicated.  

2.5 Precedence ofContract Documents:  Except asprovided byParagraph 2.1ofthis
Article, theConstruction Contract governs overotherContract Documents, except thataChange
Ordergoverns overtheContract andpreviously issued Change Orders.  TheContract Conditions
govern overtheGeneral Conditions.  

2.6 Explanations:  Should itappear thattheWorktobedoneoranyofthematters relative
thereto arenotsufficiently detailed orexplained intheContract Documents, theContractor shallapply
totheOwner forsuchexplanation provided aspartoftheContract.  Disputes overquestions offact
whicharenotsettled byagreement shallbedecided byOwner.  Suchdecision thereon willbefinal,  
subject toremedies underArticle35, DISPUTES.  

2.7 Should therebeanyconflict, detailed instructions govern overgeneral instructions,  
detail drawings haveprecedence oversmallscale drawings, anddimensions haveprecedence over
scale. 

2.8 Omissions andMisdescriptions:  TheContractor shallcarefully studyandcompare all
drawings, specifications, Contract Documents andother instructions; shallverifyall dimensions on
theContract Drawings before layingouttheWork; shallnotify the Project Manager ofallerrors,  
inconsistencies oromissions whichhemaydiscover; andobtain specific instructions inwriting before
proceeding withtheWork.  TheContractor shallnottakeadvantage ofapparent errorsoromissions
whichmaybefound intheContract Documents, buttheProject Manager shallbeentitled tomake
suchcorrections therein andinterpretations thereof ashemaydeemnecessary forthefulfillment of
their intent.  TheContractor shallberesponsible forallerrors inconstruction whichcouldhavebeen
avoided bysuchexamination andnotification, subject toremedies under Article35, Disputes.  

Page 4of44 103



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE3
ENTITYOFCONTRACTOR

3.1IftheContractor hereunder iscomprised ofmore thanonelegalentity, eachsuchentity
shallbejointlyandseverally liablehereunder.  

ARTICLE4
LIABILITYANDINDEMNIFICATION

4.1 Itisagreed thattheContractor assumes responsibility andliability fordamages, lossor
injuryofanykindornature whatever topersons orproperty caused byorresulting fromorin
connection withanyact, action, neglect, omission, orfailure toactwhenunderadutytoactonthe
partoftheContractor oranyofhisofficers, agents, employees, orsubcontractors inhisortheir
performance oftheWork.  TheContractor shall indemnify andholdharmless theGovernment, the
State, theOwner andtheProject Manager andtheirmembers, officers, agents, oremployees from
claims, losses, damages, charges, costs, orexpenses, including attorney'sfees, whether director
indirect, towhich theyoranyofthemmaybeputorsubjected tobyreason ofanysuchlossorinjury.  

ARTICLE5
PROTECTIONOFEXISTINGVEGETATION, STRUCTURES, UTILITIES,  

ANDIMPROVEMENTSANDLANDSURVEYMONUMENTS

5.1 AContractor shall preserve andprotect existing vegetation suchastrees, shrubs, and
grassonoradjacent totheworksitewhicharenotindicated toberemoved andwhichdonot
unreasonably interfere with theconstruction workandheshall replace inkindanyvegetation, shrubs
andgrassdamaged byhimathisownexpense.  

5.2 TheContractor shallprotect fromdamage allutilities, structures, orimprovements onor
nearthesiteoftheWorkandshall repairorrestore anydamage tosuchutilities, structures, or
improvements resulting fromfailure tocomply with therequirements oftheContract orthefailure to
exercise reasonable careintheperformance oftheWork. IftheContractor failsorrefuses torepair
anysuchdamage promptly, theOwner mayhavethenecessary workperformed andcharge thecost
thereof totheContractor.  

5.3Alllandsurvey monuments shallbeprotected fromanydamage byanyworkand/or
shallbereplaced byalicensed landsurveyor licensed inthestateofColorado atthecontractor’s
expense before finalacceptance isissued.  

ARTICLE6
CONTRACTUALRELATIONSHIPS

6.1Nocontractual relationship willberecognized under theContract other thanthe
contractual relationship between theOwner andtheContractor.  

Page 5of44 104



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE7
ASSIGNMENT

7.1 Theperformance oftheWorkunder theContract shallnotbeassigned except upon
writtenconsent oftheOwner.Consent willnotbegiventoanyproposed assignment whichwould
relieve theContractor orhissurety oftheir responsibilities under theContract.  TheContractor shall
notassign anymonies dueortobecome duetohimunder theContract without theprevious written
consent oftheOwner.  

ARTICLE8
SUBCONTRACTORS

8.1 Unless otherwise required bytheContract Documents ortheBidding Documents, the
Contractor, assoonaspracticable after theawardoftheContract, nottoexceed 3days, shall furnish
totheOwnerandtheProject Manager, inwriting thenames ofthesubcontractors, persons orentities
including thosewhoaretofurnish materials orequipment fabricated toaspecial design) proposed

foreachoftheprincipal portions oftheWork.  TheProject Manager willpromptly replytothe
Contractor inwriting whether ornottheOwnerortheProject Manager, afterdueinvestigation, has
reasonable objection toanysuchproposed personorentity.  Failure oftheOwner orProject Manager
toreplypromptly shallconstitute noticeofnoreasonable objections.  

ARTICLE9
CONDITIONSAFFECTINGTHEWORK

9.1 TheContractor shallberesponsible fortaking steps reasonably necessary toascertain
thenature andlocation oftheWork, andthegeneral andlocalconditions whichcanaffect theWork
orthecostthereof.  Failure bytheContractor todosowillnotrelieve himfromresponsibility for
successfully performing workwithout additional expense totheOwner.  TheOwner willnotbe
responsible foranyunderstanding orrepresentations concerning conditions, unless such
understanding orrepresentations areexpressly stated intheContract.  

ARTICLE10
GRATUITIESANDCONFLICTSOFINTEREST

10.1 TheOwner may, bywritten notice totheContractor terminate therightoftheContractor
toproceed under thisContract ifitisfound thatgratuities (intheformofentertainment, gifts, or
otherwise) wereoffered orgivenbytheContractor, oranyagentorrepresentative oftheContractor
oranydirector, officeroremployee oftheOwneroritsProject Manager withaviewtoward securing a
contract orsecuring favorable treatment withrespect totheawarding oramending, orthemaking of
anydeterminations withrespect totheperformance ofsuchcontract.  TheOwner'sdetermination
shallbefinalsubject onlytojudicial review.  

10.2 Intheevent thisContract isterminated foranyreason, theOwner shallbeentitled to
pursue thesameremedies against theContractor asitcouldpursue intheeventofabreach ofthe
Contract bytheContractor.  

Page 6of44 105



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

10.3Nomember, officeroremployee oftheOwnerorofalocalpublicbodyduringhistenure
orforoneyearthereafter shallhaveanyinterest, directorindirect, inthisContract ortheproceeds
thereof.  "Localpublicbody" means theState, anypolitical subdivision oftheState, oranyagency of
theStateoranypolitical subdivision thereof.  

10.4Therightsandremedies oftheOwner provided inthisarticlearenotexclusive andare
inaddition toanyother rightsandremedies provided bylaworunder theContract.  

ARTICLE11
WARRANTYOFWORK

11.1 Except where longerperiods ofwarranty areindicated forcertain items, theContractor
warrants workunder theContract tobefreefromfaultymaterials andworkmanship foraperiodofnot
lessthantwoyears fromdateofFinalAcceptance, which twoyearperiod shallbecovered bythe
Performance BondandPayment Bondasspecified inthisContract.  TheContractor shall
immediately remedy, repair, orreplace, without costtotheOwnerandtotheentiresatisfaction ofthe
Owner, defects, damages, orimperfections duetofaultymaterials orworkmanship appearing insaid
workwithinsaidperiodofnotlessthantwoyears. Remedied workshallcarry thesamewarranty as
theoriginal workstarting withthedateofacceptance ofthereplacement orrepair.  Payment tothe
Contractor willnotrelieve himofanyobligation under thisContract.  

11.2 TheContractor, atnoadditional expense totheOwner, shallalsoremedy damage to
equipment, thesite, orthebuilding orthecontents thereof which istheresultofanyfailure ordefect
intheWork, andrestore anyworkdamaged infulfilling therequirements oftheContract.  Should the
Contractor failtoremedy anysuch failureordefect withinareasonable timebutnolonger thanten
10)daysafterreceipt ofnotice thereof, theOwnerwillhavetherighttoreplace, repair, orotherwise

remedy suchfailureordefectattheContractor'sexpense. 

11.3 Subcontractors', manufacturers', andsuppliers' warranties andguarantees, expressed
orimplied, respecting anypartoftheWorkandanymaterial usedtherein shallbedeemed obtained
andshallbeenforced bytheContractor fortheBenefitoftheOwner without thenecessity ofseparate
transfer orassignment thereof.  

11.4Therightsandremedies oftheOwner provided inthisArticle areinaddition toanddo
notlimitanyrightsandremedies afforded bytheContract orbylaw.  

ARTICLE12
MATERIAL

12.1 Unless otherwise indicated inthisContract, equipment, material andproducts
incorporated intheWorkcovered bythisContract shallbenewandofthegradespecified inthe
Contract forthepurpose intended.  Unless otherwise specifically indicated, reference toequipment,  
material, product orpatented process bytrade names, make, orcatalog number, shallberegarded as
establishing astandard ofquality andshallnotbeconstrued aslimiting competition, andthe
Contractor may, athisoption, useanyequipment, material, article, orprocess which isequivalent to
thatnamed, subject totherequirements ofParagraph 12.2ofthisArticle.  

Page 7of44 106



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

12.2 Within thescopeofhisauthority, theProject Manager shallbethesolejudgeofthe
quality andsuitability ofproposed alternative equipment, material, articleorprocess.  Theburden of
proving thequality andsuitability ofthealternative shallbeupontheContractor.  Information required
bytheProject Manager injudging analternative shallbesubmitted forapproval bytheContractor at
theContractor'sexpense priortoinstallation.  

12.3 Where useofanalternative material involves redesign oforchanges tootherpartsof
theWork, thecostandthetimerequired toaffect suchredesign orchange willbeconsidered in
evaluating thesuitability ofthealternative material.  Redesign andchanges inotherpartsoftheWork
shallbeattheContractor'sexpense.  

12.4 Noaction relating totheapproval ofalternative materials willbetakenbytheProject
Manager until therequest forsubstitution ismadeinwriting bytheContractor accompanied by
complete dataastothequality andsuitability ofthematerials proposed.  Suchrequest shallbemade
inample timetopermit approval without delaying theWork.  

12.5 Disposal ofmaterial outside theWork Site:  TheContractor shallmakehisown
arrangements forlegally disposing ofwasteandexcess materials outside theWorkSiteandheshall
paycosts therefore.  

12.6 Property rights inmaterials:  TheContractor shallhavenoproperty right inmaterials
after theyhavebeenattached oraffixed totheWorkorthesoil, orafterpayment hasbeenmade by
theOwner totheContractor formaterials delivered tothesiteoftheWork, orstored subject toor
under thecontrol oftheOwner asprovided inArticle24, PROGRESS PAYMENTS.  

ARTICLE13
WORKMANSHIPANDUNAUTHORIZED WORK

13.1 Work under thisContract shallbeperformed inaskillful andworkmanlike manner.  The
Project Manager may, inwriting, require theContractor toremove fromtheworkanyemployee the
Project Manager determines incompetent, careless orotherwise objectionable.  

13.2 Unauthorized work:  Work performed beyond thelinesandgrades shownonthe
Contract Drawings, approved Working andShopDrawings andExtraworkdonewithout written
authorization, willbeconsidered asunauthorized work, andtheContractor will receive no
compensation therefore.Ifrequired bytheOwner, unauthorized workshallberemedied, removed, or
replaced bytheContractor attheContractor'sexpense.  Upon failure oftheContractor toremedy,  
remove orreplace unauthorized work, theOwner maytakecourses ofactionsetoutinParagraph
15.3ofArticle15, INSPECTION.  

ARTICLE14
SUPERINTENDENCEBYCONTRACTOR

14.1TheContractor shallgivehispersonal superintendence totheWorkorhavea
competent foreman orsuperintendent, hereinafter designated hisauthorized representative,  
satisfactory totheOwner, ontheWorkSiteatalltimesduringprogress, withauthority toactforhim.   
Thereshallbeprovided atalltimes, areasonable method ofcommunication directly totheContractor
iftheOwnerexperiences anyproblems ordifficulties withtheSuperintendent.  

Page 8of44 107



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE15
INSPECTION/TESTING

15.1 Work (which termincludes butisnotrestricted tomaterials, workmanship and
manufacture andfabrication ofcomponents) willbesubject toinspection andtestbytheProject
Manager atallreasonable timesandatallplaces priortoacceptance.  Such inspection andtestisfor
thesolebenefit oftheOwner andshallnotrelieve theContractor oftheresponsibility ofproviding
quality control measures toassure thattheWork strictly complies withtheContract Documents.  No
inspection ortestbytheProject Manager shallbeconstrued asconstituting orimplying acceptance.   
Inspection ortestshallnotrelieve theContractor ofresponsibility fordamage toorlossofthematerial
priortoacceptance, norinanywayaffect thecontinuing rightsoftheOwner afteracceptance ofthe
completed Work.  

15.2 TheContractor shall, athisownexpense, replace anymaterial orcorrect any
workmanship foundnottoconform tothecontract requirements, unless theOwner consents inwriting
toacceptsuchmaterial orworkmanship withanappropriate adjustment incontract price.  The
Contractor shallpromptly segregate andremove rejected material fromthepremises athisown
expense. 

15.3 IftheContractor doesnotpromptly replace rejected material orcorrect therejected
workmanship, theOwner (1) may, byseparate contract orotherwise, replace suchmaterial orcorrect
suchworkmanship andcharge thecostthereof totheContractor, or (2) mayterminate the
Contractor'srighttoproceed inaccordance withArticle38, TERMINATION FORDEFAULT-- 
DAMAGES FORDELAY--TIMEEXTENSIONS.  

15.4 TheContractor shallgivetheProject Manager amplenotification ofinspections and
tests, andtheProject Manager willperform, except asotherwise specifically provided, said
inspections andtests insuchmanner asnottounnecessarily delay thework.  TheOwnerwillhave
therighttocharge totheContractor anyadditional costofinspection ortestorwhen reinspection or
retest isnecessitated bypriorrejection.  

15.5 Should itbeconsidered necessary, before acceptance oftheentirework, tomakean
examination ofworkalready completed byremoving ortearingoutsame, theContractor shallon
request promptly furnish allnecessary facilities, laborandmaterial therefore.  Ifsuchworkisfoundto
bedefective ornonconforming inanymaterial respect, duetothefaultoftheContractor orhis
subcontractors, heshalldefray theexpenses ofsuchexamination andofsatisfactory reconstruction.   
If, however, suchworkisfoundtomeet therequirements oftheContract, anequitable adjustment will
bemade inthecontract pricetocompensate theContractor fortheadditional services involved in
suchexamination andreconstruction.  Ifcompletion fortheworkhasbeendelayed thereby, hewill, in
addition, begranted anequitable extension oftime.  

15.6TheProject Manager shallhaveaccess totheworkduring itsconstruction.  Workdone
andmaterials provided willbesubject totheProject Manager'son-siteandoff-siteinspection and
approval.  Whenworkistobeperformed duringhoursother thanduringhisnormal schedule, the
Contractor shallsoadvise theProject Manager notlessthan24hours inadvance.  TheContractor
shallprovide access totheworkforauthorized representatives oftheOwner.  

Page 9of44 108



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

15.7TheProject Manager'sinspection andapproval ofworkormaterials shallnotrelieve the
Contractor ofanyofhisobligations tofulfill therequirements oftheContract Documents.  Workand
materials notmeeting therequirements oftheContract shallnotbeincorporated intheWork. 
Unsuitable orsubstandard workormaterials mayberejected bytheProject Manager,  
notwithstanding thatsuchworkormaterials mayhavebeenpreviously inspected bytheProject
Manager, orthatpayment therefore hasbeen included inaprogress payment.  

ARTICLE16
PERMITSANDCOMPLIANCEWITHLAWS

16.1 TheContractor shallwithout additional expense totheOwner beresponsible for
obtaining necessary licenses andpermits andforcomplying withapplicable Federal, State, County
andMunicipal laws, codesandregulations inconnection withthecommencement ofthework.  The
Contractor isrequired tosupply theProject Manager withcomplete andfinalcopiesoflicense and
permits including final inspection documentation.TheContractor shallberequired toobtain permits
athisownexpense.  TheContractor shall protect, indemnify andholdharmless theOwnerandthe
Project Manager andtheirmembers, officers, agentsandemployees against claims andliabilities
arising fromorbasedontheviolation ofrequirements oflaworpermits whether bytheContractor, his
employees, agents orsubcontractors.  

ARTICLE17
RIGHTSINLANDIMPROVEMENT

17.1 TheContractor shallmakenoarrangements withanyperson topermit occupancy or
useofanyland, structure orbuilding within theworksiteforanypurpose whatsoever, either withor
without compensation, inconflict withanyagreement between theOwner andanyowner, former
ownerortenantofsuchland, structure orbuilding.  TheContractor shallnotoccupy Owner property
outside theworksitewithout obtaining priorwritten approval fromtheOwner.  

ARTICLE18
DAMAGETOTHEWORKANDRESPONSIBILITYFORMATERIALS

18.1 TheContractor shallberesponsible formaterials delivered andworkperformed until
completion andfinalacceptance oftheentireconstruction thereof.  

18.2 TheContractor shallbeartheriskofinjury, lossordamage toanyandallpartsofthe
workforwhatever cause, whether arising fromtheexecution orfromthenon-execution ofwork.  The
Contractor shall rebuild, repair orrestore workandmaterials whichhavebeendamaged ordestroyed
fromanycause before completion andacceptance oftheworkandshallbeartheexpense thereof. 
TheContractor shallprovide security anddrainage anderect temporary structures asnecessary to
protect theworkandmaterials fromdamage.  

18.3TheContractor shallberesponsible formaterials notdelivered tothesiteforwhichany
progress payment hasbeenmadetothesameextentasifthematerials weresodelivered.  

Page 10of44 109



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE19
EMERGENCIES

19.1 Inanemergency affecting thesafety oflife, thework, oradjacent property, the
Contractor shallnotify theProject Manager asearlyaspossible thatanemergency exists.  Inthe
meantime, without special instruction fromtheProject Manager astothemanner ofdealing withthe
emergency, theContractor shallactathisowndiscretion toprevent suchthreatened lossorinjury. 
Asemergency workproceeds, theProject Manager mayissue instruction, whichtheContractor shall
follow.  Theamount ofcompensation towhichContractor isentitled onaccount ofemergency work
willbedetermined inaccordance withArticle28, CHANGES.  

ARTICLE20
NOTICETOPROCEED

20.1 TheOwner will issueaNotice toProceed totheContractor within15daysafter the
Contractor hasexecuted theContract andhasdelivered thespecified bondsandCertificates of
Insurance asrequired bytheOwner. Except asspecifically authorized inwriting bytheOwner, the
Contractor isnotauthorized toperform workunder theContract until theeffective dateoftheNotice
toProceed.  Within10daysafter theeffective dateofsuchNotice toProceed, theContractor shall
commence workandshalldiligently prosecute theWork tocompletion within thetimelimitsspecified. 
These timeperiods maybemodified bymutual written agreement ofboththeOwner andContractor.  

ARTICLE21
PROGRESSSCHEDULEANDREQUIREMENTSFORMAINTAININGPROGRESS

21.1 TheContractor shall, atthepre-construction meeting, prepare andsubmit totheProject
Manager forapproval apracticable schedule, showing theorder inwhich theContractor proposes to
carryonthework, thedateonwhichhewillstart theseveral salient features (including procurement
ofmaterials, plantandequipment) andthecontemplated dates forcompleting thesame.  The
schedule shallbeintheformofaprogress chartofsuitable scale toindicate appropriately the
percentage ofworkscheduled forcompletion atanytime.  TheContractor shallupdate thechartwith
theactual progress monthly oratsuch intervals asdirected bytheProject Manager, andshall
immediately deliver threecopies thereof.  IftheContractor failstosubmit aprogress schedule within
thetimeherein prescribed, theProject Manager maywithhold approval ofprogress payment
estimates untilsuchtimeastheContractor submits therequired progress schedule.  

21.2 TheContractor shallprosecute theworkinaccordance withthelatestapproved
Progress Schedule.  Intheevent, thattheprogress ofitemsalong thecritical pathisdelayed, the
Contractor shall revisehisplanning toinclude additional forces, equipment, shiftsorhoursas
necessary tomeet thetimeortimesofcompletion specified inthisContract.  Additional costs
resulting therefrom willbebornebytheContractor.  TheContractor shallmake suchchanges when
hisprogress atanycheckperiod doesnotmeetatleastoneofthefollowing twotests:  

21.2.1Thepercentage ofdollarvalueofcompleted workwithrespect tothetotalamount ofthe
Contract iswithin tenpercentage pointsofthepercentage oftheContract timeelapsed, or;  

21.2.2Thepercentage ofdollarvalueofcompleted workiswithin tenpercentage pointsofthe
dollarvalue whichshould havebeenperformed according totheContractors ownnetwork analysis
previously approved bytheProject Manager.  

Page 11of44 110



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

21.3 Failure oftheContractor tocomply withtherequirements under thisprovision willbe
grounds fordetermination that theContractor isnotprosecuting theworkwithsuchdiligence aswill
ensure completion within thetimeofcompletion specified inthisContract.  Upon suchdetermination,  
theOwner mayterminate theContractor'srighttoproceed withthework, oranyseparate part
thereof, inaccordance withArticle38, TERMINATION FORDEFAULT--DAMAGES FORDELAY-- 
TIMEEXTENSIONS oftheseGeneral Conditions.  

ARTICLE22
SUSPENSIONOFWORK

22.1 TheOwner reserves therighttosuspend, delayorinterrupt execution ofthewholeor
anypartofthework forsuchperiodoftimeashemaydetermine tobeappropriate forhis
convenience.  

22.2 Iftheperformance ofalloranypartoftheworkis, foranunreasonable period oftime,  
suspended, delayed, orinterrupted byanactoftheOwner intheadministration ofthisContract orby
hisfailure toactwithin thetimespecified inthisContract (orifnotimeisspecified, withina
reasonable time), anadjustment shallbemade foranyincrease inthecostofperformance ofthis
Contract (excluding profit) necessarily caused bysuchunreasonable suspension, delay, or
interruption andthecontract modified inwriting accordingly.  However, noadjustment shallbemade
under thisclause foranysuspension, delay, orinterruption totheextent (1) thatperformance would
havebeensosuspended, delayed orinterrupted byanyother cause, including thefaultornegligence
oftheContractor or (2) forwhichanequitable adjustment isprovided fororexcluded underanyother
provision ofthisContract.  

22.3 Noclaimunder thisclause shallbeallowed (1) foranycosts incurred more than20
daysbefore theContractor shallhavenotified theOwner inwritingoftheactoffailure toactinvolved
butthisrequirement shallnotapplyastoaclaimresulting fromasuspension order), and (2) unless

theclaim, inanamount stated isasserted inwriting assoonaspracticable after thetermination of
suchsuspension, delay, orinterruption, butnotlater thanthedateoffinalpayment under the
Contract. 

ARTICLE23
FINALINSPECTIONANDACCEPTANCE

23.1 Final inspection:  When theContractor notifies theProject Manager inwriting that the
workhasbeencompleted, theOwner willmake thefinal inspection forthepurpose ofascertaining
thattheworkhasbeencompleted inaccordance withtherequirements oftheContract Documents.  

23.2 Acceptance ofthework:  When theOwner hasmadethefinal inspection andhas
determined thattheworkhasbeencompleted inaccordance withtheContract Documents, the
Owner willaccept thework.  Immediately uponandafterFinalAcceptance, theContractor willbe
relieved ofthedutyofmaintaining andprotecting theworkasawhole.  TheContractor willbe
relieved ofhisresponsibility forinjury topersons orproperty ordamage totheworkwhichoccurs after
FinalAcceptance, except thattheContractor willnotberelieved ofhisresponsibility forinjury to
persons orproperty arising fromhisdutiesandobligations underArticle4, LIABILITY AND
INDEMNIFICATION. 

Page 12of44 111



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

23.3Final Acceptance shallbefinalandconclusive, andnofurther performance ofworkshall
berequired except withregards tolatentdefects, fraudorsuchgrossmistakes asmayamount to
fraud, orwithregard totheOwner'srights underanywarranty orguarantee.  Allpunch listitems must
becompleted andbuilding permits provided toOwnerbefore finalacceptance isissued. 

23.4DateofSubstantial Completion forallWorkshallbewithin thenumber ofcalendar days
bidbytheContractor ontheBidproposal. 

23.5 DateofFinalCompletion shallbethedatespecified ontheCertificate ofFinal
Completion.  

ARTICLE24
PROGRESSPAYMENTS

24.1 TheOwner willmakeprogress payments monthly astheworkproceeds, onestimates
approved bytheProject Manager.Payment willbemadewithin15daysafterprogress estimates are
approved bytheProject Manager andDepartment Head.  Onrequest oftheProject Manager, the
Contractor shall furnishadetailed estimate ofthetotalcontract priceeachshowing theamount
included therein foreachprincipal category ofthework, toprovide abasis fordetermining theamount
ofprogress payments.  Inthepreparation ofestimates, theOwner, atitssolediscretion, may
authorize material delivered onthesiteandpreparatory workdonetobetaken intoconsideration
which istobesubmitted atthepre-construction meeting.  

24.2 Inmaking suchprogress payments, fivepercent oftheestimated amount willbe
retained untilFinalAcceptance oftheContract work; inaddition, theOwner shall retain fromall
Progress payments anamount equal toallstatutory claims filedagainst theContractor.  Also,  
whenever thework issubstantially complete, theOwner ifitconsiders theamount retained tobein
excess oftheamount adequate foritsprotection, mayrelease totheContractor alloraportion of
suchexcess amount.  Substantial completion asusedinthisParagraph 24.2shallmeanthe
following:  Substantial completion oftheworkoraportion thereof shallbewhen, asdetermined by
boththeProject Manager andtheOwner, theconstruction issufficiently completed inaccordance
withtheContract Documents andanymodification theretoasprovided intheContract topermit the
Owner tooccupy theworkoraportion oftheworkfortheusewhich itisintended.  

24.3 Material andworkcovered byprogress payments shallbecome thesoleproperty ofthe
Owner.  Thisprovision shallnotbeconstrued asrelieving theContractor fromthesoleresponsibility
formaterial andworkuponwhichpayments havebeenmade, therestoration ofdamaged workoras
waiving therightoftheOwner torequire thefulfillment ofthetermsoftheContract.  

ARTICLE25
PAYMENTTOSUBCONTRACTORS

25.1 TheContractor shallpayallsubcontractors forandonaccount ofworkperformed by
suchsubcontractors inaccordance withthetermsoftheir respective subcontract. Prior tofinal
payment anunconditional lienwaiver release formwillberequired bytheOwner.  

Page 13of44 112



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE26
PAYMENTOFTAXES

26.1 Thepriceorprices fortheworkwill include fullcompensation fortaxes thatthe
Contractor isormayberequired topay.  TheContractor shallbeartheriskofanyadded orincreased
taxesoccurring during theprosecution ofthework.  Achange intaxes shallundernocircumstances
entitle theContractor toanadjustment under theContract.  

26.2TheContractor'sattention isdirected tothefact thatthisproject isexempt frompayment
ofCityofGreeley Sales andUsetaxes, andsuchtaxesmustnotbeincluded intheamount ofbid.  

26.3 TheContractor shallpayallsalesandusetaxesrequired tobepaid, shallmaintain such
records inrespect ofhiswork, whichshallbeseparate anddistinct fromallother records maintained
bytheContractor andshallbeavailable forinspection bytheOwneratanyandallreasonable times,  
andshall furnish theOwnerwithsuchdata, asmaybenecessary toenable theOwner toobtain any
refunds ofsuchtaxes whichmaybeavailable totheOwner under thelaws, ordinances, rulesor
regulations applicable tosuch taxes.  TheContractor shall require eachofhissubcontractors topay
allsalesandusetaxesrequired tobepaidandtomaintain suchrecords andfurnish theContractor
withsuchdataasmaybenecessary toenable theOwner toobtainarefund ofthetaxespaidbysuch
subcontractors. 

ARTICLE27
FINALPAYMENT

27.1After theWorkhasbeenaccepted bytheOwner, subject totheprovisions ofArticle11,  
WARRANTY OFWORK andArticle23, FINAL INSPECTION ANDACCEPTANCE oftheseGeneral
Conditions, afinalpayment duetheContractor under thisContract shallbepaiduponthe
presentation ofproperly executed voucher andafter theContractor shallhavefurnished theOwner
witharelease ofallclaims against theOwnerarising byvirtueofthisContract, other thanclaims in
stated amounts asmaybespecifically excepted bytheContractor fromtheoperation oftherelease.   
IftheContractor'sclaimtoamounts payable under thecontract hasbeenassigned under the
assignment ofClaims Actof1940, asamended (31U.S.C. 203, 41U.S.C. 15), arelease mayalsobe
required oftheassignee.  

27.2 Ifanymechanic'sormaterial man’slienornoticeofclaimofsuchlienisfiledor
recorded against theproject forlabor, materials, supplies orequipment claimed tohavebeen
furnished toorincorporated intotheWork, orforotheralleged contribution thereto, theOwner will
havetherighttoretain frompayments otherwise duetheContractor, inaddition tootheramounts
properly withheld under thisArticleorunderotherprovisions oftheContract, anamount equal tosuch
lienorliensclaimed.  

27.3Further, theOwner willhavetherighttoretain fromfinalpayment anamount equal toall
liquidated damages claimed bytheOwner.  

27.4Retainages heldbytheOwner foranystate orfederal statutory claimarising outofthe
project willbeheldbytheOwner inaddition toallretainages heldunder theprovisions ofthe
Contract. 

Page 14of44 113



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE28
CHANGES

28.1 TheOwner may, atanytime, without notice tothesureties, bywrittennotice ororder
designated orindicated tobeaChange NoticeorChange Order, makeanychange intheworkwithin
thegeneral scopeoftheContract inaccordance withalloftheOwner’sprocesses andprocedures
whether ornotsetforthherein, including butnotlimited tochanges:  

28.1.1IntheContract (including drawings anddesigns);  

28.1.2Inthemethod ormanner ofperformance ofthework;  

28.1.3InOwner furnished facilities, equipment, materials, services, orsite; or

28.1.4Directing acceleration inperformance ofthework.  

28.2Anyotherorder (which termsasusedinParagraph 28.2ofthisArticleshall include
direction, instruction, interpretation, ordetermination) fromtheProject Manager, which causes any
change, shallbetreated asaChange Noticeunder thisArticle provided thattheContractor gives the
Project Manager writtennotice stating thedate, circumstances andsourceoftheorder, andthat the
Contractor regards theorderasaChange Notice.  TheContractor shallnotify theProject Manager
whenhereceives direction, instruction, interpretation ordetermination fromanysource whichmay
causeanychange inthework.  Such notification shallbegiventotheProject Manager before the
Contractor actsonsaiddirection, instruction, interpretation ordetermination.  

28.3 Except asherein provided, noorder, statement, orconduct oftheArchitect/  Project
Manager oranyotherpersonshallbetreatedasachange under thisArticleorentitle theContractor
toanequitable adjustment hereunder.  

28.4 Ifanychange under thisArticle causes anincrease ordecrease intheContractor'scost
of, orthetimerequired for, theperformance ofanypartoftheWorkunder thisContract, whether or
notchanged byanorder, anequitable adjustment willbemadeandtheContract modified accordingly
byawritten Change Order; provided, however, thatexcept forclaims basedonerrors intheContract
Documents, noclaim forchange underParagraph 28.2ofthisArticle willbeallowed forcosts
incurred more than20daysbefore theContractor giveswritten notice asherein required; and
provided that inthecaseoferrors intheContract Documents forwhich theOwner isresponsible, the
adjustment will include increased cost, reasonably incurred bytheContractor inattempting tocomply
withsucherrors intheContract Documents.  Noclaimshallbemadeforthetypeoferrors inthe
Contract Documents which aresetforthinArticle2, INTERPRETATION.  

28.5 IftheContractor intends toassertaclaimforanequitable adjustment under thisArticle,  
heshall, within30daysafterreceipt ofawritten Change Orderunder Paragraph 28.1ofthisArticleor
thefurnishing ofawritten notice under Paragraph 28.2ofthisArticle, submit totheProject Manager a
written statement setting forththegeneral nature andmonetary extentofsuchclaim, unless this
period isextended inwriting bytheOwner.  Thestatement ofclaimhereunder maybeincluded inthe
notice underParagraph 28.2ofthisArticle.  

28.6NoclaimbytheContractor foranequitable adjustment hereunder willbeallowed unless
asserted asdescribed inParagraphs 28.4and28.5above.  

Page 15of44 114



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

28.7Payment willnotbemadeunder theprovisions ofthisArticle forsuchworkormaterials
whicharesorequired tobedoneorfurnished inoraboutorfortheperformance oftheWorkand
whicharenotmentioned, specified orindicated orotherwise provided forinthisContract orinthe
Contract Documents sofarassuchworkormaterials maybe, intheopinionoftheProject Manager,  
susceptible ofclassification underorreasonably inferred tobeincluded intheBidItemsoftheBid
Form. 

28.8 IncasetheContractor isordered toperform workunder thisArticle forwhichpayments
arenotdetermined underParagraph 28.7ofthisArticle, which intheopinion oftheOwner itis
impracticable tohaveperformed bytheContractor'sownemployees, theContractor will, subject to
theapproval oftheOwner, bepaidtheactual costtohimofsuchworkand, inaddition thereto, a
negotiated amount tocover theContractor'ssuperintendence, administration andotheroverhead
expenses.  Thetermsandconditions ofanysubcontract which theContractor maypropose toenter
intoinconnection withworkunder theprovision ofthisArticleshallbesubject tothewrittenapproval
oftheProject Manager before suchsubcontract ismade.  Thecontractor shallberesponsible forthe
workofthesubcontractors andshallbeliable therefore asifhehadperformed theworkdirectly.  

28.9 Incases other thanthose described inParagraphs 28.7and28.8above, theOwner and
theContractor (onhisownbehalf andonbehalfofhissubcontractors) shallendeavor tonegotiate a
reasonable contract priceandlineadjustment inaChange Orderontermsappropriate tothe
changed work. TheContractor willberequired tosubmitasufficiently detailed priceproposal
supported withsufficient documentation that (1) theOwnercandetermine thattheproposal reflects
allimpacts ontheContract fromworkadditions, deletions andmodifications shown intheChange
Notice beingpriced, (2) theproposed prices aresetoutinsuchawaythattheir reasonableness can
beevaluated against prices basedonadequate pricecompetition, bidunitprices, established catalog
ormarket prices ofcommercial itemssold insubstantial quantities tothegeneral public, prices setby
laworregulation, recognized published pricelistsandindices, independently developed cost
estimates andotherappropriate pricecomparisons, and (3) contract provisions relating toContract
changes costing over $100,000.00arecomplied with.  Ifanypricesorotheraspects areconditional,  
suchasonfirmorders beingmadebyacertaindateortheoccurrence ornonoccurrence ofanevent,  
theContractor shall identify theseaspects inhisproposal.  Anegotiated Change Ordershallsetout
prices, scheduling requirements, timeextensions andallcostsofanynature arisingoutofthe
issuance ofaChange Notice except forthosecostandtimeaspects explicitly reserved onthefaceof
theChange Order.  Except forthese explicit reservations, theexecution ofaChange Orderbyboth
parties willbedeemed accord andsatisfaction ofallclaimsofanynature arising fromtheissuance of
theChange Notice negotiated.  

28.10 Intheevent theContractor andtheOwner areunable toagreeupontheContractor's
entitlement toanequitable adjustment orupontheamount thereof, orintheevent thatitisinthebest
interest oftheOwner tohavetheWorkproceed pending negotiation ofamount ofanequitable
adjustment, theOwner maydirect theContractor toperform theWork inaccordance withtheOwner
order, direction, instruction, interpretation, ordetermination, withanyContract priceadjustments and
progress payments fortheWorktobedetermined onaForceAccount basis inaccordance with
Article36.  TheContractor shallcontinue diligently toperform theContract inaccordance withthe
Owner'sorder, direction, instruction, interpretation, ordetermination during negotiations withrespect
totheContractor'sentitlement toanequitable adjustment hereunder ortotheamount ofanyContract
priceadjustment ortimeextension.  TheContractor andtheOwner mayagree oncertain aspects of
anequitable adjustment andtakethose aspects outofoperation ofForceAccount provisions.  Inthe

Page 16of44 115



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

eventamutually agreeable equitable adjustment cannot bemade, theContractor shallcontinue
diligently toperform theordersasheproceeds withhisremedies underArticle35, DISPUTES, and
shallcontinue toreceive compensation onaForceAccount basis.  

28.11Forcontract changes, theOwner, StateandGovernment ortheir representative shall
havetheauditandinspection rightsasdescribed below:  

28.11.1 Where theagreed payment method foranycontract changes istobebycost
reimbursement, timeandmaterial, laborhoursoranycombination thereof, theContractor shall
maintain andtheOwneroritsrepresentatives shallhavetherighttoexamine books, records,  
documents andotherevidence andaccounting principles andpractices sufficient toreflect properly all
directandindirect costsofwhatever nature claimed tohavebeen incurred andanticipated tobe
incurred fortheperformance ofthecontract changes under thissubarticle.  

28.11.2Contract changes exceeding $100,000.00incost:  Forsubmitted costandpricing data
inconnection withpricingacontract modification referred tointhissubarticle, unless suchpricing is
basedonbidunitprices, adequate pricecompetition, established catalog ormarket pricesof
commercial itemssold insubstantial quantities tothepublic, orpricessetbylaworregulation, the
Owner orhisrepresentatives andtheComptroller General oftheUnited Statesandhis
representatives whoareemployees oftheUnited States shallhavetherighttoexamine allbooks,  
records, documents andotherdataoftheContractor related tothenegotiation oforperformance
under thecontract Change Orders forthepurpose ofevaluating theaccuracy, completeness and
currency ofthecostorpricingdatasubmitted.  Therightofexamination shallextend toalldocuments
necessary topermitadequate evaluation ofthecostorpricing datasubmitted, alongwiththe
computations andprojections usedtherein.  

28.11.3Contract changes exceeding $10,000.00butnot $100,000.00incost:  TheOwnerorhis
representatives priortotheexecution ofanycontract Change Order inthissubarticleorforaperiod
oftwelve months afterexecution shall, unless suchpricing isbasedonbidunitprices, adequate price
competition, established catalog ofmarket pricesorcommercial itemssoldinsubstantial quantities to
thepublic, orpricessetbylaworregulation, havetherighttoexamine allbooks, records, documents,  
andotherdataoftheContractor relating tothenegotiation andcontract Change Order forthe
purpose ofevaluating theaccuracy, completeness, andcurrency ofthedataissubmitted uponwhich
negotiation isorhasbeenbased.  Totheextent theexamination reveals inaccurate, incomplete or
noncurrent data, theProject Manager mayrenegotiate thecontract Change Orderpricebasedon
suchdata.  

28.11.4Contract changes oflessthan $10,000.00incost:  TheOwner mayrequire fromthe
Contractor appropriate documentation tosupport thepricesbeingnegotiated forcontract changes
under thissubarticle, andmayrefuse tocomplete negotiations untilsatisfactory documentation is
submitted. 

28.11.5Availability:  Thematerials described inParagraphs 28.11.1and28.11.2above shallbe
available attheofficeoftheContractor atallreasonable timesforinspection, auditorreproduction
until threeyears fromthedateoffinalpayment under thisContract andforrecords which relate to
Article35, DISPUTES, orlitigations orthesettlement ofclaims arising outofthenegotiation orthe
performance ofcontract changes over100,000.00, records shallbemadeavailable untilsuch
litigations orclaims havebeenresolved.  

Page 17of44 116



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

28.11.6TheContractor shall insertaclause containing alltheprovisions inthisParagraph
28.11, including thissubparagraph 28.11.6, inallsubcontracts hereunder except altered as
necessary forproper identification ofthecontracting parties andOwner.  

28.11.7Forthepurposes ofParagraph 28.11ofthisArticle, costsshall include liquidated
damages whichwouldbeassessed ifextension(s) oftimewerenotgranted bycontract Change
Order. 

28.11.8Therequirements ofthisauditsandrecords articleareinaddition tootheraudit,  
inspection andrecord keeping provisions elsewhere intheContract Documents.  

28.12Changes involving aggregate increases anddecreases inexcess of $100,000.00shall
besubject tothefollowing:  

28.12.1Achange involves aggregate increases anddecreases inexcess of $100,000.00ifthe
totalvalueofworkaffected, without regard tothearithmetic sign, exceeds thisamount; forexample, a
change orderadding work intheamount of $75,000.00anddeleting workintheamount of
50,000.00willbeconsidered toinvolve aggregate increases anddecreases of $125,000.00.  

28.12.2TheContractor shallsubmit insupport ofallitemsnotbaseduponunitpricesorlump
sumprices contained intheContract orupontheestablished pricesatwhichcommercial itemsare
soldinsubstantial quantities tothepublic, statements byhisvendors thattheprices charged the
Contractor arenotgreater thantheprices charged bytherespective vendors totheirmost favored
customers forthesame itemsinsimilar quantities.  

28.12.3Pricereductions forDefective CostorPricing Data--Pricing Adjustments:  Ifanyprice,  
including profit andfee, negotiated inconnection withanypriceadjustment wasincreased byany
significant sumsbecause:  

28.12.3.1TheContractor furnished costorpricingdatawhich werenotcomplete, accurate, and
current ascertified intheContractor'sCertificate ofCurrent CostorPricing Data;  

28.12.3.2Asubcontractor, pursuant toParagraph 28.13ofthisArticle entitled Subcontractor Cost
orPricing Data--Pricing Adjustments oranysubcontract provision therein required, furnished costsor
pricing datawhichwerenotcomplete, accurate, andcurrent ascertified intheSubcontractor's
Certificate ofCurrent CostorPricing Data;  

28.12.3.3Thesubcontractor orhisprospective subcontractor furnished costorpricing datawhich
wererequired tobecomplete, accurate, andcurrent andtobesubmitted tosupport asubcontract
costestimate furnished bytheContractor butwhichwerenotcomplete, accurate, andcurrent asof
thedatecertified intheContractor'sCertificate ofCurrent CostorPricing Data; or

28.12.3.4TheContractor orasubcontractor orhisprospective subcontractor furnished anydata,  
notwithinsubparagraphs 28.12.3.1, 28.12.3.2, or28.12.3.3above, whichwerenotcomplete,  
accurate, andcurrent assubmitted, thepriceshallbereduced accordingly andtheContract shallbe
modified inwriting asmaybenecessary toreflect suchreduction.  Anyreduction intheContract Price
duetodefective subcontract dataofaprospective subcontractor, whenthesubcontract wasnot
subsequently awarded tosuchsubcontractor, willbelimited totheamount (plusapplicable overhead

Page 18of44 117



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

andprofitmarkup) bywhich theactual subcontract, oractual costtotheContractor iftherewasno
subcontract, waslessthantheprospective subcontract costestimate submitted bytheContractor,  
provided theactualsubcontract pricewasnotaffected bydefective costorpricing data.  

28.13Subcontract CostofPricing Data-- Pricing Adjustment:  

28.13.1When negotiating achange involving increases ordecreases inexcess of $100,000.00,  
theContractor shall require subcontractors hereunder tosubmit costorpricing dataunder the
following circumstances. Prior toawardofanycost-reimbursement type, incentive orprice
redeterminable subcontract; 

28.13.1.2Prior totheawardofanysubcontract thepriceofwhich isexpected toexceed
100,000.00; 

28.13.1.3Prior tothepricing ofanysubcontract change modifications forwhich thepriceis
expected toexceed $100,000.00, except inthecaseof28.13.1.2and28.13.1.3where thepriceis
basedonadequate pricecompetition, established catalogormarket prices, commercial itemssoldin
substantial quantities tothegeneral public, orpricessetbylaworregulation.  

28.13.2TheContractor shall require subcontractors tocertify tothebestoftheirknowledge and
belief thatthecostandpricingdatasubmitted undersubparagraph 28.13.1ofthisArticleare
accurate, complete, andcurrent asofthedateofexecution, whichdateshallbeas
closeaspossible tothedateofagreement onthenegotiated priceofthecontract Change Order.  

28.13.3TheContractor shall insert thesubstance ofParagraph 28.13ofthisArticle, including
thissubparagraph 28.13.3, ineachsubcontract hereunder whichexceeds $100,000.00.  

ARTICLE29
PERFORMANCEBONDANDLABORANDMATERIALPAYMENTBOND

29.1 TheContractor shall furnishaPerformance Bondintheamount equal toonehundred
percent (100%) oftheContract Sumassecurity forthefaithful performance ofthisContract andalso
aLaborandMaterial Payment Bond inanamount notlessthanonehundred percent (100%) ofthe
Contract Sumorinapenal sumnotlessthanthatprescribed byState, orlocal law, assecurity forthe
payment ofallpersons performing laborontheProject under thisContract andfurnishing materials in
connection withthisContract.ThePerformance BondandtheLaborandMaterial Payment Bond
maybeinoneorinseparate instruments inaccordance withlocal lawandshallbedelivered tothe
Owner notlater thanthedateofexecution oftheContract.  

29.2Performance Bonds, LaborandMaterial Payment Bonds andothersuchsureties shall
provide thatthesuretyandtheContractor arebothjointlyandseverally liableandobligated under
respective Bondorothersurety agreement andshall incorporate acknowledge ofapplicable
provisions ofstate lawintoalldocuments furnished inconnection with theproject.  

ARTICLE30
DIFFERINGSITECONDITIONS

30.1 TheContractor shallwithin10daysofactualorconstructive notice ofadiffering site
condition, promptly, andbeforesuchconditions aredisturbed, notify theProject Manager inwritingof: 
1)subsurface orlatentphysical conditions atthesitediffering materially fromthose indicated in

Page 19of44 118



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

theContract Documents, or (2) unknown physical conditions atthesite, ofanunusual nature,  
differing materially fromthoseordinarily encountered andgenerally recognized asinherent inworkof
thecharacter provided forintheContract.  TheProject Manager willpromptly investigate the
conditions, andifsuchconditions materially differandcauseanincrease ordecrease inthe
Contractor'scostof, orthetimerequired for, performance ofanypartoftheworkunder theContract,  
whether ornotchanged asaresultofsuchconditions, anequitable adjustment maybemadesubject
toOwner'sapproval andtheContract modified inwriting accordingly.  

30.2NoclaimoftheContractor under thisArticlewillbeallowed unless theContractor has
given thenotice required inParagraph 30.1ofthisArticle.  

30.3NoclaimbytheContractor foranequitable adjustment hereunder willbeallowed if
asserted afterfinalpayment under thisContract.  

ARTICLE31
CONTRACTORPROPOSALS

31.1 TheContractor mayatanytimesubmit totheProject Manager forhisreview proposed
modifications totheContract Documents, supported byacost/priceproposal.  Uponacceptance of
theproposed modifications bytheOwner, aChange Orderwillbeissued.  Denialoftheproposed
modification willneither provide theContractor withanybasis forclaimfordamages norrelease the
Contractor fromcontractual responsibilities.  Anequitable adjustment intheformofacontract price
reduction willbemadeifthechange results inareduction ofthecostofperformance andthe
Contractor willnotbeentitled toshare insaidsavings unless theproposal ismadeunderParagraph
31.2ofthisArticle.  Except asprovided inParagraph 31.2ofthisArticle, theContractor willnotbe
compensated foranydirect, incidental orcollateral benefits orsavings theOwner receives asaresult
oftheproposal.  

31.2 ValueEngineering Change Proposals:  TheContractor maysubmit totheProject
Manager oneormorecostreduction proposals forchanging theContract requirements.  The
Proposals shallbebased uponasound studymade bytheContractor indicating thattheproposal:  

31.2.1Will result inanetreduction intheTotalContract amount;  

31.2.2 Willnotimpairanyessential function orcharacteristic oftheWorksuchassafety,  
service life, reliability, economy ofoperation, easeofmaintenance andnecessary standardized
features. 

31.2.3Willnotrequire anunacceptable extension ofthecontract completion time; and

31.2.4Willrequireachange intheContract Documents andsuchchange isnotalready under
consideration bytheOwner.  

31.3 TheOwner mayaccept inwholeorinpartanyproposal submitted pursuant tothe
previous Paragraph 31.2byissuingaChange Orderwhichwill identify theproposal onwhich itis
based.  TheChange Orderwillprovide foranequitable adjustment intheContract Priceandwill
reviseanyotheraffected provisions oftheContract Documents.  Theequitable adjustment inthe
Contract pricewillbeestablished bydetermining thenetsavings resulting fromtheaccepted change. 
Thenetsavings resulting fromthechange willbeshared between theContractor andtheOwner on
thebasisof50percent fortheContractor and50percent fortheOwnerandwillbelimited tothis

Page 20of44 119



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

contract foranyoneValue Engineering Change Proposal.  Netsavings willbedetermined by
deducting fromtheestimated gross savings, theContractor'scostsofdeveloping andimplementing
theproposal (including anyamount attributable toasubcontractor) andtheestimated amount of
increased costs totheOwner resulting fromthechange, suchasevaluation, implementation, 
inspection, related items, andtheOwner-furnished material.  Estimated grosssavings will include
Contractor'slabor, material, equipment, overhead, profitandbond.  TheContract pricewillbe
reduced bythesumoftheOwner'scostsandshareofthenetsavings.  Forthepurpose ofthis
Article, theapplicable provisions ofArticle 28, CHANGES, shallbeused todetermine theequitable
adjustment totheContract price.  

31.4 TheOwner willnotbeliable fordelayinactingupon, orforfailure toactupon, any
proposal submitted pursuant toParagraph 31.2ofthisArticle.  Thedecision oftheOwner astothe
Acceptance orrejection ofanysuchproposal under theContract willbefinal.  Thesubmission ofa
proposal bytheContractor willnotinitselfaffect therightsorobligations ofeitherpartyunder the
Contract. 

31.5 TheContractor shallhavetherighttowithdraw partorallofanyproposal hemaymake
underParagraph 31.2ofthisArticleatanytimepriortoacceptance bytheOwner.  Suchwithdrawal
shallbemade inwriting totheProject Manager.  Eachsuchproposal shall remain validforaperiod of
60daysfromthedatesubmitted.  IftheContractor wishes towithdraw theproposal prior tothe
expiration ofthe60-dayperiod, hewillbeliable forthecostincurred bytheOwner inreviewing the
proposal. 

31.6 TheContractor shallspecifically identify anyproposals under Paragraph 31.2ofthis
Article withtheheading "ValueEngineering Change Proposal", ortheproposal willbeconsidered as
madeunder Paragraph 31.1ofthisArticle.  

31.7TheContractor, inconnection witheachproposal hemakes foraContract Change
Notice under thisArticle shall furnish thefollowing information:  

31.7.1 adescription ofthedifference between theexisting Contract requirement andthe
proposed change, andthecomparative advantages anddisadvantages ofeach, justification whena
function orcharacteristic ofanitemisbeingaltered, andtheeffectofthechange ontheperformance
oftheenditem;  

31.7.2ananalysis anditemization oftherequirements oftheContract whichmustbechanged
iftheValueEngineering Change Proposal isaccepted andarecommendation astohowtomake
eachsuchchange (e.g., asuggested specification revision);  

31.7.3 aseparate detailed costestimate forboth theexisting Contract requirement andthe
proposed change toprovide anestimate ofthereduction incosts, ifany, thatwillresult from
acceptance oftheValueEngineering Change Proposal taking intoaccount thecostsofdevelopment
andimplementation bytheContractor;  

31.7.4 aprediction ofanyeffects theproposed change wouldhaveoncollateral coststothe
Owner suchGovernment-furnished property costs, costsofrelated items, andcostsofmaintenance
andoperation;  

Page 21of44 120



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

31.7.5 astatement ofthetimebywhichacontract modification accepting theValue
Engineering Change Proposal mustbeissued soastoobtain themaximum costreduction, noting
anyeffectonthecontract completion timeordelivery schedule; and

31.7.6identification ofanyprevious submission oftheValue Engineering Change Proposal to
theOwner, including thedatessubmitted, thenumbers ofcontracts involved, andtheprevious
actionsbytheOwner, ifknown.  

ARTICLE32
EXTENSIONOFTIME

32.1 Inaddition totheprovisions stated inArticle38, theContractor willbegranted an
extension oftimeandwillnotbeassessed liquidated damages foranyportion ofthedelayin
completion oftheWork, performed under thelatestapproved progress schedule, arising fromactsof
God, war, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, freight embargoes, orweather moresevere
thanthenorm, provided thattheaforesaid causes werenotforeseeable anddidnotresult fromthe
faultornegligence oftheContractor, andprovided further thattheContractor hastaken reasonable
precautions toprevent further delaysowing tosuchcauses, andhasnotified theProject Manager in
writingofthecause orcauses ofdelaywithin fivedaysfromthebeginning ofanysuchdelay.  Within
15daysafter theendofthedelay, theContractor shall furnish theProject Manager withdetailed
information concerning thecircumstances ofthedelay, thenumber ofdaysactually delayed, the
appropriate Contract Document references, andthemeasures tobetakentoprevent orminimize the
delay.  Failure tosubmit such information willbesufficient cause fordenying thedelayclaims.  The
Owner willascertain thefactsandtheextentofthedelay, anditsfindings thereon willbefinaland
conclusive toprovisions underArticle35, DISPUTES.  Theextension oftimegranted forthese
reasons shallnotbethebasis foradditional compensation foranycosts incurred during thetimeof
delay. 

32.1.1 EveryeffortshallbemadebytheContractor tocomplete theproject within the “Contract
Time”.  The “Contract Time” anticipates “Normal” weather andclimate.  TheContractor’sschedule
mustanticipate normal adverse weather delays onallweather dependent activities.  Thefollowing
specifies theprocedure fordetermining timeextensions forunusually severe weather.   Listed below
aretheanticipated numbers ofcalendar dayslosttonormal adverse weather foreachmonth.  

Monthly Anticipated Calendar DaysLost toAdverse Weather Conditions

JANFEBMARAPRMAYJUNJULAUGSEPOCTNOVDEC
7)(4) (4) (4) (6) (3) (4) (2) (3) (3) (2) (5) 

Theabove schedule ofanticipated adverse weather dayswillconstitute thebaselineformonthly (or
portion thereof) weather timeevaluations.  Itisassumed thattheworkwillbecarried outMondays
through Fridays (holidays excepted) unlessandapproved construction schedule orwritten
authorization fromtheOwner indicates otherwise.  

Anactualadverse weather daymustprevent workfor50percent ormoreoftheContractor’s
workday.  When theContractor anticipates documenting aweather day, he/sheshall firstnotify the
Project Manager orhis/herdesignee observing theconstruction todetermine whether ornotworkcan
proceed orifwork isdelayed duetoadverse weather ortheeffects thereof.  Ifinagreement, the
Contractor shall formally request aweather dayinwriting totheOwner’sProject Manager orhis/her
designee.  TheContractor shallalsonotify theOwner’sProject Manager inwritingorhis/her

Page 22of44 121



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

designee ofanydisagreement astowhether ornotworkcouldhaveproceeded onagivendatewithin
2calendar daysofthatdate. Thefinaldecision regarding anadverse weather daywillbemade bythe
Project Manager orhis/herdesignee.  

Thenumber ofworkdays delayed duetoadverse weather ortheeffects thereof willthenbeconverted
toCalendar Days.  Weekends andholidays willonlycountascalendar daydelays ifaworkday
delayed duetoadverse weather iscounted beforeandafter theweekend/holiday.  Thenumber of
calendar daysofdelayduetoadverse weather ortheimpact thereof willthenbecompared tothe
monthly adverse weather schedule above.  TheContract timeperiod willthenbeincreased by
change order forthenumber
ofcalendar daysthatareinexcess oftheabove schedule andanewContract Completion dayand
datewillbeset.  

32.1.2 Anextension oftimewillnotbegranted foradelaycaused byashortage ofmaterials,  
except Owner-furnished materials, unless theContractor furnishes totheProject Manager
documentary proof thathehasdiligently madeeveryeffort toobtain suchmaterials fromeveryknown
source within reasonable reachoftheWork.  TheContractor shallalsosubmit proof thattheinability
toobtain suchmaterials whenoriginally planned didinfactcauseadelay infinalcompletion ofthe
Workwhichcouldnotbecompensated forbyrevising thesequence ofhisoperations.  Onlythe
physical shortage ofmaterial willbeconsidered under theseprovisions asacause forextension of
time.  Noconsideration willbegiventoanyclaimthatmaterial couldnotbeobtained atreasonable,  
practical, oreconomical costs, unless itisshown tosatisfaction oftheProject Manager thatsuch
material couldhavebeenobtained onlyatexorbitant prices, entirely inconsistent withcurrent rates
taking intoaccount thequantities involved andtheusualpractices inobtaining suchquantities.  

32.2 AChange Orderwillbefurnished totheContractor withinareasonable periodoftime
afterapproval ofarequest forextension oftime, specifying thenumber ofdaysallowed, ifany, and
thenewdateforcompletion oftheWorkorspecified portions oftheWork.  

32.3 SeealsoArticle38, TERMINATION FORDEFAULT--DAMAGES FORDELAY--TIME
EXTENSIONS. 

ARTICLE33
NOTICEOFPOTENTIALCLAIM

33.1 TheContractor willnotbeentitled toadditional compensation otherwise payable foran
actorfailure toactbytheOwner, thehappening ofanyeventoroccurrence, oranyothercause,  
unless heshallhavegiven theProject Manager awritten noticeofpotential claimtherefore as
specified inthisArticle.  

33.2 Thewritten noticeofpotential claimshallsetforththereasons forwhich theContractor
believes additional compensation willormaybedue, thenatureofthecosts involved, andinsofar as
possible, theamountofthepotential claim.  Ifbased onanactorfailure toactbytheOwner, such
noticeshallbegiventotheProject Manager priortothetimethattheContractor hasstarted
performance ofworkgiving risetothepotential claim foradditional compensation.  Notice shallbe
givenwithin fivedaysafter thehappening oftheeventoroccurrence giving risetothepotential claim.  

33.3 Itistheintention ofthisArticle thatdifferences between theparties arising underandby
virtueofthecontract shallbebrought totheattention oftheProject Manager attheearliest possible
timeinorder thatsuchmatters maybesettled, ifpossible, orotherappropriate action promptly taken.  

Page 23of44 122



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

33.4Thenotice requirements ofthisArticle areinaddition tothoserequired inotherArticles
oftheGeneral Conditions.  

ARTICLE34
SUBMITTALOFCLAIMS

34.1 Claims filedbytheContractor shallcontain sufficient detail toenable theOwner to
ascertain thebasisandamount ofsaidclaims.  TheOwner willreviewandevaluate theContractor's
claims.  Itwillbetheresponsibility oftheContractor tofurnish when requested bytheProject
Manager suchfurther information anddetails asmayberequired todetermine thefactsorcontention
involved inhisclaims.  Failure tosubmit such information anddetails willbesufficient cause for
denying theContractor'sclaims.  

34.2 EachclaimtheContractor maymake forequitable adjustment onaccount ofdelay for
anycause shallbeaccompanied byaprogress schedule reflecting theeffectsofthedelay and
proposals tominimize these effects.  Ifnoprogress schedule hasbeensubmitted totheProject
Manager reflecting conditions priortothedelay forwhich relief issought, thenaprogress schedule so
reflecting these conditions shallbeprepared andsubmitted withtheclaim.  

34.3 Depending uponthegrounds forreliefandthenatureofreliefsought, additional
submittals andconditions uponsubmitting claims mayberequired elsewhere intheseGeneral
Conditions.  

34.4Innoeventshall claimsbemadeafter finalpayment ismadeunderArticle27, FINAL
PAYMENT, oftheseGeneral Conditions.  

34.5 Inasmuch asnoticeofpotential claimrequirements ofArticle33, NOTICE OF
POTENTIAL CLAIM, areintended toenable theProject Manager toinvestigate while factsarefresh
andtotakeaction tominimize oravoidaclaimwhichmightbefiledthereafter, theContractor'sfailure
tomaketherequired noticeontimeislikely todisadvantage theOwner.  Therefore noclaimforwhich
anoticeofpotential claimisrequired willbeconsidered unless theContractor hascomplied withthe
noticeofArticle33, NOTICE OFPOTENTIAL CLAIM.  

ARTICLE35
DISPUTES

35.1 General: Notwithstanding anyotherprovisions ofthisContract, disputes and
disagreements byandbetween theOwner andtheContractor shallberesolved through progressive,  
sequential process ofnegotiation, mediation, andincertain cases, arbitration.  Forcontracts which
arefor $250,000orless, amounts indispute whicharelessthan $10,000shallnotprogress beyond
negotiation andshallultimately bedecided bytheOwner ifnotbymutual agreement.  Forcontracts
whichareformorethan $250,000, amounts indispute whicharelessthan $25,000shouldnot
progress beyond negotiation.  Forallcontracts, amounts indispute greater thanthoseamounts set
forthabove, butlessthan $100,000shallberesolved through asequential process ofnegotiation,  
mediation, andbinding arbitration.  Amounts indispute whichare $100,000ormoreshallberesolved
through asequential process ofnegotiation, mediation, andthence eitherarbitration orlitigation.  

35.2 Negotiation: Intheeventofdisputes, unsettled claims, questions ordisagreements
between thecontractor andtheCityrelating toorarising outoftheprovisions ofthisContract, the
representatives ofthoseparties shallmeetpromptly inrecognition ofmutual interests andinagood

Page 24of44 123



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

faitheffort toresolve thedispute.  Either theContractor ortheCityshallarrange forthismeeting ata
timeandplacewithin theCityofGreeley, mutually acceptable tobothparties, within fifteen (15) days
ofnotification ofthedispute, unsettled claim, question, ordisagreement between theparties.  Seven
7)dayspriortothemeeting, theinitiating partyshalldeliver totheotherparty, awrittenandcomplete

summary oftheevidence andarguments substantiating itsclaim.  Iftheparties donotreacha
solution within thirty (30) daysaftersaidinitialmeeting, thenuponnoticeofeitherparty totheother, 
thedispute, claim, question, ordifference, maybereferred toamediator pursuant toSection 35.3. 
Theparties canextend thenegotiation periodbymutualwritten agreement. 

35.3 Mediation: Ifthedispute, claim, question, ordifference isnotresolved bynegotiation
within thirty (30) daysafter theinitialmeeting between theparties orwithin theextended period
agreed upon, theparties agree tonextrequest that theAmerican Arbitration Association provide a
mediator toassist theOwner andContractor inresolving thedispute, claim, question, ordifference. 
Therulesofmediation shallbetheConstruction Industry Mediation RulesoftheAmerican Arbitration
Association.  Adifferent mediation/dispute resolution agency maybeselected formediation upon the
mutual written agreement between theparties.  Thedispute resolution agency shallselectaqualified
mediator whoshallhaveabackground inconstruction.  Theselected mediator mayberejected bythe
parties onlyforbias.  Themediator shallhavethirty (30) daysfromthetimeofappointment tomeet
withtheparties andsixty (60) daysfromthetimeoftheappointment toresolve thedispute unless the
parties mutually consent toanextension ofthesixtydaydeadline.  Allreasonable fees, costs, and
expenses ofthemediator, themediator'sassociation andthemediation agency, shallbeborne
equally bytheparties.  Eachpartyshallbeartheexpense ofitsowncounsel, experts, witnesses, and
preparation andpresentation ofproofsatmediation.  

TheContractor shallnotcauseadelayofworkduring mediation proceedings except by
mutual agreement.  Allmediation proceedings shallbeconducted intheCityofGreeley, unless an
alternate location isagreed uponinwriting bytheOwner andtheContractor.  

Amountsindisputewhicharelessthan $10,000shallnotprogressbeyondmediation.  

35.4 Litigation prerequisites: Theprocedures enumerated inSections 35.2and35.3shall
beaprerequisite tothefilingofanylitigation between theparties totheContract.  Failure ofthe
Contractor tofollow theprovisions ofSection 35.2andSection 35.3shallbeacomplete defense, and
grounds forimmediate dismissal ofanylitigation filedpriortoContractor engaging innegotiation and
mediation with theCityofGreeley asprovided above.  Litigation maybefiledonlyiftheamount in
dispute is $100,000ormore.  Intheevent litigation isfiledbyandbetween theparties aftermediation,  
venueandjurisdiction ofanyandallsuitsandcauses ofaction inconnection withthisContract shall
lieexclusively inWeldCounty, Colorado.  

35.5 Arbitration: Aftermediation, instead oflitigation, anyremaining unresolved
controversy orclaimarising outoforrelating tothisContract ortheperformance orbreach thereof,  
maybesettled byarbitration inaccordance withtheConstruction Industry Arbitration Rulesofthe
American Arbitration Association.  Foramounts indispute whichare $100,000ormore, arbitration
shallbeengaged onlyuponmutual written agreement bytheOwner andtheContractor, andthe
written agreement shallspecify whether thearbitration shallbebindingornonbinding; however,  
amounts indispute whicharelessthan $100,000shall necessarily besettledbybinding arbitration. 
Thesolearbitrator shallbeappointed bytheArbitration Association, unlessadifferent arbitrator or
dispute resolution agency ismutually agreed upon.  Theawardofthearbitrator shallbeaccompanied
byareasoned opinion, andshall include findings offactandconclusions.  Allfeesandexpenses of

Page 25of44 124



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

thearbitration, including theexpense ofeachparty'scounsel, experts, witnesses, andpreparation
andpresentation ofproofs, shallbebornebythepartyagainst whomarbitration judgment ismade.  

35.6 Litigation: Eachpartyshallbear itsownlitigation feesandexpenses, including the
expense ofitscounsel, experts, witnesses, andpreparation andpresentation ofproofs, regardless of
theprevailing party.  

ARTICLE36
FORCEACCOUNTWORK

36.1 ThisArticleshallbecome operative upon failureoftheContractor andtheOwner to
arriveatanamountofcompensation underArticle28, CHANGES.Intheevent thatnoequitable
adjustment isarrived ateitherbymutual agreement orpursuant totheArticle 35, DISPUTES, the
compensation paidhereunder willbethetotalcompensation.  

36.2 Work Performed byorforContractor:  TheContractor willbepaidforlabor, materials,  
andequipment ashereinafter provided, exceptwhere agreement hasbeenreached topayin
accordance withParagraph 36.3ofthisArticle.  Thefollowing percentages, asfullcompensation for
profit, overhead andsmall tools, willbeadded tothetotalscomputed asprovided insubparagraphs
36.2.1through 36.2.3ofthisArticle.  

Labor 25percent
Materials 20percent
Equipment 10percent

Labor, materials, andequipment shallbefurnished bytheContractor orbyasubcontractor.  When
workpaidonaforceaccount basis isperformed byforces otherthantheContractor's, theContractor
shall reachagreement withsuchother forcesastothedistribution ofthepayment madebythe
Owner forsuchworkand, except asspecified herein, noadditional payment therefore willbemade
bytheOwnerbyreason ofperformance ofworkbyasubcontractor orbyothers.  Inaddition tothe
markups, ifany, forlabor, equipment, andmaterials, forsubcontracted work, theContractor mayadd
anadditional fivepercent markup.Thecostofsubcontracted workwillbetheactual costtothe
contractor forworkperformed byasubcontractor ascomputed inaccordance with thisParagraph
36.2anditssubparagraphs 36.2.1, 36.2.2, and36.2.3.  

36.2.1Labor:  Thecostoflaborusedinperforming thework, whether theemployer isthe
Contractor orasubcontractor, willbethesumasdetermined onthebasisofthefollowing three
subparagraphs: 

36.2.1.1Thegrossactual wages, including income taxwithholdings butnotincluding employer
payments tooronbehalf ofworkmen forhealthandwelfare, pension, vacation, insurance andsimilar
purposes. 

36.2.1.2Tothegrossactual wages, asdefined intheprevious subparagraph,  

36.2.1.1, willbeaddedapercentage based uponcurrent StateandFederal lawsandapplicable
laborcontracts concerning payments madetooronbehalfofworkmen otherthanactual wages,  
whichpercentage willconstitute fullcompensation forallpayments imposed byStateandFederal
lawsandforallotherpayments madetooronbehalfoftheworkmen, other thanactual wages as
defined intheprevious subparagraph 36.2.1.1andthesubsistence andtravel allowance asspecified

Page 26of44 125



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

inthefollowing subparagraphs 36.2.1.3.  TheContractor shallcompute aseparate percentage for
eachcraft, oracomposite percentage forallcrafts, ifsoapproved bytheOwner.  Computed
percentages shallbesubmitted totheProject Manager forapproval bytheOwner.  

36.2.1.3Subsistence andtravelallowance paidtoworkmen asrequired byestablished
agreements. 

36.2.1.4Thecharges forlaborshall include allclassifications uptobutnotincluding foremen,  
andwhenauthorized bytheOwner, shall include foremen engaged intheactualanddirect
performance ofthework.  Laborcharges shallnot include charges forassistant superintendents,  
officepersonnel, timekeepers, andmaintenance mechanics, unless authorized bytheOwner in
advance ofthestartofwork.  

36.2.2 Materials:  Thecostofmaterials required fortheaccomplishment oftheworkwillbe
delivered cost tothepurchaser, whether contractor orsubcontractor, fromthesupplier thereof, except
asthefollowing areapplicable:  

36.2.2.1Ifacashortradediscount bytheactual supplier isoffered oravailable tothe
Contractor, itshallbecredited totheOwner notwithstanding thefactthatsuchdiscount maynothave
beentaken.  

36.2.2.2Ifmaterials areprocured bytheContractor byamethod which isnotadirectpurchase
fromandadirect purchase fromandadirectbillingbytheactual supplier, thecostofsuchmaterials
willbedeemed tobethepricepaidtotheactual supplier, asdetermined bytheOwner.  Noadditional
markup forsupplier workwillbeallowed except totheextentofactualcost totheContractor in
handling thematerial, nottoexceed fivepercent ofthepricepaidtoactual supplier.  

36.2.2.3Ifthematerials areobtained fromasupplyorsource owned wholly orinpartbythe
Contractor, payment therefore willnotexceed thepricepaid forsimilar materials furnished fromsaid
source onContract Itemsorthecurrent wholesale priceforsuchmaterials delivered totheworksite,  
whichever priceislower.  

36.2.2.4Ifthecostofthematerials is, intheopinion ofOwner, excessive, thenthecostofsuch
materials willbedeemed tobethelowest current wholesale priceatwhichsuchmaterials are
available inthequantities concerned, delivered tothejobsite, lessdiscounts asprovided in
subparagraph 36.2.2.1ofthisArticle.  

36.2.2.5IftheContractor doesnotfurnish satisfactory evidence ofthecostofsuchmaterials
fromtheactualsupplier thereof, thecostwillbedetermined inaccordance withsubparagraph
36.2.2.4ofthisArticle.  

36.2.2.6TheContractor shallhavenoclaims forcostsandprofitonOwner-furnished materials.  

36.2.3 Equipment:  TheContractor willbepaidfortheuseofcontractor-owned orrented
equipment attherental ratesshown intheColorado StateDepartment ofHighways Construction
Equipment Rental RateSchedule, except asmodified below, whichedition shallbethelatest edition
ineffectatthetimeofcommencement oftheForceAccount work.  Forequipment usedinexcess of
eighthoursperday, therental rateshallbe60percent ofthelistedhourly rate.  Ifitisdeemed

Page 27of44 126



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

necessary bytheContractor touseequipment notlisted intheC.D.O.H. Construction Equipment
Rental RateSchedule, theContractor shall furnish thenecessary costdataandpaid invoices tothe
Project Manager forhisuseinestablishment ofsuchrental rate.  

36.2.3.1Theratespaidasabove provided will include thecostoffuel, oil, lubricants, supplies,  
small tools, necessary attachments, repairs andmaintenance, depreciation, storage, insurance and
incidentals.  

36.2.3.2Equipment operators willbepaidforasstipulated insubparagraph 36.2.1ofthisArticle.  

36.2.3.3Equipment shallbeingoodworking condition andsuitable forthepurpose forwhichthe
equipment istobeused.  

36.2.3.4Unless otherwise specified, manufacturer-approved modifications shallbeusedto
classify equipment forthedetermination ofapplicable rental rates.  Equipment whichhasnodirect
powerunitshallbepowered byaunitofatleast theminimum rating recommended bythe
manufacturer ofthatequipment.  

36.2.3.5Individual piecesofequipment ortoolshavinganetindividual valueof $300orless,  
whether ornotconsumed byuse, willbeconsidered tobesmall toolsandnopayment willbemade
therefore. 

36.2.3.6Compensation willnotbeallowed whileequipment isinoperative duetobreakdown. 
Except asspecified inparagraph 36.2.3.7ofthisArticle, timewillbecomputed inhalfandfullhours. 
Incomputing thetimeforuseofequipment, lessthan30minutes shallbeconsidered onehalfhour.  

36.2.3.7Equipment attheWorkSite:  Thetimetobepaidforuseofequipment ontheworksite
willbethetimetheequipment isinoperation ontheforceaccount workbeingperformed.  Thetime
will include thetimerequired tomovetheequipment tolocation oftheforceaccount workandreturn it
totheoriginal location ortoanother location requiring nomoretimethanthatrequired toreturn ittoits
original location.  Moving timewillnotbepaidforiftheequipment isusedatthesiteoftheforce
account workonother thansuchforceaccount work.  Loading andtransporting costswillbeallowed,  
inlieuofmoving time, whentheequipment ismoved bymeans other thanitsownpower.  No
payment forloading andtransporting willbemade iftheequipment isusedatthesiteoftheforce
account workonother thansuchforceaccount work.  

36.3Special ItemsofWork:  IftheOwner andtheContractor, byagreement, determine that
a)anitemofforceaccount workdoesnotrepresent asignificant portion ofthetotalContract price, 

and (b) suchitemsofworkcannot beperformed bytheforcesoftheContractor ortheforces ofanyof
hissubcontractors, and (c) itisnotinaccordance withtheestablished practice oftheindustry
involved tokeeptherecords which theprocedure outlined inParagraph 36.2ofthisArticle would
require, charges forsuchspecial forceaccount work itemsmaybemadeonthebasis
ofinvoices forsuchworkwithout complete itemization oflabor, materials, andequipment rental costs. 
Tosuchinvoiced price, lessacredit totheOwner foranycashortradediscount offered oravailable, 
willbeaddedfivepercent ofthediscounted price, inlieuofthepercentages provided inParagraph
36.2ofthisArticle.  Innoeventwillthepricepaidexceed thecurrent fairmarket valueofsuchwork
plusfivepercent. 

Page 28of44 127



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

36.4 Records:  TheContractor shallmaintain hisrecords toprovide acleardistinction
between thedirectcostsofworkpaidforonaforceaccount basisandcostsofother operations.  

36.4.1 TheContractor shallprepare andfurnish totheProject Manager, onthefollowing work
day, report sheets induplicate ofeachday'sworkpaidforonaforceaccount basis.  Thedailyreport
sheets shall itemize thematerials usedandshallcover thedirect costoflaborandthecharges for
equipment, whether furnished bytheContractor, subcontractor, orotherforces, except forcharges
described inParagraph 36.3ofthisArticle.  Thedailyreport sheets shallprovide names or
identifications andclassifications ofworkmen andthehourly rateofpayandhoursworked.  In
addition, areport ofthesize, typeandidentification number ofequipment andhoursoperated shallbe
furnished totheProject Manager.  Daily report sheets shallbesigned bytheContractor orhis
authorized agent.  

36.4.2 Material changes shallbesubstantiated byvalidcopiesofvendor'sinvoices or
conformed copies, certified truebytheContractor.  Such invoices shallbesubmitted withthedaily
report sheets.  Should thevendor'sinvoices notbesubmitted within20daysafter thedateofdelivery
ofthematerial or15daysafteracceptance ofthework, whichever comes first, theOwner reserves
therighttoestablish thecostofsuchmaterials atthelowercurrent wholesale pricesatwhichsuch
materials areavailable inthequantities concerned delivered tothelocation ofthework, lessany
discounts provided insubparagraph 36.2.1. ofthisArticle.  

36.4.3 TheProject Manager willcompare hisrecords withthedailyreport sheets furnished by
theContractor, makeanynecessary adjustment andcompile thecostsofworkpaidforonaforce
account basisondaily forceaccount workreport forms.  When thesedailyreports areagreed upon
andsigned bytheProject Manager, theyshallbecome thebasisofpayment fortheworkperformed,  
butshallnotpreclude subsequent adjustment basedonalateraudit.  

36.4.4TheContractor'soriginal costrecords pertaining toworkpaidforaonaforceaccount
basisshallberetained andshallbeopentoinspection andauditasrequired byArticle28,  
CHANGES, andanyotherprovisions oftheContract.  

36.5 If, intheProject Manager'sopinion, theContractor oranyofhissubcontractors, in
performing ForceAccount work, isnotmaking efficient useoflabor, material orequipment oris
proceeding inamanner whichmakes ForceAccount workunnecessarily moreexpensive tothe
Owner, theProject Manager may, inwholeorpart, direct theContractor inthedeployment oflabor,  
material andequipment.  Bywayofillustration, inefficiency mayariseinthefollowing ways:  (1) the
timingofthework, (2) theuseofunnecessary labororequipment, (3) theuseofahigher percentage
ofapprentices thaninnon-forceaccount work, (4) failure toprocure materials atthelowest price, or
5)usingmaterials ofquality higher thannecessary. 

ARTICLE37
TERMINATIONFORCONVENIENCE OFTHEOWNER

37.1 Theperformance ofWorkunder thiscontract maybeterminated bytheOwner in
accordance withthisArticle inwhole, orfromtimetotimeinpart, whenever suchtermination isinthe
best interest oftheOwner.  Suchtermination shallbeeffected bydelivery totheContractor ofa
NoticeofTermination specifying theextent towhichperformance ofworkunder theContract is
terminated, andthedateuponwhich suchtermination becomes effective.  

Page 29of44 128



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

37.2After receipt ofaNoticeofTermination, andexceptasotherwise directed bytheOwner,  
theContractor shall:  

37.2.1Stopworkunder theContract onthedateandtotheextent specified intheNoticeof
Termination. 

37.2.2 Placenofurther orders orsubcontracts formaterials, services orfacilities, except as
maybenecessary forcompletion ofsuchportion oftheworkunder theContract asisnotterminated;  

37.2.3Terminate allorders andsubcontracts totheextent thattheyrelate totheperformance
ofworkterminated bytheNoticeofTermination; 

37.2.4 Assign totheOwner inthemanner, atthetimes, andtotheextent directed byit, allof
therights, titleandinterest oftheContractor under theorders andsubcontracts soterminated, in
whichcasetheOwner willhavetheright, initsdiscretion, tosettleorpayanyorallclaims arising out
ofthetermination ofsuchorders andsubcontracts;  

37.2.5Settleoutstanding liabilities andclaims arising outofsuchtermination oforders and
subcontracts, withtheapproval orratification oftheOwner totheextent itmayrequire, which
approval orratification shallbefinalforthepurposes ofthisArticle;  

37.2.6 Transfer titleanddeliver totheOwner inthemanner, atthetimes, andtotheextent, if
anydirected byit, (a) thefabricated orunfabricated parts, workinprocess, completed work, supplies
andother material procured aspartof, oracquired inconnection withtheperformance of, thework
terminated bytheNoticeofTermination, and (b) thecompleted orpartially completed plans,  
drawings, information, andotherproperty, which, iftheContract hadbeencompleted, wouldhave
beenrequired tobefurnished totheOwner;  

37.2.7 Usehisbestefforts tosell, inthemanner, atthetimes, totheextent, andatthepriceor
prices direction orauthorized bytheOwner, property ofthetypesreferred toin (37.2.5) above;  
provided, however, thattheContractor (a) shallnotberequired toextend credit toanypurchaser and
b)mayacquire anysuchproperty under theconditions prescribed byandatapriceorprices

approved bytheOwner; provided further thattheproceeds ofanysuchtransfer ordisposition willbe
applied inreduction ofanypayments tobemade bytheOwner tothecontractor under thisContract
orwillotherwise becredited tothepriceorcostoftheworkcovered bythisContract orpaidinsuch
othermanner astheOwner maydirect; 

37.2.8Complete performance ofeachpartoftheworkasshallnothavebeenterminated by
theNoticeofTermination; and

37.2.9 Takesuchactionasmaybenecessary, orastheProject Manager maydirect, forthe
protection andpreservation oftheproperty related tothisContract which isinthepossession ofthe
Contractor andinwhich theOwner hasormayacquire aninterest.  

Page 30of44 129



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

37.3 After receiptofaNoticeofTermination, theContractor shallsubmit totheProject
Manager histermination claim, intheformandwithcertification prescribed bytheOwner.  Such
claims shallbesubmitted promptly butinnoevent later thantheearliestofthefollowing:  (1) oneyear
fromtheeffective dateoftermination or (2) thirtydaysafter theremainder oftheproject hasbeen
accepted bytheowner.  

37.4 Subject totheprovision ofParagraph 37.3, thecontractor andtheOwner mayagree
uponthewholeoranypartoftheamount oramounts tobepaidtotheContractor byreasonofthe
totalorpartial termination ofworkpursuant tothisArticle, whichamount oramounts mayinclude an
allowance forprofitonworkdone; provided thatsuchagreed amount oramounts, exclusive of
settlement costs, shallnotexceed thetotalcontract priceasreduced bytheamount ofpayments
otherwise madeandasfurther reduced bytheContract priceofworkterminated.  TheContract will
beamended accordingly, andtheContractor willbepaidtheagreed amount.  

37.5 IntheeventoffailureoftheContractor andtheOwner toagree, asprovided in
Paragraph 37.4, uponthewhole amount tobepaidtheContractor byreason ofthetermination of
workpursuant tothisArticle, theOwnerwillpaytheContractor theamounts determined bytheOwner
asfollows, butwithout duplication ofanyamounts agreed uponinaccordance withParagraph 37.4;  

37.5.1Withrespect tocontract workperformed priortotheeffective dateoftheNoticeof
Termination, thetotal (without duplication ofanyitems) of:  

37.5.1.1Thecostofsuchwork;  

37.5.1.2Thecostofsettling andpayingclaims arising outofthetermination ofworkunder
subcontracts orordersasprovided insubparagraph 37.2.5above, exclusive oftheamounts paidor
payable onaccount ofsupplies ormaterials delivered orservices furnished bythesubcontractor prior
totheeffective dateoftheNoticeofTermination ofworkunder thisContract, whichamounts shallbe
included inthecostonaccount ofwhichpayment ismadeunder37.5.1above.  

37.5.1.3Asum, asprofiton37.5.1.1above, determined bytheOwner tobefairandreasonable;  
provided, however, that ifitappears thattheContractor wouldhavesustained alossontheentire
Contract haditbeencompleted, noprofitshallbeincluded orallowed under thissubparagraph
37.5.1.3andanappropriate adjustment shallbemadebyreducing theamount ofthesettlement to
reflect theindicated rateofloss.  

37.5.2 Thereasonable costofthepreservation andproperty incurred pursuant to
subparagraph 37.2.9andanyother reasonable cost incidental totermination ofworkunder this
Contract, including expense incidental tothedetermination oftheamount duetotheContractor as
theresultofthetermination ofworkunder thisContract.  

37.5.3Thetotalsumtobepaidtothecontractor underparagraph 37.5.1abovewillnotexceed
thetotalcontract priceasreduced bytheamount ofpayments otherwise madeandasfurther
reduced bytheContract priceoftheworkterminated.  

Page 31of44 130



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

37.6Inarriving attheamount duetheContractor under thisArticle, therewillbededucted (1)  
anyclaimwhich theOwner mayhaveagainst theContractor inconnection withthisContract, (2) the
agreed pricefor, ortheproceeds ofsale, ofmaterials, supplies orother things acquired bythe
contractor orsold, pursuant totheprovisions ofthisArticle, andnototherwise recovered byor
credited totheOwner and (3) thefullamountofanystatutory orotherclaimagainst theContractor
filedwiththeOwner.  

37.7 Unless otherwise provided forinthisContract, orbyapplicable statute, theContractor,  
fromtheeffective dateoftermination andforaperiodofthreeyearsafter finalsettlement under this
Contract, shall preserve andmakeavailable totheOwneratallreasonable timesattheofficeofthe
Contractor butwithout directcharge totheOwner, allhisbooks, records, documents, electronic/digital
mediaandotherevidence bearing onthecostsandexpenses ofthe
Contractor under thisContract andrelated totheworkterminated hereunder, ortotheextent
approved bytheOwner, orotherauthentic reproductions thereof.  

37.8TheContractor shall insert inallsubcontracts thatthesubcontractor shallstopworkon
thedateofandtotheextent specified inaNoticeofTermination fromtheOwner andshall require
thatanytiersubcontractors insert thesameprovision inanytiersubcontracts.  

37.9Undernocircumstances istheContractor entitled toanticipatory, unearned profitsor
consequential damages asaresultofatermination orpartial termination under thisArticle.  

ARTICLE38
TERMINATIONFORDEFAULT

38.1If, intheopinionoftheOwner, theContractor hasfailed toprosecute work, theOwner willnotify
theContractor.  TheContractor willthenhave5daystoremedy thefailure toprosecute workorto
obtain theOwner’sauthorization forthedelayoranextension oftimeassetforthinArticle32. 

38.2 IftheContractor refuses orfailsafter reasonable noticeassetforthabovetoprosecute
Work, oranyseparable partthereof, withsuchdiligence aswill insure itscompletion within thetime
specified inthisContract, orrefuses orfailstocomplete saidWork withinsuchtime, theOwner may,  
bywrittennotice totheContractor, terminate fordefault hisrighttoproceed withtheWorkorsuch
partoftheWorkastowhich therehasbeenunauthorized delay.  Insuchevent theOwnermaytake
overtheworkandprosecute thesametocompletion, byContractor orotherwise, andmaytake
possession ofandutilize incompleting theWorksuchmaterials, appliances, andplantasmaybeon
theWorkSiteandnecessary therefore.  Whether ornottheContractor'srighttoproceed withthe
Work isterminated, heandhissureties shallbeliableforanydamage totheOwner
resulting fromhisrefusal orfailure tocomplete theWork inthespecified time.  

38.3 IftheOwner soterminates theContractor'srighttoproceed, theresulting damage will
consist ofliquidated damages untilsuchtimeasmayberequired forfinalcompletion oftheWork
together withanyincreased costs incurred bytheOwner incompleting theWorkasfurther setforthin
Article41.  

38.4If, afterNoticeofTermination oftheContractor'sright toproceed under theprovisions of
thisArticle, itisdetermined foranyreason thattheContractor wasnotindefault under theprovisions
ofthisArticle orthattheContractor wasentitled toanextension oftimeunderArticle 32,  

Page 32of44 131



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

EXTENSION OFTIME, therightsandobligations oftheparties shallbethesameasiftheNoticeof
Termination hadbeenissued pursuant toArticle37, TERMINATION FORCONVENIENCE OFTHE
OWNER. 

38.5 Therighttoterminate fordefault andanyother rightsandremedies oftheOwner
provided inthisclause areinaddition toanyother rightsandremedies provided bylaworunder this
Contract. 

ARTICLE39
TERMINATIONOFRIGHTTOPROCEEDFORCERTAINDEFAULTS

39.1 Inaddition totheOwner'srighttoterminate fordefault underotherArticles ofthis
Contract, theOwner willhavetherighttoterminate theContractor'sperformance ofworkinwholeor
inpartfordefault foranyofthefollowing reasons:  

39.1.1 TheContractor'sorsubcontractor'sperformance ofworkisinviolation ofthetermsof
theContract.  

39.1.2TheContractor orsubcontractor hasviolated anauthorized orderorrequirement ofthe
Owner. 

39.1.3Abandonment ofContract.  

39.1.4Assignment orsubcontracting oftheContract oranyworkunder theContract without
approval oftheOwner.  

39.1.5Bankruptcy orappointment ofareceiver fortheContractor'sproperty.  

39.1.6Performance oftheContractor inbadfaith.  

39.1.7 Contractor allowing anyfinal judgment tostand against himforaperiodof48hours
excluding weekends andlegalholidays).  

39.2If, intheopinion oftheOwner, theContractor isindefaultoftheContract, theOwner will
notify theContractor.  IftheContractor failstoremedy orcommence toremedy thedefault within five
daysafterreceipt ofsuchnotice, theOwner mayterminate theContractor'srighttoproceed withthe
Workorthatportion oftheWorkwhich theOwner determines ismostdirectly affected bythedefault.  

39.3 If, afterNoticeofTermination ofContractor'srighttoproceed under thisArticle itis
determined foranyreason Contractor wasnotindefault, therightsandobligations oftheparties shall
bethesameasiftheNoticeofTermination hadbeen issued pursuant toArticle37, TERMINATION
FORCONVENIENCE OFTHEOWNER.  

ARTICLE40
RIGHTSANDOBLIGATIONSOFPARTIESATTERMINATIONFORDEFAULTS

40.1 ThisArticle shallapply toterminations fordefaults covered inArticle 15, 38, and39of
theseGeneral Conditions.  

Page 33of44 132



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

40.2Onreceipt ofaNoticeofTermination fromtheOwner, theContractor shall:  

40.2.1 Stopallworkunder theContract onthedateandtotheextent specified intheNoticeof
Termination. 

40.2.2Placenofurther orders orsubcontracts formaterials, equipment orservices except as
theyrelate totheperformance ofworkcovered bytheNoticeofTermination.  

40.2.3Cancel orterminate allordersorsubcontracts totheextent thattheyrelate tothe
performance ofworkcovered bytheNoticeofTermination.  

40.2.4 Comply withallotherrequirements oftheOwner asmaybespecified intheNoticeof
Termination. 

40.3 UpontheOwner termination oftheContractor'srighttoproceed withtheWorkbecause
oftheContractor'sdefault under theContract, theOwner willhave therighttocomplete theWorkby
whatever means andmethod itdeems advisable.  TheOwner shallhavetherighttotakepossession
ofanduseanyoralltheContractor'smaterials, plat, tools, equipment andproperty ofanykind
provided byoronbehalfoftheContractor forthepurpose oftheWork, oraportionofthem, without
being responsible totheContractor forfairwearandtear.  TheContractor shallhavenorights insuch
property during theirusebytheOwner.  TheOwner willnotberequired toobtain thelowest prices for
completing theWorkbutshallmakesuchexpenditures as, intheOwner'ssolejudgment, best
accomplish suchcompletion.  

40.4 Theexpense ofcompleting theWork, together withareasonable charge for
engineering, managerial andadministrative services, ascertified bytheOwner, willbecharged tothe
Contractor andtheexpense socharged willbededucted bytheOwner outofsuchmonies asmaybe
dueormayatanytimethereafter become duetotheContractor.  Incasesuchexpense isinexcess
ofthesumwhichotherwise wouldhavebeenpayable totheContractor under theContract, the
Contractor orhissurety shallpromptly paytheamountofsuchexcess totheOwner uponnotice from
theOwneroftheexcess sodue.  TheOwner may, initssolediscretion, withhold alloranypartofany
progress payments otherwise duetheContractor untilcompletion andfinalsettlement oftheWork
covered bytheNoticeofTermination ofContractor'sright toproceed.  

40.5 TheContractor shall insert inallsubcontracts thatthesubcontractor willstopworkon
thedateofortotheextent specified inaNoticeofTermination fromtheOwner andshall require the
subcontractors toinsert thesameprovision inanytiersubcontracts.  

40.6TheContractor shall immediately uponreceipt communicate anyNotice ofTermination
issued bytheOwner totheaffected subcontractors andsuppliers atanytier.  

40.7 RightsofSurety:  TheSuretyonthePerformance Bondprovided forinthisContract
shallnotbeentitled totakeovertheContractor'sperformance ofworkincaseoftermination under
thisArticle, except withtheconsent oftheOwner.  

Page 34of44 133



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE41
LIQUIDATEDDAMAGES

41.1 Timeisoftheessence oftheContract. Intheevent theContractor failstoachieve
Substantial Completion oftheWorkwithin theContract Time, orfailstomeetanyother time
requirement orthetimelimitsetforth intheContract, afterdueallowance foranyextension or
extensions oftimemade inaccordance withtheContract, theContractor shallpaytotheOwner as
fixed, agreed andliquidated damages, pursuant totheclauseoftheContract entitled TERMINATION
FORDEFAULT—DAMAGES FORDELAY—TIME EXTENSIONS, thesumof $500.00foreach
calendar dayofdelayunless otherwise stated intheSpecial Provisions.  Such liquidated damages
shallbeassessed foreachandeverydaythattheContractor shallbeindefault. TheOwner shall
havetherighttodeduct saidliquidated damages fromanyamount dueorthatmaybecome duethe
Contractor, ortocollect suchliquidated damages fromtheContractor oritssurety.  

41.2 Liquidated damages intheamount stipulated donotinclude anysumsofmoney to
reimburse theCityforactual damages whichmaybeincurred between Substantial Completion and
FinalCompletion because oftheContractor’sfailure toachieve FinalCompletion within theContract
Time. Forsuchdelay inFinalCompletion, theContractor shall reimburse theCity, asamitigation of
Citydamages andnotasapenalty, thoseadministrative costs incurred bytheCityasaresultofsuch
failure. 

41.3 Liquidated damages intheamounts stipulated donotinclude anysumsofmoney to
reimburse theCityforextracostswhich theCitymaybecome obligated topayonothercontracts
whichweredelayed orextended because oftheContractor'sfailure tocomplete theWorkwithin the
Contract Time. Should theCityincuradditional costsbecause ofdelays orextensions toother
contracts resulting fromtheContractor'sfailureoftimely performance, theCitywillassess theseextra
costsagainst theContractor, andthese assessments willbeinaddition tothestipulated liquidated
damages. 

41.4TheCityreserves allofitsrights toactual damages fromtheContractor forinjuryorloss
suffered bytheCity fromactions oromissions oftheContractor, including butnotlimited toanyother
breach ordefault oftheContract, outside ofthescopeoftheabove sections.  

ARTICLE42
USEANDPOSSESSIONPRIORTOCOMPLETION

42.1 TheOwner shallhavetherighttotakepossession oforuseanycompleted orpartially
completed partsoftheWork.  Suchpossession orusewillnotbedeemed anacceptance ofWorknot
completed inaccordance withtheContract.  While theOwner isinsuchpossession, theContractor,  
notwithstanding theprovisions ofArticle18, DAMAGE TOWORK ANDRESPONSIBILITIES FOR
MATERIALS, willberelieved oftheresponsibility forlossordamage totheworkother thanthat
resulting fromtheContractor'sfaultornegligence orbreach ofwarranty.  Ifsuchpriorpossession or
usebytheOwner delays theprogress oftheWorkorcauses additional expense totheContractor, an
equitable adjustment intheContract priceorthetimeofcompletion willbemade, andtheContract
willbemodified inwriting accordingly.  

Page 35of44 134



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE43
RIGHTSINSHOPDRAWINGSANDWORKINGDRAWINGS

43.1 ShopDrawings andWorking Drawings, submitted totheProject Manager bythe
Contractor, subcontractor oranylower tiersubcontractor pursuant totheWork, maybeduplicated by
theOwnerandtheOwner mayuseanddisclose, inanymanner andforanypurpose, Shop Drawings
andWorking Drawings delivered under thisContract.  

43.2ThisArticle, including thisParagraph 43.2, shallbeincluded inallsubcontracts
hereunder atalltiers.  

ARTICLE44
PATENTANDCOPYRIGHT

44.1 TheContractor shallwarrant thatthematerials, equipment ordevices usedonor
incorporated intheWork shallbedelivered freeofanyrightful claimofanythirdparty forinfringement
ofanyUnited States patentorcopyright.  Ifnotified promptly inwriting andgivenauthority,  
information andassistance, theContractor shalldefend, ormaysettle, athisexpense, anysuitor
proceeding against theOwner ortheProject Manager basedonaclaimed patentorcopyright
infringement whichwould result inabreach ofhiswarranty. TheContractor shallpayalldamages
andcostsawarded therein against theOwner ortheProject Manager duetosuchbreach.  Ifanyuse
ofmaterials, equipment ordevices isheldtoconstitute aninfringement andsuchuseisenjoined, the
Contractor shall, athisexpense andoption, either procure fortheOwner therighttocontinue using
saidmaterials, equipment ordevices, orreplace samewithnoninfringing materials, equipment or
devices, ormodify samesoitbecomes noninfringing.  TheContractor shall report totheOwner
promptly andinreasonable written detail, eachnoticeorclaimofpatentorcopyright infringement
basedontheperformance ofthisContract ofwhich theContractor hasknowledge.  Intheeventof
anyclaimorsuitagainst theOwner onaccount ofanyalleged patent orcopyright infringement arising
outoftheperformance ofthisContract oroutoftheuseofanysupplies furnished orworkorservices
performed hereunder, theContractor shall furnish totheOwner whenrequested bytheOwner, all
evidence andinformation inpossession oftheContractor pertaining tosuchsuitorclaim.  Such
evidence andinformation shallbefurnished attheexpense oftheOwner except where theContractor
hasagreed toindemnify theOwner.  Thisclause shallbeincluded inallsubcontracts.  

ARTICLE45
HISTORICAL, SCIENTIFICANDARCHAEOLOGICALDISCOVERIES

45.1 Allarticles ofhistorical, scientific orarchaeological interest uncovered bytheContractor
during progress oftheWorkshallbepreserved inaccordance withapplicable lawandreported
immediately totheProject Manager.  Further operations oftheContractor withrespect tothefind,  
including disposition ofthearticles, willbedecided bytheOwner inaccordance withapplicable law.  

ARTICLE46
SUBSTITUTIONS

46.1 Where reference ismadetooneormoreproprietary products butrestrictive descriptive
material ofonlyonemanufacturer isused, itisunderstood thattheproducts ofothermanufacturers
willbeaccepted, provided theyequalorexceed thestandards setforth intheplans and

Page 36of44 135



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

specifications andarecompatible withtheintentandpurpose ofthedesign, subject tothewritten
approval oftheOwner andtheProject Manager.  Ifthedescriptive material isnotrestrictive, the
products ofothermanufacturers specified willbeaccepted without priorapproval provided theyare
compatible with theintentandpurpose ofthedesign.  

46.2TheContractor maypropose thesubstitutions ofanymaterial asasupplement tohisbid
withthemonetary amount, additive ordeductive asmaybethecase, clearly stated.  Manufacturer's
information, catalog numbers, andcomplete descriptive information shallbeincluded withthe
proposed substitution.  Thisshallbecompletely apartandseparate fromthebasebidquotation and
shallbesolely fortheinformation oftheOwner, andtheuseofsuchproposed substitutions shallbe
strictlyatthedecision oftheOwner.  Ifsubstitution isaccepted bytheOwner, theContract sumshall
beadjusted fromthebasebideitherupordownasindicated onthesupplementary list.  

ARTICLE47
INSURANCE

47.1 General

47.1.1TheContractor shallprovide frominsurance companies, acceptable totheOwner, the
insurance coverage designated hereinafter andpayallcosts.  TheContractor alsoindemnifies the
Ownerasfurther described inArticle4.  

47.1.2 Before commencing workunder thisAgreement, theContractor shall furnish theOwner
withcertificates ofinsurance specified herein showing thetype, amount, classofoperations covered,  
effective dates, anddateofexpiration ofpolicies.  Furthermore, eachsuchcertificate shallcontaina
validprovision orendorsement thatthepolicymaynotbecancelled, terminated, changed ormodified
without firstgivingten (10) dayswrittennotice totheOwner, whichnotice mustbesentregistered
mail, return receipt requested, totheProject Manager.  

47.1.3 Incaseofthebreach ofanyprovision ofthisArticle, theOwner, athisoption, maytake
outandmaintain, attheexpense oftheContractor, such insurance astheOwner maydeemproperat
theContractor’sexpense andmaydeduct thecostofsuchinsurance fromanymonies whichmaybe
dueorbecome duetheContractor under thisAgreement.  

47.1.4 TheContractor shalleither:  (1) require eachofhissubcontractors toprocure and
maintain during thelifeofhissubcontract, subcontractors' comprehensive General Liability,  
Automobile Liability andProperty Damage Liability Insurance ofthetypeandinthesameamounts as
specified inthissubparagraph, or (2) insure theactivity ofhissubcontractors inhisownpolicy.  

47.1.5Co-Insurance:  TheContractor herein agrees tonametheOwner asaninsured partyon
allliability insurance policies provided forbythisArticle47, INSURANCE.  

47.1.6Noinsurance shallbecancelled orotherwise voided during theContract period, without
atleast10dayspriorwritten notice totheOwner, norshallanyinsurance beinvalidated should the
insured waiveanyorallrightofrecovery against anyparty.  

Page 37of44 136



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

47.1.7 Liability insurance maybearranged byComprehensive General Liability and
Comprehensive Automobile Liability policies forthefulllimits required; orbyacombination of
underlying Comprehensive Liability policies forlesser limitswiththeremaining limitsprovided byan
Excess orUmbrella Liability policy.  

47.1.8TheOwner shallpurchase andmaintain suchboilerandmachinery insurance asmay
berequired bytheContract Documents orbylaw.This insurance shall include theinterest ofthe
Owner, theContractor, Subcontractors andSub-subcontractors intheWork.  

47.1.9Anylossinsured underArticle47istobeadjusted with theOwner andmadepayable to
theOwner astrustee fortheinsured, astheir interests mayappear, subject totherequirements of
anyapplicable mortgage clause.  TheContractor shallpayeachsubcontractor ajustshareofany
insurance monies received bytheContractor, andbyappropriate shareofanyinsurance monies
received bytheContractor, andbyappropriate agreement, written where legally required forvalidity,  
shall require eachsubcontractor tomakepayments tohissubcontractors insimilar manner.  

47.1.10IftheContractor requests inwriting thatinsurance forrisksother thanthosedescribed
inthisArticleorotherspecial hazards beincluded intheOwner’sproperty insurance policy, the
Owner shall, ifpossible, include suchinsurance, andthecostthereof shallbecharged tothe
Contractor byappropriate Change Order. 

47.1.11TheOwnerastrustee shallhavepower toadjustandsettleanylosswiththeinsurers.  

47.1.12IftheOwner findsitnecessary tooccupyoruseaportion orportions oftheWorkprior
toSubstantial Completion thereof, suchoccupancy oruseshallnotcommence priortoatime
mutually agreed tobytheOwner andContractor andtowhich theinsurance company orcompanies
providing theproperty insurance haveconsented byendorsement tothepolicyorpolicies.  This
insurance shallnotbecancelled orlapsed onaccount ofsuchpartial occupancy oruse.  Consent of
theContractor andoftheinsurance company orcompanies tosuchoccupancy oruseshallnotbe
unreasonably withheld.  

47.2Workmen'sCompensation andEmployer'sLiability Insurance:  

47.2.1TheContractor shallprovide coverage andamounts asrequired bytheWorkmen's
Compensation ActoftheStateofColorado.  

47.2.2TheContractor shallprovide Employer'sLiability Insurance inanamount notlessthan
100,000foreachoccurrence.  

47.2.3 TheContractor shall require anysubcontractor toprovide Workmen'sCompensation
andEmployer'sLiability Insurance inthesameamounts forallofthesubcontractor'semployees tobe
engaged inworkunder thisAgreement.  

47.3 General Liability

47.3.1General Liability Insurance shallbeonaComprehensive General Liability formand
shallprovide coverage forthefollowing:  Premises andOperations, Owners andContractors
Protective, Elevators, Independent Contractors, Products andCompleted Operations, Contractual,  
Personal Injury, andBroad FormProperty Damage; "XCU" exclusions mustbedeleted.  

Page 38of44 137



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

47.3.2Minimum requirements forComprehensive General Liability are:  bodily injury,  
1,000,000.00eachperson, $2,000,000.00eachoccurrence; property damage, $1,000,000.00each

occurrence. 

47.4 Automobile Liability

47.4.1Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance shall include coverage forallowned
motorvehicles andhiredandnon-owned motorvehicles.  

47.4.2 Minimum requirements forComprehensive Automobile Insurance are:  bodily injury,  
1,000,000.00eachperson, $2,000,000.00eachoccurrence; property damage, $1,000,000.00each

occurrence. 

47.5 Property Insurance:  

47.5.1TheOwnermayrequire theContractor topurchase andmaintain "Builder’sRisk"  
Property Insurance forallworkatthesitetothefullinsurable value thereof.  TheOwner andthe
Project Manager shallbenamedasco-insured.  

ARTICLE48
UNCOVERINGANDCORRECTIONOFWORK

48.1 During construction, whenever materials requiring inspection inplacebytheProject
Manager andtheOwner tobepermanently covered up, itshallbeContractor'sresponsibility tonotify
theProject Manager atleast24hours inadvance ofcommencement ofsuchcovering operation.  In
theeventoffailurebyContractor togivesuchnotification, Contractor shall, athisownexpense,  
uncover suchportions ofworkasrequired bytheProject Manager ortheOwner, andreinstall such
covering aftersatisfactory inspection andcorrection ofanyandalldeficiencies.  

ARTICLE49
EQUALOPPORTUNITY

49.1 TheContractor agrees tocomply with theletterandspiritoftheColorado Anti- 
discrimination Actof1957, asamended, andotherapplicable lawsrespecting discrimination and
unfair employment practices (24-34-402, CRS1973, asamended).  TheContractor shallbe
responsible foranydiscriminatory orunfairemployment practices ofhissubcontractors. 
Neither theContractor noranysubcontractor willdiscriminate against anyemployee orapplicant for
employment because ofrace, creed, color, national origin, sex, religion, ancestry, mental orphysical
handicap, orage. Contractor shall takeaffirmative action toinsure thatapplicants areemployed, and
thatemployees aretreated during employment without regard totheirrace, creed, color, national
origin, sex, religion, ancestry, mental orphysical handicap, orage.  Suchactionshall include, butnot
belimited tothefollowing:  employment, upgrading, demotion, ortransfer; recruitment, orrecruitment
advertising; layoffortermination; ratesofpayorother formsofcompensation; andselection for
training, including apprenticeship.  Contractor agrees topostinconspicuous places, available to
employees andapplicants foremployment, notices setting forththepolicies ofnon-discrimination.  

Page 39of44 138



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

49.2 Contractor andallsubcontractors shall, inallsolicitations oradvertisement for
employees placedbythemorontheirbehalf, state thatqualified applicants willreceive consideration
foremployment without regard torace, creed, color, national origin, sex, religion, ancestry, mental or
physical handicap, orage.  

ARTICLE50
CLAIMS

50.1 TheContractor shallnotassert anyclaimarising outofanyactoromission byany
officer, agentoremployee oftheOwner intheexecution orperformance ofthisContract against such
officer, agentoremployee inhisorherindividual orofficial capacities.  

50.2TheContractor shall require eachSeparate Contract Design Professional orContractor
toagree inhisContract nottomakeanyclaimagainst theOwner, itsofficers, agents oremployees,  
byreasonofsuchContract withthecontractor.  

50.3 Nothing inthisContract shallbeconstrued togiveanyperson other thantheOwner and
theContractor anylegalorequitable right, remedy orclaimunder thisContract; anditshallbeheldto
beforthesoleandexclusive benefit oftheOwner andtheContractor.  

ARTICLE51
NOTICES

51.1 Except asotherwise provided herein, anynotice, approval, acceptance, request, bill,  
demand orstatement hereunder fromeitherpartytotheothershallbeinwriting andshallbedeemed
tohavebeengivenwheneitherdelivered personally ordeposited inaU.S. mailbox inapostage- 
prepaid envelope, addressed totheotherpartyviacertified mail. Notices totheOwner shallbe
addressed totheProject Manager byname.  Eitherpartymayatanytimechange suchaddress by
delivering ormailing, asaforesaid, totheotherpartyanoticestating thechange andthechanged
address. 

ARTICLE52
LEGALINSERTIONS, ERRORS, INCONSISTENCIES, ORDISCREPANCIESINCONTRACT

52.1 Itistheintentandunderstanding oftheparties tothisContract thateachandevery
provision oflawrequired tobeinserted inthisContract shallbeandisinserted herein.  Furthermore,  
itishereby stipulated thateverysuchprovision isdeemed tobeinserted herein, andifthrough
mistakes orotherwise, anysuchprovision isnotinserted incorrect form, thenthisContract shallupon
application ofeitherparty, beamended bysuchinsertion soastocomply strictly withthelawand
without prejudice totherightofeitherparty.  

52.2 IfthisContract contains anyerrors, inconsistencies, ambiguities, ordiscrepancies, including
typographical errors, theContractor shall request aclarification ofsamebywriting totheProject
Manager whosedecision shallbebinding upontheparties.  

Page 40of44 139



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE53
CAPTIONSORHEADNOTES

53.1 Thecaptions orheadnotesonarticles orsections ofthisAgreement, andmarginal
notesareintended forconvenience andreference purposes onlyandinnowaydefine, limitor
describe thescopeorintenthereof, orofthisAgreement notinanywayaffect thisAgreement.  

ARTICLE54
EFFECTIVEANDBINDING

54.1 ThisContract shallnotbecome effective orbinding upontheOwner unless ithasbeen
authorized andexecuted inaccordance withtheordinances oftheCityofGreeley. 

ARTICLE55
CONTRACTOR

55.1 Allpersonnel assigned totheProject bytheContractor shallberequired tocooperate
fullywithpersonnel oftheOwner andifinthesolediscretion oftheOwner theContractor'spersonnel
failssotocooperate, theContractor shall relieve themoftheirdutiesontheProject whenrequired by
theOwner.  

55.2 Within seven (7) consecutive calendar daysafterdateofwritten notice tocommence
work, theContractor shalldesignate inwriting oneperson who, onhisbehalf, shallberesponsible for
coordinating alloftheservices toberendered bytheContractor hereunder.  Suchdesignee shallbe
subject totheapproval oftheOwner. Anychange totheapproved designee shallbeproposed in
writingseven (7) daysinadvance andsubject toOwner approval.  

55.3 TheContractor shallengage, athissoleexpense, allengineers, architects, cost
estimators, lawyers, experts andContractors asmayberequired fortheproper performance ofthe
Contract. TheContractor shallberesponsible fortheperformance oftheworkofallarchitects,  
engineers, costestimators, lawyers, experts andContractors soengaged byhim, including
maintenance ofschedules, correlation oftheirworkandresolution ofalldifference between them.  It
isunderstood thatallarchitects, engineers, costestimators, lawyers, experts andContractors are
employees oftheContractor andnotoftheOwner, andtheContractor alone isresponsible fortheir
work. 

55.4 Alldrawings, tracings, specifications, digitalmedia/electronic filesandother material
prepared andfurnished underandforthisContract shallbecome theproperty oftheOwner upon
substantial completion and/ortheiracceptance bytheOwner and/orupontermination oftheservices
oftheContractor.  Suchdocuments shallbepromptly delivered totheOwner upondemand and
thereafter maybeusedbytheOwner inwhole orinpartorinmodified form, forthosepurposes it
maydeemadvisable without further employment of, orpayment ofadditional compensation to, the
Contractor. 

55.5 TheContractor shallnot, without thepriorwritten approval oftheOwner, specify forthe
project, ornecessarily imply therequired useofanyarticle, product, material, fixtureorformof
construction, theuseofwhichiscovered byapatent, orwhich isotherwise exclusively controlled bya
particular firmorgroupoffirms.  

Page 41of44 140



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

55.6 Should anyclaimbemadeoranyaction brought against theOwner relating tothe
design andsatisfactory operation oftheProject herein, theContractor shalldiligently render tothe
Owner without additional compensation anyandallassistance whichmayberequested bythe
Owner. 

55.7 TheOwner'sProject Manager’sdecision shallbefinalandbinding upontheContractor
astoallmatters arising inconnection withorrelating tothisContract.The Project Manager shall
determine theamount, quality, acceptability andfitnessoftheworkbeingperformed hereunder and
shalldetermine allmatters relative tothefulfillment ofthisContract onthepartoftheContractor and
suchdetermination shallbefinalandbinding ontheContractor.  Acceptance bytheOwnerofany
document hereunder andallsupporting documents shallnotrelieve theContractor ofsole
responsibility forworkperformed under thiscontract, including, butnotlimited to, thefinaldesignof
theProject, including theplans, specifications andallsupporting documents, except astoanyfeature
thereof which theOwner hadspecifically directed inwriting tobeincluded over thewritten objection of
theContractor.  Incaseanyquestion shallarise, thedecision oftheOwner'sProject Manager, whois
hereby accepted bytheContractor asthearbiter, shallbeacondition precedent totherightofthe
Contractor toreceive anymoney under thisContract.  

ARTICLE56
APPEALS

56.1 Except asotherwise provided inthisContract, anydispute concerning aquestion offact
arising under thisContract whichisnotdisposed ofbyAgreement shallbedecided bytheProject
Manager, whoshall reduce hisdecision towritingandmailorotherwise furnishacopythereof tothe
Contractor.  Thedecision oftheProject Manager shallbefinalandconclusive unless, within fifteen
15)days fromthedateofreceipt ofsuchcopy, theContractor mailsorotherwise furnishes tothe

Project Manager awritten noticeofappeal. 

56.2 Intheeventadecision ofthe Project Manager isthesubject ofanappeal, suchdispute
maybesettled byappropriate legalproceeding, or, iftheparties mutually agree, through arbitration or
administrative process.  Pending anybinding arbitrative oradministrative decision, appeal, or
judgment referred tointhissection orthesettlement ofanydispute arising under thisContract, the
Contractor shallproceed diligently with theperformance ofthisContract.  

56.3Venueandjurisdiction ofanysuit, right, orcauseofaction
arising underorinconnection withthisContract shall lieexclusively inWeldCounty, Colorado.  

ARTICLE57
PROHIBITEDINTEREST

57.1Nomember, officeroremployee oftheCityofGreeley shallhaveanyfinancial or
pecuniary interest, directorindirect, inthisContract ortheproceeds thereof. 

Page 42of44 141



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE58
FINDINGSCONFIDENTIAL

58.1 Anyreports, information, data, etc., available toorprepared orassembled byContractor
under thisContract shallnotbemadeavailable toanyindividual ororganization byContractor without
consent inwriting fromtheOwner subject toapplicable law.  

ARTICLE59
GENERALPROVISIONS

59.1 Services andworkperformed byContractor under thisContract shallconform to
reasonable andnormal professional standards known andaccepted within thecommunity.  

59.2 Noreports, graphics orothermaterial produced directly orindirectly fortheOwner
under thisContract shallbethesubject ofanapplication forcopyright ortrademark byoronbehalfof
Contractor. 

59.3ThelawsoftheStateofColorado andapplicable Federal, stateandlocal laws,  
regulations andguidelines shallgovern hereunder.  

59.4Theheadings ofthearticles, clauses, andparagraphs ofthisContract areinserted for
reference purposes onlyandarenotrestrictive astocontent.  

59.5ThisContract andanysubsequent amendment shallbedeemed anoriginal having
identical legaleffect, andallofwhich together constitute oneandthesame instrument.  

59.6Nothing contained herein shallbedeemed togiveanythirdpartyanyclaimorrightof
action against theOwner whichdoesnototherwise existwithout regard tothisContract.  

59.7Whereanumber ofdaysisspecified inthisContract itshallmeancalendar daysunless
otherwise specified.  

59.8ThisContract shallnotbeassigned, inwholeorinpart, without thewritten consent of
theProject Manager andContractor.  

59.9TheOwner certifies thefollowing;  
A.Anamount ofmoney equal toorgreater thantheContract amount has

beenappropriated andbudgeted fortheProject which thisContract concerns.  
B.NoChange Orderwhich requires additional compensable worktobe

performed bytheContractor willbeissuedbytheOwner unlessanamount ofmoneyhasbeen
appropriated andbudgeted sufficient tocompensate theContractor forsuchadditional compensable
workunlesssuchworkiscovered under theremedy-granting provisions ofthisContract.  

C.Asusedinthisparagraph, "remedy granting provision" shallmean any
clauseofthisContract whichpermits additional compensation intheeventofaspecific contingency
oreventoccurs.  Thistermshall include, butnotbelimited to, change clauses, differing site
conditions clauses, variation inquantities clauses, andtermination forconvenience clauses.  

Page 43of44 142



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

ARTICLE60
CONTRACTORACCEPTANCE

60.1 Theacceptance bytheContractor, hissuccessors orassigns ofanypayment madeon
thefinalacceptance oftheProject under thisContract orofanyfinalpayment dueontermination of
thisContract, shallconstitute afullandcomplete release oftheOwner fromanyandallclaims,  
demands andcauses ofaction whatsoever whichtheContractor, hissuccessors orassigns haveor
mayhaveagainst theOwner under theprovisions ofthisContract.  

60.2 Noactionshallbemaintained bytheContractor, itssuccessors orassigns, against the
Owner onanyclaimsbased uponorarising outofthisContract oroutofanything doneinconnection
with thisContract unless suchactionshallbecommenced within 180daysafter thedateoffilingof
thevoucher forfinalpayment hereunder intheofficeoftheFinance Director, orwithin180daysofthe
termination ofthisContract.  

ARTICLE61
SUCCESSORSANDASSIGNS

61.1 TheContractor binds itself, itspartners, successors, assigns andlegal representatives
totheotherparty tothisContract andtothepartners, successors, assigns andlegal representatives
ofsuchotherpartywithrespectofallcovenants ofthisAgreement.  TheContractor shallnottransfer,  
assign, orsubcontract anyinterest inthisAgreement.  

ARTICLE62
SEVERABILITYCLAUSE

62.1 Ifanyprovision ofthisAgreement issubsequently declared bylegislative orjudicial
authority tobeunlawful, unenforceable, ornotinaccordance withapplicable laws, statutes, and
regulations oftheUnited StatesofAmerica andtheStateofColorado, allother provisions ofthis
Agreement shall remain infullforceandeffect.  

ARTICLE63

63.1 ThisAgreement represents theentireandintegrated Agreement between theOwner
andtheContractor andsupersedes allpriornegotiations, representations oragreements, either
written ororal.  ThisAgreement maybeamended onlybywritten instrument signed bybothOwner
andContractor.  

ARTICLE64

64.1 Inaccordance withC.R.S. §8-17-101, allparties contracting withtheCityofGreeley on
publicworks projects shallemploy Colorado labor toperform theworktotheextentofnotlessthan
eighty percent (80%) ofeachtypeorclassoflabor intheseveral classifications ofskilled and
common laboremployed onthisproject.  

ARTICLE65

65.1TheContract Documents maybeexecuted intwoormorecounterparts, eachofwhich
shallbedeemed anoriginal butallofwhich together shallconstitute oneandthesamedocument.  
TheContract Documents, including allcomponent partssetforthabove, maybeexecuted and
delivered byelectronic signature byanyoftheparties andallparties consent totheuseofelectronic
signatures. 

Page 44of44 143



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SECTION520
SUBCONTRACTORS/MATERIALS SUPPLIERS ANDRELATEDDATA

FirmName:___________________________________________CityContractors License #____________  
PrimaryContractor____________________________ 

PROJECT:_______________________________ Address:____________________________________ 

ForeachSubcontractor and/orMaterialsSupplierstobeutilized, pleaseprovidethefollowinginformation
useadditionalsheetsasnecessary): 

PhoneNumber:______________________________FaxNumber:________________________________  
Proposedworkandpercentageoftotalworktobeassigned______________________________________  

Percentage:______________%  

FirmName:___________________________________________CityContractorsLicense #__________  
Address:____________________________________________________________________________  
PhoneNumber:______________________________FaxNumber:______________________________  
Proposedworkandpercentageoftotalworktobeassigned___________________________________  

Percentage:____________%  

FirmName:___________________________________________CityContractorsLicense #__________  
Address:____________________________________________________________________________  
PhoneNumber:______________________________FaxNumber:______________________________  
Proposedworkandpercentageoftotalworktobeassigned___________________________________  

Percentage:____________%  

FirmName:___________________________________________CityContractorsLicense #__________  
Address:____________________________________________________________________________  
PhoneNumber:______________________________FaxNumber:______________________________  
Proposedworkandpercentageoftotalworktobeassigned___________________________________  

Percentage:____________%  

FirmName:___________________________________________CityContractorsLicense #__________  
Address:____________________________________________________________________________  
PhoneNumber:______________________________FaxNumber:______________________________  
Proposedworkandpercentageoftotalworktobeassigned___________________________________  

Percentage:____________%  

IfthePrimaryContractoraddsanySubcontractors orMaterials Suppliersduringthedurationoftheproject,  
thePrimaryContractorwillsupplytheCitywithanupdatedformbeforetheSubcontractor orMaterials
Supplierwillbeallowedtoworkontheproject. 

144



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SECTION 00620 - SPECIAL PROVISIONS

2018Concrete Repair Program

YearTwo (2018) ofThree (2017- 2019)  

1. Period: ThisAgreement shall commence when thiscontract issigned bytheCity, andshall
continue infull forceonecalendar year2018 thereafter, unless sooner terminated asherein
provided.  Inaddition, attheoption oftheCity, theagreement maybeextended fortwo (2) 

2018and2019additional one-yearperiods 2018and2019.  Pricing changes in , ifany, will
benegotiated byandagreed tobybothparties. Note: this isthe2018project yearonthe
contract. 

2. Multi-termcontracts – specified period:  Unless otherwise provided bylaw, acontract for
supplies orservices maybeentered intoforanyperiod oftimedeemed tobeinthebest
interests oftheCity, provided that thetermofthecontract andconditions ofrenewal or
extension, ifany, areincluded inthesolicitation andfunds areavailable forthefirst fiscal
period atthetimeofcontracting.  Payment andperformance obligations forsucceeding fiscal
periods willbesubject totheavailability andappropriation offunds. 

3.Cancellation duetounavailability offunds insucceeding fiscal periods:  When funds arenot
appropriated orotherwise made available tosupport continuation ofperformance ina
subsequent fiscal period, thecontract maybecanceled. 

SpecialProvisions -  1
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

145



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SCOPE OFWORK

Thework inthiscontract willconsist offurnishing alllabor, equipment, andmaterials forthe
replacement orconstruction ofdesignated concrete curbs, gutters, pavements, concrete
driveways, sidewalks, handicap ramps, minor landscaping repairs, possible reconstruction of

Atleast60% inlet topsandother related and incidental work required tocomplete theproject.   
oftheworkmustbeperformed using theContractor’ sownpersonnel. 

1. NOTICE TOBIDDERS: There isasetamount offunding available forconstruction.  Due
tobudgetary constraints, thecurrent ScopeofWork, asreflected intheBidSchedule
quantities, maybeincreased ordecreased asnecessary orallowed tomeet thebudget goals. 
PROJECT DESCRIPTIONA Notice toproceedisexpected tobeissued onorabout
May10, 2018.   Work ingeneral consists ofremoval andreplacement ofanestimated 3,216
linear feetofcurbandgutter andapproximately 6,000square yardsofconcrete including
sidewalks, access ramps, cross-pans, alleyaprons, etc.  Some ofthelocations areplanned in
accordance withthe2018overlay.  Repair locations include butarenot limited to:   Rolling
Hills, Downtown, Cascade ParkNeighborhoods.  Work isalsoon25thStreet ramps andpans
on28thAvenue. Contract timeis120calendar days. 

Please note that theestimated quantities in “Section 00130 – BidSchedule” areonly
estimates, thetotalmeant tocorrespond withOwner’sconstruction budget.  Actualwork
scope quantities willbe dependent onthesuccessful Bidder’sunitbidprices. 

2. GOVERNING SPECIFICATIONS Thefollowing manuals aremade partofthese
specifications: 

1)TheCityofGreeley Public Works Design Criteria andConstruction Specifications
Manual (DCCSM), Volume 1 “Streets”, latest edition.  Acopyofthespecifications
manual canbeobtained fromtheCityofGreeley Public Works Department located at
10019thAvenue. 

2)TheColorado Division ofTransportation ( CDOT) Standard Specifications forRoad
andBridge Construction, theCDOT M & SStandards, CDOT Construction Manual, 
andCDOT Materials Manuallatest editions. 

Incaseofconflict, documents shall havethefollowing priorities: (1) Special Provisions, (2)  
General Conditions, (3) DCCSM, and (4) CDOT Standard Specifications.  

ALLCONSTRUCTION WILL MEET THEAMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES
ACT (ADA) CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS ( LATEST EDITION). 

3. UTILITYLOCATES TheCitywillnotberesponsible foranyconstruction down time
duetofailure ontheContractor’spart toNOTIFY utility companies ofconflicts.  The
Contractor willcontact theutility companies before construction.  CallUtilityNotification
Center ofColorado forutility locates (ph. 811).  Noworkwillbeallowed tobeperformed
untilContractor calls forandreceives utility locates. 

SpecialProvisions -  2
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

146



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

4. CONTRACT TIME & SCHEDULING CONTRACT TIME forthisproject willbe120
Calendar Dayscalendar days.   isdefined aseachandevery dayshown onthecalendar, 

including weekends andholidays.  Itisanticipated that theNotice toProceedwill beissued
onorabout May10, 2017. 

Approximately 7-14calendar daysbefore construction commences, theContractor willbe
provided withaninitial listofwork locations.  TheCity reserves theright toprioritize work
locations.  TheContractor shall provide acomplete SCHEDULE fortheinitial construction
projects within 72hours. 

Schedule changes shallbeprovided totheConstruction Inspector each Monday by10:00
a.m.  Updates andchanges shallbedistinguished fromprevious schedules. 

Throughout theduration oftheContract, theCitywillprovide theContractor withadditional
project locations ifthereareany.  These additional locations shallbeprovided tothe
contractor onaperiodical basis.  TheCitywillmake aneffort tocollect multiple worksites
before submittal tothecontractor.  TheContractor shall provide aSCHEDULE foreach
successive listwithin 48hoursofreceiving said list. 

Every effort shallbemadebytheContractor tocomplete theproject within the “Contract
Time.”The “Contract Time” anticipates “Normal” weather andclimate.  TheContractor’s
schedule mustanticipate normal adverse weather delays onallweather dependent activities.   
Foradditional information regarding adverse weather seeArticle 32, “Extension ofTime” in
theGeneral Conditions.  

Allstreets will remain open totraffic.  TheContractor mustallow forthiswhen scheduling
hiswork.  TheContractor islimited toworking normal business days/ hours, 7:00a.m. to
5:00p.m.   IftheContractor chooses toworkoutside thesenormal business days/hours, a
request mustbemade totheCity48hoursprior.  Iftherequest isapproved, therewillbea
deduction fromthefinalpayestimate tocover inspection costs.  ForoneConstruction
Inspector working overtime onajob, theContractor willbecharged $75.00/hr.  This
deduction maybewaived partially orinitsentirety, atthediscretion oftheCity, based on
unusual orspecial circumstances. 

Contract Period: ThisAgreement shallcommence when thiscontract issigned bytheCity,  
andshall continue infull forceonecalendar year thereafter, unless sooner terminated as
herein provided.  Inaddition, attheoptionoftheCity, theagreement maybeextended for
two (2) additional one-year periods 2018 & 2019.  Pricing changes in2014and2015, ifany,  
willbenegotiated byandagreed tobybothparties. Note: Original contract year is2013— 
Renewal years 2018 & 2019.  

Multi-termcontracts: Specified period.  Unless otherwise provided bylaw, acontract for
supplies orservices maybeentered into foranyperiod oftimedeemed tobeinthebest
interests oftheCity, provided that thetermofthecontract andconditions ofrenewal or
extension, ifany, areincluded inthesolicitation andfunds areavailable for thefirst fiscal
period atthetimeofcontracting.  Payment andperformance obligations forsucceeding fiscal
periods willbesubject totheavailability andappropriation offunds therefore.   

SpecialProvisions -  3
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

147



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

Cancellation duetounavailability offunds insucceeding fiscal periods:  When funds arenot
appropriated orotherwise made available tosupport continuation ofperformance ina
subsequent fiscal period, thecontract maybecanceled. 

5. PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING Thedateforthepre-construction meetingwill be
announced after thebidsareopened andthecontract hasbeenawarded. TheContractor will
beexpected topresent totheCityofGreeley thefollowing itemsatthepre-construction
meeting: 

1)Traffic Control Plan
2)CopyofConcrete Design Mixes
3)Material Suppliers’ List
4)Subcontractor List
5)Copyoftheproposed Work Notification leaflet
6)CopyoftheTraffic Control Supervisor’sCertification

requiredTheContractor’sCrew Supervisoris toattend thepre-construction meeting.Crew
Supervisoris described asthat individualwho willdirectly supervise theon-site
demolition/construction crewmembers. 

TheContractor isrequiredto obtain alocal telephone number before commencement ofwork
andmaintain thetelephone number until completion ofthecontract.  This telephone number
andacontact name willbeprinted onallnotification pamphlets.  Donotplace pamphlets in
mailboxes. 

6. PERMITS TheContractor mustobtain allnecessary permits forthework.  Feeswillbe
waivedfor Citypermits. 

7. EMERGENCY AGENCY NOTIFICATIONS TheContractor willberesponsible for
notifyingallemergency agencies(350-9600) when andwhere workwillbedone inthe
public rights-of-wayofmajor collector oranyarterialstreets/avenues. TheContractor will
beresponsible forgiving allemergency agencies atelephone number where theycanbe
reached.  TheContractor willalsoberesponsible fornotifying TheBuswhenever they are
working nearabusstop. Contact GETServices (350-9281). 

8. CREW SUPERVISOR TheContractor’sCrew Supervisordesignated atthepre- 
construction meeting shallbewithinareasonable travel distance toallworksitesduring
construction.  Duetothenature ofthisprogram, anumber ofsitesmayhaveactivity atany
onetime.  Atall times, theCrew Supervisor, oradesignee appointed tomake finaldecisions
onbehalf ofthecontractor, shallbeavailable within 30minutes toanyactive construction
site.  Because theCitycontact isEnglish speaking, theCrew Supervisor, ortheappointed
designee, mustbecapable ofcommunicating withtheCitycontact inEnglish. 

9. PROJECT MEETINGS Frequency andlocation ofproject meetingswill bedetermined at
thePre-Construction meeting. 

10. TRAFFIC CONTROL TheContractor will comply with therequirements ofSection
01010,Paragraph 1.3.GoftheStreetsDesign Criteria andConstruction Specifications
DCCSM).  TheContractor willnotdoanyconstruction work inthepublic right-of-way

SpecialProvisions - 4
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

148



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

Traffic Controlprior totheCity’sreview andacceptance oftheTraffic Control Plan.  The
Planwill include theCity’sTraffic Control PlanReview form. 

TheContractor shall designatean individual, other thantheCrew Supervisor, tobethe
except duringTraffic Control Supervisor (TCS).  TheTCSwillnotberequired tobeonsite, 

jobsetup butmustbeavailable twenty-four (24) hours aday.  Thename andphone number
oftheTCSwillbe provided totheCityatthePre-Construction meeting.  TheContractor will
alsoprovide thenameandphone number ofanalternate local traffic control company that
willactontheContractor’sbehalf incase thedesignated TCScannot bereached.   
Alternatively, theCityoritssubcontractor mayperform traffic control services, atcost tothe
Contractor, ifContractor isunresponsive orotherwise isdeemed tonotbeperforming traffic
control duties inaccordance with thesubmitted plan. 

TheContractor willbenotified when thetraffic control foranyworksiteisobserved tobein
anunacceptable condition.  TheContractor willnotbeallowed tocontinue workatthat
location until theproblems arecorrected.  Failure tocorrect thetraffic control deficiencies
prior tocontinuance oftheworkwillresult innon-payment for theworkperformed atthe
locations inquestion. 

Traffic Control willbepaid foraspartoftheunitprice forthevarious concrete work
andwillnotbepaidforseparatelyexceptwhere itemizedinSection 130 –BidSchedule

Certified Flagger”& “ Arrow Board”). Payment forthese twoitemswillbemadeonly
when theirneedisindicated ontheapproved Traffic Control Plans, theiruseis
required bytheMUTCD, orwhen/where otherwise requested ordirected bytheCity. 

This information isnotguaranteed tobefinal, complete orall-inclusive, andisprovided only
asanaidtoassist Bidders inpreparing theirBids. 

TheContractor shallbesolely andcompletely responsible fortheconditions atandadjacent
tothejobsite, including thesafetyofallpersons andproperty during theperformance ofthe
work.  This requirement shallapply continuously andshallnotbelimited tonormal working
hours.  ThedutyoftheCitytoconduct construction review oftheContractor’sperformance
isnotintended toinclude review oftheadequacy oftheContractor’ssafety measures in, on,  
ornear theconstruction site. 

TheContractor shallprovide alllights, signs, barricades, flagpersons,TCSor other devices
necessary toprovide forpublic andworker safety inaccordance with thecurrent Manual of
Uniform Traffic Control Devices, andtheCityofGreeley supplement thereto. 

11. EQUIPMENT STAGING/PARKING– Withsitespecific approval fromtheCity, there is
thepotential thatcontractor’svehicles, trailers, large equipment andsupplies potentially can
beparkedalongthe curbs inpublic rights-of-way.  Should aresident complain about the
equipmentlocation, theContractor shallmove those itemsto another location.  All items left
overnight shall haveappropriate traffic control devices setup.  TheContractor shallnotpark
onanyprivate property without permission from theproperty owner. 

12. CONSTRUCTION Subgrade shallbeaccepted bytheCityprior toplacement ofany
concrete. 

TheContractor must possess anduseastamp that includes theContractors name andtheyear

SpecialProvisions - 5
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

149



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

inwhich thework isbeing done.  Thestampwillbeusedtostamp theconcrete to
permanently identify theContractor thatperformed theconcrete work.  Locations willbeas
directed bytheCity.  TheContractor willnotbeallowed toplace concrete until theCityhas
approved thestamp foruse. 

TheContractor will cleanly remove onlyenough existing asphalt toallow forinstallation of
formwork.  Contractor willbe carefulthat subgrade exposed byexcavations orremovals does
notbecome saturated oroverly wet.  Anysubgrade materialsthat become unstable orare
unable toobtain proper compaction duetotheentry ofexcessive moisture mustbe
excavated, replaced withsuitable material, andapproved bytheCity.  Additionally, removal
ofexisting workmayberequired toensure alldamaged subgrade isremoved andreplaced.   
Noadditional payment willbemade forthiswork. 

Hot-mixasphalt shallbeusedtofillthevoidremaining after removal offormwork until
apermanent Asphalt Patch isplaced byothers. 

Allconcrete edges willbeformed unless allowed ordirected otherwise bytheCity.  Thenew
workwillbecured andprotected bytheContractor frombikes, dogs, foot traffic, vandalism,  
etc. until theconcrete hasreached astage where itcannot bedefaced ormarred.  Newwork
leftunattended anddisfigured ordefaced maybecause forthework toberejected atthe
discretion oftheCityandreplaced atContractor’sexpense. 

TheCityofGreeley strongly recommends theuseofanapproved concrete sealer, even
whennotrequiredby CityStandards, toprotect theContractor’sworkwhich willbe
exposed tosalts, chemicals, orother elements. TheCity’sapproval ofaparticular sealer
doesnotrelieve theContractor ofanyWarranty responsibilities ( seebelow).Areas where
theexisting concrete hasheaved orwhere, intheopinion oftheCity, newly placed concrete
hasthepotential toheave, shall receive special sub-basetreatment.  These areaswillbeover
excavated aminimum of8inches andthevoid filled withanapproved Compacted
Stabilization Material; suchas,Cl. 6ABC, recycled crushed concrete orMGPEC Road Base,  
asdirected bytheCity.  Theoverexcavation willbeincluded inthecostoftheconcrete work
unless theexcavation exceeds onefoot. 

TheContractor willprotect theasphalt (bothexisting andnew) fromsolvents andoils.   
Equipment leaking anyfluidwillberemoved fromtheworksite immediately andmaynotbe
returned totheworksiteuntilall leaks arerepaired.  Ifanypieceofequipment leaksfluida
second time, itwillberemoved from theworksite immediately andwillnotbeallowed on
theworksiteagain fortheremainder oftheproject. 

Barricades andsignageshall remain inplaceduring thecourse oftheworkoruntil concrete
reaches 80% ofdesign strength.  Contractor istoprovide 48-hours notice totheCityofwhen
barricades andsignage areexpected toberemoved. 

Eachworksitewillbecleaned andhave traffic control removed within seven daysoffinal
concrete placement.  Forms willberemoved, concrete debris willbepicked up,theworkarea
willbeswept, sprinklers willberaised, replaced orrepaired, voidswillbefilledand/or
sodded, andallother work related tocleanup, irrigation, andlandscape repairwillbe
completed tothesatisfaction oftheCity. 

SpecialProvisions - 6
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

150



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

13. CONSTRUCTION STAKING TheCityofGreeley’sCapital Improvement Division
Surveying staffwillprovide initial construction staking ofimprovements whenrequested, or
attherequest oftheCity’sdesignated Construction Inspector.  Replacement ofstakes lostor
destroyed bytheContractor willbetheContractor'sresponsibility.  TheCity’ssurveying
staffwillreplace lostordestroyed stakes attherateof $110perhourattherequest ofthe
Contractor.  Aminimum ofone (1) hourwillbecharged tothecontractor foreachrequest. 

14. VEHICULAR ACCESS –  Driveways andother vehicular access points willbeclosed fora
minimum amount oftime, butshall innocasebeclosed longer thanseven calendar days
without theapproval oftheCity.  TheContractor willcoordinate commercial driveway and
major access closures (suchasmultiple family entrances) withproperty owners oneweek
prior toconstruction bywritten notification, withfinalapproval bytheCity.  Ifdirected by
theCity, individual driveways andother concrete mayberequired tobeopenwithin 24hours
ofplacement.  Atsuch locations, anappropriate High EarlyStrength (HES) concrete mix
mayberequired.  When usedatthedirection oftheCity, HESconcrete willbepaidforatthe
UnitBidPrice. 

15. PERMANENT STREET SIGNAGE Permanent street signagework willbedonebythe
CityofGreeley atnocost totheContractor.  Removal ofallsignswillbecoordinated with
theCity.  TheContractor shall notremove anyCitysigns.  Itshallbetheresponsibility ofthe
Contractor tonotify theCityTraffic Division at350-9355when street andtraffic signs are
ready tobepermanently re-set (48hours prior toremoval oftraffic control devices).  Prior to
anyremovals, Contractor istonote anddocument anypavement andcurbmarkings thatmay
beremoved orobliterated byconstruction activities. 

16. MATERIALS ACCEPTANCE & QUALITY CONTROL TESTING Allconcrete shall
meetMGPEC Construction Specifications Items11.2and11.8, unless otherwise approved by
theCity. 

TheCitywillprovide quality control andquality assurance sampling andtesting totheextent
theCitydeems necessary forproject acceptance.  TheContractor shall coordinate with the
Cityastowhenthework isready fortesting.  TheContractor shall assist theCity in
obtaining samples fortesting.  TheContractor shall uncover andrecover atnocost tothe
Cityanywork completed prior totesting andallow theCitytotest.  TheContractor shallbe
responsible forcosts associated withre-testing materials that fail tests. 

17. GRADINGUnclassified ExcavationCosts associated with willbeincluded intheunit
priceoftheconcrete workandwillnotbepaidforseparately.  Theexception tothiswould
beifanarearequires excavations greater thanonefoottoencounter acceptable subgrade
material.  Payment fortheexcavation over onefootwillbepaidforattheUnitBidPrice. 
Compacted Stabilization Materialtoreplace Unclassified Excavation greater thanonefoot
deepwillbepaidforattheUnitBidPrice. 

18. EROSION CONTROL & PROTECTION OFSTORM DRAINS Contractor is
responsible forcontrol androuting ofstorm water runoff draining around andfromthe
construction areatoprevent erosion, sedimentation orotherdamage tostorm drain systems. 
Therequirements ofsaw-cutting andconcrete placement areprovided intheStorm Drain
Management Division BestPractices document attached herein. 

SpecialProvisions -  7
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

151



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

19. WORK ADJUSTMENTS TheCity reserves theright toprioritize construction atspecific
locations intheCity.  TheCity reserves theright toadd, delete, and/orsubstitute other
construction tothisproject.  Quantities maybeadded ordeleted andadjustments willbe
made tothecontract priceaccording tothecontract unitprices provided onTheContractors
Schedule. Sizeable adjustments inoverall contract scope mayresult inacorresponding
adjustment tothecontract time. 

20. BIDITEMDESCRIPTIONS

ItemNo.Description

Remove CurbandGutter (0to2’ pan) 1)– This item includes Vertical-FaceCurband
Gutter (DetailS-16); Median CurbandGutter (Detail S-- Face Barrier
Curb (Detail S-18); Drive-OverCurb andGutter (Detail S-15A); and includes
sections withhigh-backcurbandoccasionally typical curbandgutter sections.  Any
excess width ofpansover two- 
2. 

Remove Concrete Flatwork (thickness varies) 2)– Includes allconcrete sidewalks,  
driveways, alley aprons, access ramps, cross pans, aprons, andconcrete pavements
andanyportion ofagutter paninexcess ofthetypical two- 
normally associated with “curbandgutter.” 

Remove Drive-OverCurb, Gutter, andSidewalkcombo. 3)– Includes anytypeof
drive-overcurb, gutter, andsidewalk regardless ofwidth.  Payment isbased upon
linear distances running parallel totheflowline atthemid-point inthewidth. 

Remove Asphalt Thickness Varies- 4) Includes theremoval ofexisting asphalt walk- 
pathorremoval ofasphalt toaccommodate for larger areaofconcrete placement.  
Removal ofasphalt forconcrete formswillnotbepaidforwith this item. 

Concrete SawcutDemo5)-- Sawcutshallbepaidbythelinear foot (LF) andonly in
those areasnotbeing removed atanexisting joint. 

Concrete SawcutJoint6)– Sawcutshall bepaidbythelinear foot (LF) andonlyat
theCity’srequest inlieuoftooled joints.  

7)– This itemshallbepaidfor inlinear

2feet.  SeeStandard Detail Nos. S-16andS-18. 

24Hr. High-EarlyMix –UpCharge8)– Ifdirected bytheCity, individual driveways
andother concrete mayberequired tobeopenwithin 24hoursofplacement.  Atsuch
locations, anappropriate High-Early Strength (HES) concrete mixmayberequired.   
When usedatthedirection oftheCity, HESconcrete willbepaidforatcubic yards
CY).  Written permission fromtheConstruction Inspector ortheProject Manager is

required prior toinstallation. 

SpecialProvisions - 8
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

152



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

Standard Drive-OverC&GandSWcombination9)– SeeStandard Detail No. S-15. 
Thewidthshall varydepending onthelocation, butinmost casesshallmatch
existing.  Itemshallbepaidforaslinear feet (LF) andbased upon distances running
parallel totheflowline atthemid-point inthewidth. 

10)– Ingeneral this thickness shall include items; suchas, sidewalks,  
those similar to, butnot limited to, Standard Details S-16andS-21).  Payment isin

square yards (SY). 

New8” Concrete11)– Ingeneral this thickness shall include items such assidewalks
where vehicular traffic suchastrash trucks ispossible), cross pans, commercial

driveway aprons, concrete paving, etc., (those similar to, butnot limited to, Standard
Details S-11, S-12, S-12-4, S-16, S-21, S-26, S-27, S-28andS-29). 

Placed withBuggy) 12)– Concrete
shallbereinforced withBuckeye UltraFiber 500Fiberorequal andshallbeusedata
rateof1.5lbspercubic yardofconcrete orasspecified bythemanufacturer.In
general thisitemshall include items; suchas, bikepathorwalkpath, (those similar
to, butnot limited to, Standard Details S-29).This itemwillbeplaced throughout
parksandgolfcourses bybuggy. 

Unclassified Excavation (greater than1ft.) 13)– Costs associated withthisbid item
willbeincluded intheunitpriceoftheconcrete workandwillnotbepaidfor
separately.  Theexception tothiswould beifanarearequires excavations greater
thanonefoot (1ft.) toencounter acceptable subgrade material.  Atthatpoint the
over-excavation would bepaidforcubic yards (CY). 

Compacted Stabilization Material, Import14)– Materials shall conform totheCityof
Greeley’sConstruction Specifications, Streets, Section 02229, Aggregate Base
Course.  Where possible wewould recommend theusageofrecycled crushed
concrete.  Contractor shallsubmit delivery slips totheCityforreimbursement ofthis
biditem.  Thisbiditemshall bepaidforintonunits.   

Major Re-landscaping (Sprinkler runs, etc.)  15)-- Includes finalgrading orlaying
backofadjacent existing gradesorothersuchre-shaping ofanareato blend toand
match thegrade ofthenewWork.  Forgrading tobeconsidered forpayment under
thisbiditem, theextent ofthere-grading mustbesuchthatequipment ormachinery
isrequired toperform thework

Contractor shallnotify residents, andinthecaseofrental units, theProperty Owner
aswell, whenareas arenewly seeded orotherwise landscaped asaconsequence of
thework.  Contractor istoprovide property owners withwritten recommendations on
maintaining andcaring fornewly installed landscaping inorder toensure successful
establishment ofthenew landscaping.  Arecord ofsuchnotices andcopiesofsame
shallbekeptbytheContractor andmade available totheCitywhen requested.   
Failure oftheContractor tomaintain these records mayresult inContractor replacing
thelandscaping atContractor’sowncost ifthenewlandscaping fails toestablish
itself.  Sprinkler System Repair includes thelengthening orshortening oflineover
fivefeet, installation ofnewheads (doesnot include replacement ofheads damaged

SpecialProvisions - 9
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

153



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

byContractor), andremoval andreplacement oflarge sections ofasystem.  Forwork
tobepaid forunder thisbiditem, theCitymustauthorize allwork toSprinkler
System Repairs prior tomaking adjustments.  Payment forSprinkler System Repair
willbepaidforbythehourand includes allmaterial, labor, andequipment costs.   
Minor sprinkler adjustments willbeincluded inthecostoftheconcrete andwill
include shortening oflines, orlengthening thelines fivefeetorless, andraising or
lowering sprinkler heads.  Breakage bytheContractor toexisting sprinkler headsor
linesshall berepaired bytheContractor atnocost totheCityortheproperty owner.   
Contractor istonotify theproperty owner 72hours inadvance when sprinkler
adjustments, repairs, orreplacements arescheduled.  Allsprinkler work istobetested
with theproperty owner present.  TheOwner maywaive thisrequirement ifunwilling
orunable tobepresent. Contractor shallobtain thiswaiver inwritten formfromthe
Owner.  

Adjust Valve Box– 16) Adjust upordown tofinishgrade. 

Landscape Curb0to6– 17) Perthedetail attached totheseSpecial Provisions.  Tobe
usedonly where directed inlieuofgrading outfinish gradetomatch new
construction. 

Landscape Curb7” –18”  18)– Pertheattached detail tothese Special Provisions.  To
beusedonlywhere directed inlieuofgrading outfinish grade tomatch new
construction. 

Landscape Curb19-48” – 19) Pertheattached detail tothese Special Provisions. Tobe
usedonlywhere directed inlieuofgrading outfinished grade toMatch new
construction. 

Cast IronADA Detectable Warning Plates-- 20) shallbeADAcompliant.  Theplates
aretoprovide integral lugsoranchors such thatanchorage isprovided to
mechanically secure theplates intotheconcrete.  Theplates aretobeapproved bythe
Cityprior touse.  Detectable Warning Plates willbepaidforbythesquare foot.   
Detectable Warning Plates willbepaid forinaddition totheconcrete intowhich they
areset. 

Chase Drain (Max. 12Opening) 21)– Thisbiditemshall conform toStandard Detail
S-23.  Should thesidewalk bedetached fromthecurbasinDetail S-23-D, the
concrete channel fromthesidewalk tothestreetwillbepaidforasvertical Curband
Gutter. 

TreeRootPruning – 22) TheContractor mustengage theservices ofalicensed arborist,  
aslicensed bytheCityofGreeley Forestry Division, foralltreerootpruningof roots
larger thantwoinches indiameter.  IftheContractor cansatisfy therequirements of
theCityForester byperforming theworkwithContractor’sownpersonnel, the
services ofalicensed arborist maynotbenecessary.  Rootpruning onlyapplies to
livetrees.  Anyother root removal shallbedesignated asincidental tosubgrade
preparation.  This itemshallbepaidbythehour. 

Colored Concrete (addon) 23)– Add-oncostperCYofany thickness concrete (based
on4sackcolor). 

SpecialProvisions - 10
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

154



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

Stamped Concrete(addon) 24)– Add-oncostperSYtoanythickness ofconcrete
based onstaggered brickpattern). 

Portable Sanitary Station(s)  25)– Number andlocations tobedetermined by
Contractor based onnumber ofsimultaneous work sitesandnumber ofworkers.  Bid
Price islumpsumforthissingle item, regardless ofnumber ofstations required and
provided.  Must beonsite 95% oftheproject duration.   

4” PVC installed under sidewalk26)– Atthediscretion ofthecity inspector, the
contractor will install PVCsleeves forsprinkler linetie-insunder theWork. 

Saw-CuttoPreserve Asphalt (Neatlining) – 27) Where allowed anddirected bythe
Citywhen concrete abutting asphalt isrequired toberemoved.  Provide aclear full
depth saw-cutattheexisting asphalt/concrete interface toaidinaclean separation.   
Paidperlineal foot. 

Traffic Control (Arrow Board) 28)– When shown ontheapproved Traffic control
plans, orotherwise required, orwhen requested attheinspector’sdiscretion, adaily
ratewillbepaid. 

Traffic Control (Certified Flagger)  29)– When shown ontheapproved Traffic control
plans, orotherwise required, orwhen requested attheinspector’sdiscretion, an
hourly ratewillbepaid. 

Quality Control Standard Proctor- 30) Thetestshallbeallinclusive using AASHTO
T99. 

Quality Control Soils Compaction- 31) Embankment andSubgrade SoilsCompaction;  
moisture and % compaction. 

Quality Control Concrete Test & Break Results- 32) Concrete Sampling andTesting;  
Includes ataminimum temperature, slump, airandcompressive strength (includes up
tofourcylinder breaks each) 

21.PAYMENT– Actual payments willbebased uponmutually accepted As-Builtquantities.   
TheAs-Built quantities willbedetermined inthefieldwithmeasurements jointly collected
bytheConstruction Inspector andtheCity. Nopayment willbemade onworksites that
havenotbeen completed, including clean up.  Request forPayments shallbe madeatleast
monthly unless approved otherwise bytheProject Manager. 

22. NOTIFICATION

TheContractor isrequired topostonallproperties adjacent anytoconstruction sitea
notification pamphlet 72hours priortocommencement ofworkatthatsite.  Anexception to
thisisinthecaseofcomplete driveway orentrance closures.  Inthese cases, notification to
theaffected property owners orbusinesses mustbedelivered aminimum ofoneweekprior

Notification Pamphlettotheclosure.  AcopyoftheContractor’sproposed willbereviewed
atthePreconstruction meeting forcontent andacceptance.   Notification pamphlets shall

SpecialProvisions - 11
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

155



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

include theContractor’scontact information withaprimary contact name andlocal (toll
free) phone number. Thepamphlets willonlybedelivered between thehoursof8:00a.m.  
and6:00p.m.  Whendelivering thepamphlets, theContractor shall contact theresident or
business toadvise themwhatwillbehappening attheirproperty.  When businesses are
affected,Contractor istohand-deliver thenotification pamphlet toeither thebusiness owner, 
orsome other employee inresponsible chargeof thebusiness.  Ifthere isasubsequent delay
tothescheduled work timeduetopoorweather, equipment breakdowns, and/orother causes,  
theContractor willpostattheaffected properties arevised notice informing property owners
ofthedelaywithanupdated construction schedule. 

Donotplace pamphlets inmailboxes. 

23. WARRANTYTWO-YEARContractor isresponsible forproviding a warranty totheCity
ofGreeley forallworkcompleted under thiscontract. TheCitywillestablish thebeginning
oftheTWO-YEAR warranty period with theissuance oftheCertificate ofFinal Acceptance.  
Iftheconcrete fails, spalls, ordeteriorates during thefirstorsecond year, theconcrete willbe
replaced under thiswarranty.  Warranty work willbecompleted according tothese contract
specifications andwithin 30daysofwritten notification bytheCityofGreeley.  SeeArticle

TheCityof11, “Warranty ofWork” intheGeneral Conditions foradditional information.   
Greeley nolonger waives permit feesforwarranty work. 

SpecialProvisions - 12
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

156



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SpecialProvisions - 13
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

157



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

STREET, CURB, ANDGUTTERREPLACEMENTANDCONSTRUCTION
Activities involving thereplacement andconstruction ofstreets, curbs, andgutters havethepotential toimpactstorm

waterquality. Materials involved intheseactivities should beusedefficiently anddisposed ofproperly. 

Applicable sediment anderosion controls should beinstalled;suchas:inletprotection, silt fence, sediment
traps, erosion control logs, check dams, andvehicle tracking control. Sediment anderosion controls willbe
installed andmaintained inaccordance withapproved design criteria and/orindustry standards. 

Whensawcutting, ensurethatnoslurryentersthestormdrain.  
Blockgutterso
Tocontain slurry andminimize thecontainment area. 
Protect inletsandpoolwater awayfromthedrains. 
Minimize Slurry Movemento
Confine slurry andsediment fromsawcutting toimmediate workareabyusingtemporary berms, sandbags, 
ordiversion structures. 
Minimize thetracking ofslurry fromthe jobsitebycarsandpedestrians. 
Remove Slurryo
Sweep orvacuum slurry andproperly dispose ofthesweepings orvacuum whilesawcutting. 

Monitor construction equipment forleaksandusedrippansasnecessary. 
Leaking material containers should beproperly discarded andreplaced. 
Storematerials incontainers under cover whennotinuseandaway from anystorm drain inlet. 
Wash outmixers, delivery trucks,orotherequipment inthedesignated concrete washout areaonly. 
Locate concrete washout, portable toilets, andmaterial storage awayfromstorm drain inlets. 
Material stockpiles willnotbestored inornearstorm waterflow lines. Temporary sediment controls willbe

usedduring temporary, short-termplacementwhile workisactively occurring. 
Sweep orvacuum theroadway asneeded, during construction andonceconstruction iscomplete. 
Bestmanagement practices willbeperiodically inspected andmaintained asnecessary. 
Where practicable, non-structural controls willbeused, suchasphased construction, dustcontrol, good

housekeeping practices, andspillprevention andresponse. 
Absorbent material shouldbekeptonjobsite. 
Concrete Work

Minimize thedriftofchemical cureonwindy daysbyusing thecuring compound sparingly andapplying itaso
close totheconcrete surface aspossible. 
Ensure that there isaconcrete truckwashout areaavailable orrequire thecontractor towashoutatthebatcho
plant. 

Asphalt Work
Control theplacement ofroadbaseorasphaltused inembankments orshoulder backing; donotallow theseo
materials tofall intoanystormdrainorwatercourse. 
Whenever possible, recycle unused asphalt.  o

Traffic Control Devices such ascones maybeneeded toguard inlet protection devices during certain traffic set- 
upandflows. 

SpecialProvisions - 14
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

158



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SpecialProvisions - 15
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

159



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SpecialProvisions -  16
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

160



DocuSignEnvelopeID: 4EDB7494-B5C1-4BE4-BE1F-4EF95F500E76

SpecialProvisions -  17
2018ConcreteRepairProgram
4/20/2018

161



Change Order #: Date: September 6, 2018

Project Name:

Bid Number:     17 00 0653 Dept/Division: PW/Engineering

Budget Unit #: PO #:

Project Manager: Title:
Concrete Maintenance 

Coordinator

Contractor/Consultant: Phone /Extension:  

1

$984,935.16 

$0.00 

$984,935.16 

$200,000.00 

$1,184,935.16 

30 Days

 

5/5/2018

Shane (Rick) Dorsey

Compensation to Contractor/Consultant

FA17-365-1

CHANGE ORDER FORM
Project Information

1

2018 Concrete Repair

3210006006210900; 321 00 060 0619 0923

The original contract sum was:

Contractor/Consultant Information

All Pro Paving

The CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT is hereby directed to perform the WORK described in the CONTRACT for design/construction as amended by this 

CHANGE ORDER.

The net change by previous change order was:

See attached      sheets with full explanation for the change order.

The contract sum prior to this change order was:

The contract sum will be: (See List)

City Manager City Attorney

The new contract sum, including this change order is:

The contract time will be: (See List)

The new date for project completion is:

This CHANGE ORDER is intended to, and the OWNER agrees that it shall, fairly and adequately compensate the CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT for the extra direct costs (time and materials,

etc.) as well as all expenses and damages which may result from any delays, suspensions, stretch-outs, scheduling, inefficiencies and accelerations in the WORK associated with this

CHANGE ORDER, and the CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT releases the OWNER from any claims for such expenses and damages.

Increased

Increased

The Contract Documents may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. 

The Contract Documents, including all component parts set forth above, may be executed and delivered by electronic signature by any of the parties and all parties consent to the use of 

electronic signatures.

 

This CHANGE ORDER is intended to, and the CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT agrees that it does, provide the CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT a reasonable and adequate period of time in which to

complete the WORK in accordance with the CONTRACT for establishment of policies, as amended by this CHANGE ORDER, and the CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT releases the OWNER from

any claims for additional time to perform the WORK associated with this CHANGE ORDER.

Signatures for City Manager

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be executed in two (2) original counterparts as of the day and year first above written.

Approved as to Substance Reviewed as to Legal Form

  

Certification of Contract Funds Availability Departmental Certification

 

Director of Finance Department Director

Approval Level is City Manager based on cumulative change orders totalling $200,000 for a total of 20.3%.

Purchasing Official Project Manager

Additional Approval: 

__________    __________    __________    __________    __________   

Budget              Supervisor       CPC                     Finance

Certification of Content by Contractor/Consultant

 

Representative of Contractor/Consultant Title

DocuSign Envelope ID: 31612889-0336-45BE-80BE-722EB38CFEA1

General manager 

162



Change Order #: 1

Project Name: 2018 Concrete Repair

Date: 9/6/2018

Project Manager: Shane (Rick) Dorsey

Location Round-A-Bout at St Michaels.

Summary of 

Change Order

This change order will add $200,000 to the 2018 Concrete Repair Program to fund work on the roundabout at 

St Michaels.  The $200,000 will come from budget number 321 00 060 0619 0923 to cover the additional work.

Why was this not 

in original 

contract?

Staff did not have knowledge of the need for repairs to the roundabout when this contract was renewed.

Budget 

Impact/Funding

No impact on 321 00 060 0621 0900. The $200,000 for this change order will come from 321 00 060 0619 

0923

Impact to project 

schedule

This change will add 30 days to the contract

Project Information

Change Order Justification

CHANGE ORDER FORM
DocuSign Envelope ID: 31612889-0336-45BE-80BE-722EB38CFEA1

163



Detailed 

Explanation

The roundabout at St Michaels is roughly 16 years old. With the new hospital going in it was decided to make 

the necessary repairs to accommodate the expected increase in traffic.  Rather than doing the bare minimum, 

we came to the decision that doing a full repair on the roundabout will be best for the upcoming hospital 

opening.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 31612889-0336-45BE-80BE-722EB38CFEA1

164



 Council has increased the limits for signature authority.  Below are the new limits based on CUMMULATIVE change orders:

https://library.municode.com/co/greeley/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT2AD_CH2.07CO_2.07.020APSI

<$50,000

$50,000.01-

$100,000 >$100,000 <$50,000

$50,000.01-

$100,000 >$100,000

Council X X X

City Manager X X

City Attorney X X

Director of Finance X X

Purchasing Official X X X X

Department Director X X X X X X

Project Manager X X X X X X

<=25% >25%

C:\ProgramData\activePDF\Temp\DocConverter\API\Input\$4341222567cd$4310C04F045747A08347F08C33DDCB02.xlsx

DocuSign Envelope ID: 31612889-0336-45BE-80BE-722EB38CFEA1

165



 Council has increased the limits for signature authority.  Below are the new limits based on CUMMULATIVE change orders:

C:\ProgramData\activePDF\Temp\DocConverter\API\Input\$4341222567cd$4310C04F045747A08347F08C33DDCB02.xlsx

DocuSign Envelope ID: 31612889-0336-45BE-80BE-722EB38CFEA1

166



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 17 

Key Staff Contact: Victoria Runkle, Assistant City Manager, 970-350-3190 

  

Title:  

Introduction and first reading of an ordinance appropriating additional sums to defray 

the expenses and liabilities of the City of Greeley for the balance of the fiscal year of 

2019 and for funds held in reserve for encumbrances at December 31, 2018 

Summary: 
 

This is the first additional appropriation ordinance modifying the 2019 budget. 

Fiscal Impact:  

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of 

Greeley? 

Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? $ 10,748,000 

What is the annual impact? $ 10,748,000 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  See Ordinance 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? Fund Balance, Operating Transfer, and 
Existing Food Tax Budget. 

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional 

Comments: 
Total appropriations made by this ordinance are $10,748,000.  The 

following funding sources will be used to cover the appropriations 

made by this ordinance. 

 
 

Legal Issues:   

City Charter prohibits actual expenditures from exceeding appropriations at the fund 

level.  This ordinance will insure that this does not occur. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None. 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

167



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Image – Quality of Life  

Decision Options:  

1) Introduce the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and introduce as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to introduce the ordinance and schedule the public hearing and final 

reading for February 5, 2019. 

Attachments: 

Ordinance 

Detail Supporting Schedule 

 

 

168



 THE CITY OF GREELEY 

 ORDINANCE NO._____, 2019 

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL SUMS TO DEFRAY THE 
EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF THE CITY OF GREELEY FOR THE BALANCE 
OF THE FISCAL YEAR OF 2019 AND FOR FUNDS HELD IN RESERVE FOR 
ENCUMBRANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2018. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Greeley has or will incur expenses for certain activities described below 

during the 2019 fiscal year, and 

  

 WHEREAS, the revenues received in the City of Greeley in 2018, exceeded the amount of 

revenues estimated in the 2018 Budget by more than the total amount of the expenditures in the same 

year; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 

 
 Section 1.  In accordance with section 5-17 of the Greeley Charter, from actual and anticipated 

revenues which exceed the revenue estimates in the 2019 budget and amounts held in fund balance 

reserves from 2018, there is hereby appropriated the following designated sums to be allocated for use 

during the remainder of 2019: 

 

 
 
 Section 2.  All actions heretofore taken (not inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance) by 

the officers, agents and employees of the City in connection with this appropriation are hereby ratified, 

approved and confirmed. 

 

 Section 3.  This Ordinance shall become effective five (5) days after its final publication as is 

provided by Section 3-16 of the Greeley Charter, 

 

 

 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF 

____________________, 2019. 

 

ATTEST: THE CITY OF GREELEY 

 

 

______________________________ BY____________________________ 

City Clerk      Mayor 

Fund Total

001 General 4,950,000$            

322 2016 City Center 5,798,000              

Grand Total: 10,748,000$        

169



1/8/2019

City of Greeley

2019 Appropriation No. 1

Ordinance #

City Council Meetings: January 15 and February 5

 Funding Source Description   Fund Balance  Revenue Expenditures   Net Impact 

1 Fund Balance, Existing 

Food Tax Budget

As presented during the December 11th 2018 Worksession, staff outlined remodeling options for both City 

Hall and City Center North (City Hall Annex/Focus).  Within this plan, staff outlined phases that if completed 

would help meet the projected staffing level space needs through 2039.  Furthermore, discussed staffs plan 

to expedite the project with use of excess 2018 Carryover funding through an early appropriation. As such, 

this appropriation facilitates staffs presented request.  $4,950,000 will come from existing carryover fund 

balance in 2018 and $848,000 from budgeted 2019 food tax projects.

4,950,000       848,000       5,798,000        -                   

 

322 2016 City Center 4,950,000       848,000       5,798,000        -                   

Total Less Operating Transfers Between Funds 4,950,000       848,000       5,798,000        -                   

Operating Transfers Between Funds

1 Operating Transfer Operating Transfer from General Fund to 2016 City Center Fund -                       4,950,000   4,950,000        -                   

Total Operating Transfers Between Funds -                       4,950,000   4,950,000        -                   

Grand Total 4,950,000       5,798,000   10,748,000     -                   

322 2016 City Center

Page 1

170



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 18 

Key Staff Contact: Betsy Holder, City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

  

Title:  

Designation of posting sites for notices of City Council meetings 

Summary:  

A requirement of the Colorado Open Meetings Act deals with the method of notifying 

the public of meetings to be held, and each year the governing body is to designate 

the public places(s) for posting meeting notices. 

 

Since the law was enacted in 1991, Council has designated the bulletin boards in 

both entrances to City Hall as the official posting sites for agendas of City Council 

meetings and Worksessions.  These sites also serve as locations for posting meeting 

notices of Council’s appointive boards.   

 

While “postings” meet the letter of the law, in reality it reaches very few customers.  

Therefore, staff’s outreach also includes televising Council meetings and e-mailing 

agendas to the Tribune, KFKA radio and other interested parties.  General meeting 

information is posted on the City’s web site, and GTV Channel 8.  Meeting agendas 

are available for acquisition by anyone on the Friday prior to the Tuesday meeting, 

and they are added to the web site as well.  Public hearing notices are published in 

the Greeley Tribune as required. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? There are no extraordinary 

expenses over the routine 

cost of public outreach 

efforts mentioned above. 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

171



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Posting site designation is required under the Colorado Open Meetings Act. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

Engaging the Community 

Decision Options:  

1) Designate the existing bulletin boards in both entrances to City Hall as the official 

posting sites for agendas of City Council meetings and worksessions; or 

2) Designate alternate sites for agendas of City Council meetings and worksessions; 

or 

3) Establish an alternate method of notifying the public of meetings to be held. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to designate the existing bulletin boards in both entrances to City Hall as the 

official posting sites for agendas of City Council meetings and worksessions for the 

year of 2019. 

Attachments: 

None 

 

 

172



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 19 

 

Title 

Pulled Consent Agenda Items 

                                 

173



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 20 

Key Staff Contact: Andy McRoberts, Culture, Parks and Recreation Director, 970-350-

9425 

  

Title:  

Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance amending Chapter 9.44 of the 

Greeley Municipal Code to expand the Ban On Smoking in Public Places and 

Common Areas 

Summary: 
 

This is a summary and conclusion of information that has previously been presented to 

City Council at a work session on April 10, a regular meeting on June 5, and a 

subsequent work session again on November 13, 2018. 

 

The City of Greeley’s Municipal Code, Chapter 9.44, currently addresses “Banning 

Smoking in Places of Assembly”.   A slight modification in a proposed Ordinance 

amends this definition to “Public Places and Common Areas”.  The current Code 

already and specifically identifies public ball fields, pools, and arenas as smoke-free 

environments.   

 

Since the spring of 2017, the Parks and Recreation Commission, the Greeley Youth 

Commission, and staff have discussed the merits of how best to approach smoke-free 

outdoor environments and the overwhelming consensus, previously, was to address 

parks in their entirety plus adding in other public outdoor areas – namely the City’s 

natural areas and trails.  A modification to the Greeley Municipal Code to that effect 

was thus prepared. 

 

During an introduction of the proposed Ordinance amending the Greeley Municipal 

Code at the regular City Council meeting on June 5, 2018, Council expressed a desire 

to re-address the language of the Ordinance and Code revisions and not to be too 

broad in the prohibition of smoking.  More specifically, Council expressed a desire to 

restrict smoking bans to defined areas within parks, but not parks in their entirety. 

 

Youth Commission 

Initially, the Greeley Youth Commission had chosen Aven’s Village at Island Grove 

Regional Park as a site and program that they wanted to adopt for support and staff 

discussed with them an option to support banning smoking within playground areas.  

The Commissioners eagerly agreed and supported further exploration.  They 

subsequently invited the Substance Use Prevention Program through the Weld County 

Department of Public Health and Environment to assist in a dialogue and process.  

Rachel Freeman, Substance Use Prevention Programs Coordinator and Kat 

Ventoruzzo, Tobacco Control Specialist, who have both worked with the Youth 

Commission previously, attended several Commission meetings and assisted the 

174



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

students in developing their collective voice. 

A draft of the original amendment of the Greeley Municipal Code was presented to 

the Commission for consideration at their March 26, 2018 regular meeting.  This draft 

included the banning of smoking in all park, natural areas, and trails.  At that time, the 

Youth Commissioners unanimously approved amendments to Code revisions with a 

vote of 8-0.   

 

Since that time, the Commission has been informed of revised Code language to ban 

smoking specifically within defined areas within parks. 

 

A representative from the Youth Commission will be present at the Final Hearing on 

January 15 to provide additional input for Council’s consideration. 

 

Opinion Survey 

Recap - as was previously discussed and presented, a Tobacco Survey was also 

distributed to a voluntary sample of individuals at a number of community events 

throughout Greeley as well as through a number of social media sites.   Surveying of 

community residents occurred November 20, 2017 to December 18, 2017.   Both 

English and Spanish surveys were available to ensure that diverse views and opinions 

were captured.  

 

During the sampling time, we collected a total of 1052 surveys.  The majority of the 

respondents lived in Greeley (75%) and, overall, were not tobacco users (93%).  

 

Furthermore, many of the respondents regularly visited parks with 60% of respondents 

indicating they used a Greeley park daily or at least once a week.  

 

Surveys were also distributed and collected at various locations during the sampling 

time including the District 6 Employee Health Fair, Greeley FunPlex Dinky Dunkers 

Basketball games, Colorado Access Resource Fair, USAF Academy Band Concert at 

the UCCC, Tobacco Free Coalition of Weld County Facebook Page, District 6 

Facebook Page, Frontier Academy Facebook Page, Goal Academy High School, 

and at Greeley Central High School.  

 

Ages of respondents varied: 

• 12 – 29 years old:    24% 

• 30 – 64 years old:   60% 

• 65 and older:   16% 

 

From this voluntary survey, the overall impression indicated that 78% of all respondents 

agreed or strongly agreed that smoking should be prohibited within Greeley 

playgrounds (87% support) and parks (69% support).  Furthermore, support to ban 

smoking in other public spaces include the following areas: 

• Park Shelters   66% 

• Trails    64% 

• Natural Areas   56% 

• Skate Parks   52% 

 

In regards to an opposite point of view, 10% of the respondents, overall, did not 

support a prohibition of smoking in these public spaces.   

175



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

 

 

In addition to the voluntary survey, an opportunity to offer a Signature of Support to 

ban smoking in these public spaces included a total of 540 signatures (as of 03/15/18 

- of those signatures, 335, or 62%, are from Greeley residents). 

 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

Information regarding the progress and development of revised Municipal Code 

language has been presented several times to the Parks and Recreation Advisory 

Board.  In each case, the Board has been overall supportive of smoke-free 

environments within parks, natural areas, and trails.  A draft of Code revisions was 

presented to the Board for consideration at their April 6, 2018 regular meeting and 

was approved for recommendation on a vote of 8 - 0. 

 

Upon revising the language to reduce the scope of the prohibition of smoking within 

parks, the modified Code language presented in this packet was subsequently 

presented to the Board at their regular meeting on November 2, 2018.  The Board 

engaged in dialogue regarding the modifications and offered overall support.  With 

the modification to include playgrounds, splash parks, and skate parks as Public 

Places, the Board recommended adoption on a vote of 9-0. 

 

It should be noted that the Board also desired to discuss other options for Council’s 

consideration to add to the list of Public Places prohibiting smoking.  The following are 

specific areas the Board considered to add to the list of Public Places and the 

Board’s resultant vote in support/denial of these additions: 

 Outdoor Basketball Courts, Volleyball Courts, and Tennis Courts  9-0 

 Natural Areas         8-1 

 Trails          8-1 

 Off-leash Dog Parks        6-3  

 

The discussion to add outdoor sports areas was a general concern and for the City to 

focus on providing healthy activity and the obvious contradictory nature of these 

healthy activities and the presence of smoking. 

 

During the discussion of adding Natural Areas and Trails, the Board was very 

concerned about the potential for wild fires from discarded/lit cigarettes and was the 

driving force in their recommendation. 

 

Upon further revisions to the drafted code changes, this latest version was presented 

to the Board on December 7, 2108.  The Board was appreciative of the dialogue that 

has taken place and supports this latest version (although no formal vote was taken). 

 

A representative from the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board will be present at the 

Final Hearing on January 15 to provide any additional input for Council’s 

consideration. 

 

Island Grove Advisory Board  

Staff first presented information regarding a proposed draft Ordinance to the Island 

Grove Advisory Board on February 1, 2018.  At that time, the Board requested two 

items: 

176



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

 

1) Flexibility in applying the Ordinance to Island Regional Park 

2) Communicate draft language to the Weld County Attorney’s Office. 

 

Both items were subsequently addressed. 

 

The Island Grove Advisory Board met last on December 6, 2018 and was presented 

this final draft.  Although there was respectable discussion and general support 

regarding the prohibition of smoking as presented, the Board did not make a specific 

recommendation as there was not an adequate quorum present to conduct a vote.   

 

Public Health Benefits of Outdoor Smoke-Free Policies 

Increasing community awareness of the harmful effects of tobacco products has led 

the community to accept, and expect the availability of smoke-free areas.  

 

Smoke-free and vape-free outdoor places are beneficial for the following reasons:  

1. Smoke-free and vape-free policies create a healthy community.  

a. When youth see adults smoking in public places, they may be more likely to 

copy the behavior themselves, which could lead to a life of addiction.  

 b. Studies have found that smoke-free laws are effective when trying to 

prevent young people from smoking.  

2. Smoke-free and vape-free policies protect and sustain the environment.  

a. Smoking in outdoor public places produces significant cigarette litter, which 

pollutes the environment, harms wildlife and increases the risk for fires.  

b. Cigarette butts are the most commonly littered item in the United States. This 

particular litter lasts for years and allows for more than 4,000 chemicals to seep into 

our soils and water supply.  

 

Enforcement  

Enforcement of the prohibition of smoking, in whatever final form, will take place 

through a variety of methods, not the least of which is to assist the general public in 

educating each other of such a ban and to provide the opportunity for social 

enforcement.   It has been known that members of the general public will assist in the 

social enforcement of an issue that is an actual law in existence and where 

appropriate signage is present.  Without a specific law in place, social enforcement 

does not carry “weight” and is rarely effective. 

 

“No smoking” signage is the most common enforcement and communication 

strategy for outdoor smoke-free policies throughout Colorado.  Most people will 

refrain from smoking when clear and visible smoke-free signage is in place.  

 

Education is truly the key to enforcement of this ban in order to inform people when 

they may be in violation.  In certain circumstances, Greeley PD may need to take 

stronger enforcement actions but that will only be done on a case by case basis as 

needed. 

 

Staff will install signage to communicate messaging the new restrictions.   The 

Ordinance also contains an effective date of April 1, 2019 in order to help educate 

the general public and install appropriate signage. 

 

177



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Other 

The definition of “Public Places” has been modified to a specific list of places where 

the prohibition of smoking would take place – both existing and recommended new 

places. 

 

In previous discussions and a general consensus among Council, the expansion of the 

prohibition of smoking will include playgrounds, skate parks, splash parks and outdoor 

sports courts as extensions of where youth congregate. 

 

In addition, the proposed Municipal Code modification currently includes Section 

9.44.055 - Exceptions.  This Section is reserved as a placeholder if Council or staff 

would like to identify anything of specific nature as to alleviate any confusion over 

what is defined as Public Places or Common Areas.  This ordinance was introduced at 

the December 18, 2018 Council meeting. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? Estimate - $20,000 

What is the annual impact? There is not an anticipated 

annual impact other than 

potential replacement or 

additional signage as 

needed at various sites.   

This cost will be covered by 

existing maintenance funds. 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  General Fund 

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

The City Attorney’s Office, in conjunction with the Greeley Police Department, 

assisted in the drafting of all language and both are in full support of the Code 

revision.  Previously, language included some language that differed as to a “buffer 

zone” for playgrounds and pools at a 50 perimeter and all other areas at a 25 

perimeter/distance from the “public place”.  For consistency sake in enforcement 

and a common message to the public, staff is recommending that all defined areas 

have a common buffer distance of 25 feet. 

 

Consideration of this matter is a legislative process which includes the following public 

hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation (if requested) 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

4) Council discussion 

178



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

5) Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

In a 2016 national survey, the National Recreation and Park Association found that 

approximately 79% of all Americans supported policies that prohibit the use of 

tobacco products at public parks nationwide.  The result was even higher by those 

who were parents with support at 87%. 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

Image – Healthy Neighborhoods, Youth Success and Quality of Life 

Infrastructure and Growth – Environmental Infrastructure 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only. 

Attachments: 

Ordinance 

Copy of Redline Amendments to Chapter 9.44 of the Greeley Municipal Code 

Clean copy of the recommended final version of Chapter 9.44 of the Greeley  

 Municipal Code 

 

 

179



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _____, 2019 
 

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9.44 

OF THE GREELEY MUNICIPAL CODE TO EXPAND THE BAN ON SMOKING IN PUBLIC 

PLACES AND COMMON AREAS. 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 9.44 of the Greeley Municipal Code currently prohibits smoking or 

the carrying of any lighted smoking instrument, including electronic smoking devices, in certain 

public places and common areas as defined in the Chapter; and 

 

WHEREAS, when Chapter 9.44 was enacted, the Greeley City Council specifically set forth 

(in Section 9.44.010) its intent in banning smoking in places of assembly by finding that “[m]edical 

science has determined that smoking and secondhand smoke [are] leading health problem[s] 

throughout the United States. Secondhand smoke has been identified as a Class A carcinogen, and 

there is no safe level of exposure.” 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council further provided in Section 9.44.010, its intent in enacting 

Chapter 9.44 was “to protect the health, safety, comfort and welfare of Greeley citizens from the 

harmful effects of secondhand smoke by banning smoking in all places where people are likely to 

gather in close proximity to one another and to enhance the existing health protections provided 

under the law.”  

 

WHEREAS, the Colorado School of Public Health conducted a “gap analysis” of Chapter 

9.44 which resulted in suggested added protections from the harmful effects of smoking and 

secondhand smoke that could be provided in Chapter 9.44; and 

 

WHEREAS, in response to those suggestions, the City Council has determined that certain 

definitions in Section 9.44.020 should be clarified and expanded and that the smoking ban  in 

Section 9.44.030 should be expanded to include 25 feet in any direction of defined Public Places 

and Common Areas. 

 

WHEREAS, in addition the City Council has taken this opportunity to correct some 

syntaxical errors throughout Chapter 9.44. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, 

COLORADO: 

 

Section 1.  Chapter 9.44 of the Greeley Municipal Code shall be amended as shown on 

“Exhibit A,” which is attached to this Ordinance and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall become effective on April 1, 2019. 

  

180



 PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS 15
th
 DAY OF  

 

JANUARY, 2019. 

 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

_________________________________  By:_________________________________ 

City Clerk           Mayor 

181



Chapter 9.44 

 
Banning Smoking in Public Places and Common Areasof Assembly 

 
9.44.010     Intent. 

 
Medical science has determined that smoking and secondhand smoke areis a leading health problemsproblem 
throughout the United States. Secondhand smoke has been identified as a Class A carcinogen, and there is no safe 
level of exposure. It is the intent of this Chapter to protect the health, safety, comfort and welfare of Greeley citizens 
from the harmful effects of secondhand smoke by banning smoking in all places where people are likely to gather in 
close proximity to one another and to enhance the existing health protections provided under the law. (Ord. 66, 
2003, §2) 
 
9.44.020     Definitions. 
 
For the purposes of this Chapter, the following terms, phrases, words and their derivatives shall have the meanings 
given in this Section, except where the context clearly requires a different meaning: 
 
Common Areas area means lobbies, hallwaysa lobby, hallway, elevators, rest roomsroom or other enclosed indoor 
areasarea where people are likely to gather in close proximity. Common Areas include the Entrance/Exit. 
 
Electronic Smoking Device  smoking device means an electric or battery-operated device that, when activated, 
emits a vapor, aerosol, or smoke, or , which can be used to deliver substances, including but not limited to, nicotine, 
tobacco, or any other substancemarijuana, to the person using thesuch device. Electronic Ssmoking Ddevice shall 
include, without limitation, inhalant delivery systems such as electronic cigarettes, e-cigars, e-cigarillos, e-pipes, 
vape pens,and hookahs, or any similar product by any other name or descriptor. Electronic Smoking Device 
includes any component, part, or accessory of the device whether or not sold separately. 
 
Entrance/Exit means the passageway by which people may enter or exit a building or facility, typically consisting of 
a door or doorway. Entrance/Exit includes the stoop, steps, or ramp leading from the sidewalk or pavement to a door 
or doorway. 
 
Lighted means to illuminate,  by electricity, battery or fire; to ignite, by electricity, battery or fire; to burn orby 
electricity, battery or fire; or to emit light by electricity, battery or fire. 
 
Public Places Place means any areasenclosed area to which the general publicpeople isare invited or in which 
people are permitted, specifically including, but not limited to: retail food production or marketing establishments, 
restaurants, taverns, banks, theaterstheatres, waiting rooms, meeting rooms, reception areas, businesses, libraries, 
meeting rooms, places of business, educational facilities, libraries, health care facilities, transportation facilities, 
and recreational facilities such as bowling alleys, bingo halls, andprivate clubs, facilities providing music or sporting 
events. Public Places and transportation facilities. A private residence or vehicle is not a place regulated under this 
Chapter. Place shall also mean outdoor public ball fields, pools or splash parks, arenas, skate parks, park 
pavilions/shelters, outdoor sports courts, and playgrounds. and outdoor publicly owned areas where seating is 
provided and within fifty (50) feet of such seating when "no smoking" signs are posted. This includes but is not 
limited to Island Grove Arena  
 
Pool means any City-owned or privately owned and operated swimming pool facility and shall include the 
swimming pool itself and all adjacent areas which are considered part of the swimming facility. Pool shall not mean 
residential or residential complex pools. 
 
Private club means an establishment which has a membership and/or dues in order for a person to be admitted to the 
premises. 
 
Public ball field means any City-owned recreation facility with public seating which is used for either the playing of 
games or practice of such games. 
 

182



Restaurant means an establishment licensed as a hotel/restaurant under the liquor laws of the State, or an 
establishment whose principal business is the retail sale of prepared food and beverages and has seating for on-
premises consumption of food inside a building or structure. 
 
Smoke or Ssmoking means and includes, but is not limited to: 
 
 (1) The carrying or placing of a Llighted Ssmoking Iinstrument or an Eelectronic Ssmoking Ddevice in 
one’s mouth for the purpose of inhaling or exhaling smoke or vapor or blowing smoke rings; 
 
 (2) The placing of a Llighted Ssmoking Iinstrument or an Eelectronic Ssmoking Ddevice in an ashtray or 
other receptacle, and allowing smoke or vapor to diffuse in the air; 
 
 (3) The possession, carrying or placing of a Llighted Ssmoking Iinstrument or an Eelectronic Ssmoking 
Ddevice in one’s hands or any appendage or device and allowing smoke or vapor to diffuse in the air; or 
 
 (4) The inhaling or exhaling of smoke or vapor from a Llighted Ssmoking Iinstrument or 
Eelectronic Ssmoking Ddevice. 
  
Smoking Iinstrument means an instrument of any kind which can be used to deliver substances, including but not 
limited to, nicotine, tobacco, or marijuana, to the person using such instrument. Smoking Iinstrument shall include, 
without limitation, cigarettes, cigars, cigarillos, pipes, and hookahs. Smoking Iinstrument shall specifically include 
Eelectronic Ssmoking Ddevices. 
 
Tavern means an establishment licensed as a tavern under the liquor law of the State. ( Ord. No. 1, 2015, § 1(Exh. 
A), 1-20-2015; Ord. 66, 2003, §2) 
 

9.44.030     Ban. 

 
Smoking is prohibited in Public Places or Common Areas as defined by this Chapter and within twenty-five (25) 
feet in any direction of a Public Place or Common Area, except that smoking is prohibited within fifty (50) feet of 
a playground or pool..  Smoking is also prohibited anywhere designated by the City of Greeley by posting a sign 
using the words “No Smoking” or the international “no smoking” symbol.   
 
No person shall smoke or carry any lighted smoking instrument in a place or common area as defined by this 
Chapter or in any place the Fire Marshal prohibits smoking. (Ord. 66, 2003, §2) 
 

9.44.040     Signs prohibiting smoking. 
 
To advise people that smoking is banned in Publicall Pplaces and Ccommon Aareas, the City, owner, lessee, or 
manager or person in charge of a Public Pplace or Ccommon Aarea may where smoking is banned shall post a sign 
using the words “No Smoking” or the international  “no smoking” symbol. The"No Smoking" signs shall use letters 
no less than one (1) inch high or. International "no smoking" symbols shall be no less than three (3) inches high. 
Such signs shall include the notice “No smoking within 25 feet of this area” or similar. Notwithstanding this 
provision, the absence of such signs shall not be a defense to a charge of a violation of this Chapter.  (Ord. 66, 
2003, §2) 
 
9.44.050     Responsibilities of proprietors. 

 
No owner, lessee, manager or person in charge of a Public Placecommon area or Common Areaplace shall, with 
respect to such place or area, fail to inform:(1) Post appropriate signs, as required by Section 9.44.040. (2) Ask 
people that are smoking to refrain from smoking is prohibited in the Public Placeany "no smoking" area or 
Common Areaplace. (Ord. 66, 2003, §2) 
 
9.44.055     Exceptions. 
 
9.44.060     Enforcement. 

183



 
 (1a) The following The City Manager or the City Manager's designee shall be responsible for enforcing 
ensuring compliance with this Chapter: Greeley Police Officers, other law enforcement agents, Greeley Code 
Compliance Inspectors, or the City Manager’s designee(s) with regard to facilities which are owned, operated or 
leased by the City.  
 
 (2b) ViolationsAny person convicted of violating any provision of this Chapter shall, upon conviction, be 
deemed misdemeanor infractions punishable pursuant to Chapter 1.32 of this Code. 
 
 (3) Eachpunished by a fine of not more than three hundred dollars ($300.00) for each separate offense, and 
may be enjoined from any further or continued violation. Imprisonment shall constitute a separate infraction. (Ord. 
66, 2003, §2) 
 
9.44.070     Exceptions 
 
9.44.080     Right of Action. 

 
Except as otherwise provided, enforcement of this Chapter is within the sole discretion of the City.  Nothing in 
this Chapter shall create a right of action in any person against the City or its agents to compel public 
enforcement of this Chapter against private parties. 
 
9.44.090     Severability. 

 
It is the intent of this Chapter to supplement, not duplicate or contradict, applicable state and federal law and it 
shall be construed consistently with that intention. 

184



Chapter 9.44 

 

Banning Smoking in Public Places and Common Areas 

 

9.44.010     Intent. 

 

Medical science has determined that smoking and secondhand smoke are leading health problems throughout the 

United States. Secondhand smoke has been identified as a Class A carcinogen, and there is no safe level of 

exposure. It is the intent of this Chapter to protect the health, safety, comfort and welfare of Greeley citizens from 

the harmful effects of secondhand smoke by banning smoking in all places where people are likely to gather in close 

proximity to one another and to enhance the existing health protections provided under the law. 

 

9.44.020     Definitions. 

 

For the purposes of this Chapter, the following terms and their derivatives shall have the meanings given in this 

Section, except where the context clearly requires a different meaning: 

 

Common Areas means lobbies, hallways, elevators, rest rooms or other enclosed indoor areas where people are 

likely to gather in close proximity. Common Areas include the Entrance/Exit. 

 

Electronic Smoking Device means an electric or battery-operated device that, when activated, emits a vapor, 

aerosol, or smoke, or can be used to deliver nicotine or any other substance to the person using the device. 

Electronic Smoking Device shall include, without limitation, inhalant delivery systems such as electronic cigarettes, 

e-cigars, e-cigarillos, e-pipes, vape pens, hookahs, or any similar product by any other name or descriptor. 

Electronic Smoking Device includes any component, part, or accessory of the device whether or not sold separately. 

 

Entrance/Exit means the passageway by which people may enter or exit a building or facility, typically consisting of 

a door or doorway. Entrance/Exit includes the stoop, steps, or ramp leading from the sidewalk or pavement to a door 

or doorway. 

 

Lighted means to illuminate, ignite, burn or emit light by electricity, battery or fire. 

 

Public Places means areas to which the general public is invited or permitted, specifically: restaurants, taverns, 

banks, theaters, waiting rooms, meeting rooms, reception areas, businesses, libraries, educational facilities, health 

care facilities, transportation facilities, and recreational facilities such as bowling alleys, bingo halls, and facilities 

providing music or sporting events. Public Places shall also mean public ball fields, pools or splash parks, arenas, 

skate parks, park pavilions/shelters, outdoor sports courts, and playgrounds. 

 

Smoking means and includes, but is not limited to: 

 

 (1) The carrying or placing of a Lighted Smoking Instrument or an Electronic Smoking Device in one’s 

mouth for the purpose of inhaling or exhaling smoke or vapor or blowing smoke rings; 

 

 (2) The placing of a Lighted Smoking Instrument or an Electronic Smoking Device in an ashtray or other 

receptacle, and allowing smoke or vapor to diffuse in the air; 

 

 (3) The possession, carrying or placing of a Lighted Smoking Instrument or an Electronic Smoking 

Device in one’s hands or any appendage or device and allowing smoke or vapor to diffuse in the air; or 

 

 (4) The inhaling or exhaling of smoke or vapor from a Lighted Smoking Instrument or 

Electronic Smoking Device. 

  

Smoking Instrument means an instrument of any kind which can be used to deliver substances, including but not 

limited to, nicotine, tobacco, or marijuana, to the person using such instrument. Smoking Instrument shall include, 

without limitation, cigarettes, cigars, cigarillos, pipes, and hookahs. Smoking Instrument shall specifically include 

Electronic Smoking Devices. 

185



 

9.44.030     Ban. 
 

Smoking is prohibited in Public Places or Common Areas as defined by this Chapter and within twenty-five (25) 

feet in any direction of a Public Place or Common Area.  Smoking is also prohibited anywhere designated by the 

City of Greeley by posting a sign using the words “No Smoking” or the international “no smoking” symbol.   
 

9.44.040     Signs prohibiting smoking. 
 

To advise people that smoking is banned in Public Places and Common Areas, the City, owner, lessee, manager or 

person in charge of a Public Place or Common Area may post a sign using the words “No Smoking” or the 

international  “no smoking” symbol. The signs shall use letters no less than one (1) inch high or symbols no less 

than three (3) inches high. Such signs shall include the notice “No smoking within 25 feet of this area” or similar. 

Notwithstanding this provision, the absence of such signs shall not be a defense to a charge of a violation of this 

Chapter. 

 

9.44.050     Responsibilities of proprietors. 

 

No owner, lessee, manager or person in charge of a Public Place or Common Area shall fail to inform people that 

smoking is prohibited in the Public Place or Common Area. 

 

9.44.055     Exceptions. 

 

9.44.060     Enforcement. 

 

 (1) The following shall be responsible for enforcing this Chapter: Greeley Police Officers, other law 

enforcement agents, Greeley Code Compliance Inspectors, or the City Manager’s designee(s). 

 

 (2) Violations of this Chapter shall be deemed misdemeanor infractions punishable pursuant to Chapter 

1.32 of this Code. 

 

 (3) Each violation shall constitute a separate infraction.  

 

9.44.070     Exceptions 

 

9.44.080     Right of Action. 

 

Except as otherwise provided, enforcement of this Chapter is within the sole discretion of the City.  Nothing in 

this Chapter shall create a right of action in any person against the City or its agents to compel public 

enforcement of this Chapter against private parties. 

 

9.44.090     Severability. 
 

It is the intent of this Chapter to supplement, not duplicate or contradict, applicable state and federal law and it 

shall be construed consistently with that intention. 

186



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 21 

Key Staff Contact: Joel Hemesath, Public Works Director, 970-350-9795 

  

Title:  

Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance authorizing the acquisition of 

interests in real property located in the City of Greeley for road improvements by 

purchase or exercise of power of eminent domain pursuant to Section 7 of Article XVI, 

Section 15 of article II, and Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution 

and Colorado Revised Statute § 38-1-101, et seq. (47th Avenue Turn Lane and 

Centerplace Drive Turn Lane Projects) 

Summary: 
 

This ordinance authorizes the acquisition of property interests by purchase or by 

exercise of power of eminent domain, if deemed necessary, required to construct the 

47th Avenue Turn Lane and Centerplace Drive Turn Lane Projects. 

 

Improvements along 47th Ave and Centerplace Drive entering into the Centerplace 

Shopping Center were identified in an effort to increase safety, reduce delays, and 

improve traffic flow along 47th Ave and Centerplace Drive. These improvements will 

additionally reduce congestion along the corridors.   

 

The Project will require the acquisition of tracts of fee simple right of way and 

temporary easements along 47th Avenue and Centerplace Drive at the entrances to 

the Centerplace Shopping Area.  City staff have begun discussions with owners within 

the project area.  As the Project progresses, staff will continue to work with owners to 

meet the goals of the project, address site considerations, and acquire the property 

interests necessary for the project.  Staff fully intends to negotiate in good faith and 

follow a uniform acquisition process for all affected owners; however, if an 

agreement cannot be reached, and in order to meet the schedule and budget 

requirements of the project, the City may consider the use of eminent domain.  This 

ordinance was introduced at the December 18, 2018 Council meeting. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? Unknown, to be negotiated 

What is the annual impact? None 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  320 - Faster 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? State collection of fees from 

license plates and a portion 

passed onto the City 

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

187



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

The Colorado Constitution and the Greeley Municipal Code authorize the City to 

acquire interests in real property for public purposes, including by eminent domain 

when deemed necessary.  

 

Consideration of this matter is a legislative process which includes the following public 

hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation (if requested) 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

4) Council discussion 

5) Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

Image – Appealing community entryways & corridors 

Safety – Traffic Safety 

Infrastructure & Growth – Public facilities and equipment 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only. 

Attachments: 

Ordinance 

Exhibit A – Property Ownership Map 

Conceptual Plan Drawing – 47th Avenue Turn Lane and Centerplace Drive turn Lane  

Projects 

 

 

188



1 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 
 

                  ORDINANCE NO. ____, 2019 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GREELEY TO ACQUIRE 

INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED IN GREELEY, COLORADO FOR 

ROAD IMPROVEMENTS AND ASSOCIATED FACILITIES BY PURCHASE OR 

EXERCISE OF THE POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN, PURSUANT TO SECTION 7 OF 

ARTICLE XVI, SECTION 15 OF ARTICLE II, AND SECTIONS 1 AND 6 OF ARTICLE 

XX OF THE COLORADO CONSTITUTION AND COLORADO REVISED STATUTES § 

38-1-101, ET SEQ. (47
TH

 AVENUE TURN LANE AND CENTERPLACE DRIVE TURN 

LANE PROJECTS) 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Greeley (“City”) is a Colorado home-rule municipality 

authorized by Article II, Section 15, and Article XX, Sections 1 and 6 of the Colorado 

Constitution, as affirmed by the City’s Charter, Sections 1-3, to exercise the power of eminent 

domain to acquire real property to construct, operate and maintain transportation systems and 

other public works and everything required to do so, with the payment of just compensation; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, Article 15 of Title 31, and Article I of Title 38, Colorado Revised Statutes, 

provide statutory authority and procedures for the exercise of the power of eminent domain by the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the public infrastructure improvements to 47
th
 

Avenue and Centerplace Drive by the City are needed for improved safety, to reduce delays, and 

improve traffic flow along 47th Ave and Centerplace Drive entering into the Centerplace 

Shopping Center.; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in order to complete the project the City must acquire additional real 

property; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 

 

Section 1. The City Council hereby finds and determines that it is in the interest of the 

health, safety and welfare of the public, serves a public purpose, and is necessary, to acquire, 

through the exercise of the power of eminent domain, the property generally described on Exhibit 

A attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, for improvements to 47
th
 Avenue and 

Centerplace Drive (“Property”), for improved safety, to reduce delays, and improve traffic flow. 

 

Section 2. Should City staff be unsuccessful in negotiating a mutual agreement for the 

purchase of the Property, the City Council hereby directs City staff to begin acquisition by 

eminent domain, including, but not limited to, obtaining immediate possession of the Property, 

pursuant to the above-named statutes. 

 

189



1 

Section 3. The City Council hereby ratifies any previous actions by City staff in 

providing notice of the City's intent to acquire the Property and extending an offer to 

purchase the Property. Nothing contained in this ordinance shall be construed as 

precluding or preventing continued good faith negotiations by City staff in an effort to 

purchase the Property.  

 
Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after its final publication as 

provided by the City’s Charter, Section 3-16.  

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 15
th
 day of January, 2019. 

 

 ATTEST:     THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

 ___________________________________ _____________________________________ 

 City Clerk     Mayor 

 

 

 

190



Eastbound Proposed Turn Lane 
Centerplace Drive at 46th Avenue

Westbound Proposed Turn Lane 
Centerplace Drive at 46th Avenue

Northbound Proposed Turn Lane
47th Avenue at Existing Centerplace Entrance

Exhibit A
Page 1 of 3

Eastbound Proposed Turn Lane 
Centerplace Drive at 44th Avenue

191



Gilbert 
Commercial 
Land, LLP

Guaranty Bank & 
Trust Company

Humphrey’s Fund, LLC

MCW-RC-CO-Greeley, LLC

Exhibit A
Page 2 of 3

192



MCW-RC CO-
Greeley, LLC

Chick-Fil-A, Inc.

Ventures, LLC
Outwest Ventures, LLC

Target 
Corporation

Exhibit A
Page 3 of 3

193



EASTBOUND

CENTERPLACE

DRIVE / 46TH

AVENUE

WESTBOUND

CENTERPLACE

DRIVE / 46TH

AVENUE

EASTBOUND

CENTERPLACE

DRIVE / 44TH

AVENUE

CENTERPLACE DRIVE

4
7

T
H

 
A

V
E

N
U

E

4
6

T
H

 
A

V
E

N
U

E

4
4

T
H

 
A

V
E

N
U

E

CENTERPLACE

SHOPPING CENTER

47th & Centerplace Turn Lane Projects - Project Overview
Page 1 of 5

194



MCW-RC
CO-GREELEY LLC

PROPOSED

ROW

BOUNDARY

EXISTING

ROW

BOUNDARY

PROPOSED TURN LANE
PROPOSED SIDEWALK

ELECTRICAL

SWITCH

CABINET

BUSINESS

SIGN

LEGEND

PROPOSED ROW BOUNDARY

47th & Centerplace Turn Lane Projects - Project Overview
Page 2 of 5

195



TARGET
COORPORATION

PROPOSED

ROW

BOUNDARY

EXISTING

ROW

BOUNDARY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

RETAINING

WALL

EXISTING

ELECTRICAL

SWITCH

CABINETS

EXISTING

DOUBLE

INLET

PROPOSED TURN LANE

LEGEND

PROPOSED ROW BOUNDARY

47th & Centerplace Turn Lane Projects - Project Overview
Page 3 of 5

196



CHICK-FIL-A INC

PROPOSED

ROW

BOUNDARY

EXISTING

ROW

BOUNDARY

PROPOSED TURN LANE

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

RETAINING

WALL

PROPOSED

BUS

SHELTER

RELOCATION

TELECOMM

CABINET

LEGEND

PROPOSED ROW BOUNDARY

47th & Centerplace Turn Lane Projects - Project Overview
Page 4 of 5

197



PROJECT LIMITS

GILBERT COMMERCIAL

LAND LLP

GUARANTY BANK &

TRUST COMPANY

M
C

W

HUMPHREY'S

FUND LLC

198



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 22 

Key Staff Contact: Betsy Holder, City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

  

Title:  

Appointment of applicants to the Commission on Disabilities 

Summary:  

Council appointment is needed to the above-mentioned board due to vacancies 

and term expirations.  Staff continues to actively recruit to fill all vacant positions.   

Legal Issues:   

The City Attorney’s Office reviewed the applications and advised of potential 

conflicts of interest.   

 

It should be noted that there is a possibility that the applicants currently serve as a 

volunteer on a board or commission besides the one they are applying to.  It is also 

important to point out to the applicants that there are always potential conflicts that 

exist with business and investments, current jobs or relatives and family members 

coming before the Board or Commission.   

 

Should such conflicts arise, the Board or Commission member simply excuses 

themselves from that particular item but such a potential conflict does not preclude 

anyone from serving on a Board or Commission in general, just that particular agenda 

item. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

Not applicable. 

 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

Infrastructure & Growth – Establish the capital & human infrastructure to support & 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing, and dynamic community. 

Decision Options:  

1) Appoint or reappoint the individuals to serve on applicable board or commission; 

or 

2) Direct staff to re-advertise applicable vacancy. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

No motion is necessary.  The City Council’s Policies and Protocol authorize 

appointment of Board and Commission members by written ballot, which can be 

used in lieu of a motion or voice vote for individual or multiple appointments.  This 

policy was adopted by Council as a time-savings measure.  Accordingly, a ballot is 

attached for Council’s use in making appointments.  Candidates receiving a majority 

199



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

vote (at least 4 votes) are appointed with no further action needed by Council. 

Attachments: 

•   Ballot 

•   January 2019 Boards and Commissions Transmittal Summary 

 

 

200



Page 1 of 1

City of Greeley
Boards & Commissions
Appointment Ballot
January 15, 2019
 

PHIL BREWER
Lori Cheuvront
PATRICK KELLY
(Recruit For Additional Applicants)

(I) = Incumbent 

Applicants for the boards and/or commission listed below are in alphabetical order 
and recommendations from the interviewing team of Councilmembers are shown in bold. 

**********  BALLOT  **********

Commission on Disabilities
2 Vacancies

201



Boards & Commissions Transmittal 
January 4, 2019 
Key Staff Contact : Jerry Harvey, Assistant City Clerk, 350-9746 

Interview Date Council Interview Team 
January 10, 2019 Councilmembers Casseday and Fitzsimmons 

Boards and Commissions Being Interviewed 

• Commission on Disabilities 

Council 's Recruitment and Qualifications Policy 

Council Appointment Date 
January 15, 2019 

General recruitment efforts shall be made with special measures being taken to balance ward 
representation and attract minority and special population applicants . Generally, volunteers will be 
limited to serving on one board or commission at a time. (14.2. (c)(2) City Council, Policies and 
Protocol) 

Demographic information of existing board members and any specialty requirements are contained 
within the attached Membership Rosters. 

Legal Issues 
The City Attorney 's Office reviewed the applications and the attached memorandum addresses any 
potential conflicts of interest. 

It should be noted that there is a possibility that the applicants currently serve as a volunteer on a 
board or commission besides the one they are applying to. It is also important to point out to the 
applicants that there are always potential conflicts that exist with business and investments, current 
jobs or relatives and family members coming before the Board or Commission. 

Should such conflicts arise, the Board or Commission member simply excuses themselves from that 
particular item but such a potential conflict does not preclude anyone from serving on a Board or 
Commission in general, just that particular agenda item. 

Applicable Council Goal or Obiective 
Infrastructure & Growth - Establish the capital & human infrastructure to support & maintain a safe, 
competitive, appealing, and dynamic community. 

Decision Options 
1. Recommend candidates for appointment; or 
2. Direct staff to re-advertise applicable vacancy. 

Attachments 
1. Interview Schedule 
2. Conflict Memorandum from City Attorney 's Office 
3. Sample Ballot 
4. Membership Rosters for above mentioned Boards and Commissions 
5. Applications of those being considered for interview and/or considered for appointment 

Transmittal revie~ed by: ~ y Otto. City Manager tsetsy Holder. City Clerk 

City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 
202



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 23 

 

Title 

Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting the City Manager or City Council may review the 

attached Council Calendar or Worksession Schedule regarding any upcoming 

meetings or events. 

 

Attachments 

Council Meetings/Other Events Calendar 

Council Meeting/Worksession Schedule 
                                 

203



January 2019- 	 January 2019 	 February 2019 
February 2019 

Su 	Mo 	Tu 	We 	Th 	Fr 	Sa 	 Su 	Mo 	Tu 	We 	Th 	Fr 	Sa 

	

1 	2 	3 	4 	5 	 1 	2 

	

6 	7 	8 	9 	10 	11 	12 	 3 	4 	5 	6 	7 	8 	9 

	

13 	14 	15 	16 	17 	18 	19 	 10 	11 	12 	13 	14 	15 	16 

	

20 	21 	22 	23 	24 	25 	26 	 17 	18 	19 	20 	21 	22 	23 

	

27 	28 	29 	30 	31 	 24 	25 	26 	27 	28 

SUNDAY 	 MONDAY 	 TUESDAY 	 WEDNESDAY 	 THURSDAY 	 FRIDAY 	 SATURDAY 

Jan 13 14 15 16 17 18 

Councilmember Suniga

i:111111.4111" 	 10:00am City Chat with 

19 

(TBD) 

3:30pm Citizen of the West 

Award Dinner (National 

Western Stock Show Event 

Center Paddock & Arena, 

1515 E. 47th Avenue, 

Denver) - Council Master 

Calendar 

6:30pm City Council Meeting 

(1001 11th Avenue) 

minspraummulawni 
ur_  (Gates)  

_ii 
 - 

, 	L 	

1 

3:30p"rn 	'  -i-i-  
 (Casseday/Payton) 	AIM 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

9:45am MLK Day March and 

Celebration (2101 10th 

Avenue (See details below 

for March and Celebration 

info)) - Council Master 

Calendar 

5:00pm City Council 

Worksession (1001 11th 

Avenue) 

5:00pm Boards and 

Commissions Appreciation 

Reception (Monfort 

Concert Hall Stage, UCCC) 

- Council Master Calendar 

27 28 29 30 31 Feb 1 2 

11:30am Greeley Chamber or 

Commerce _LGates) 
9:00am St. Mary's Catholic 

School Community 

Breakfast (St. Mary's 

Catholic School, 2351 22nd 

Avenue)CCO Scheduling 

7.00am Upstate Colorado 

Economic Development 

(Gates/Hall) 

8:00am Poudre River Forum 

(Drake Center, 802 West 

Drake Road, Fort Collins) - 

Council Master Calendar 
6:00pm Youth Commission 

Small 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

6:10pm Council Group Photos 

(Council's Chambers) - 

Council Master Calendar 

6:30pm City Council Meeting 

(1001 11th Avenue) 

7.00am Poudre River Trail 

(Hall) 

3.30pm IG Adv. 8oard(Smail) 

6,00pm MPO 

(Gates/Casseday) 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

10:00am City Chat with 

Councilmember Suniga 

(TBD) 

5:00pm City Council 

Worksession (100111th 

Avenue) 

Council Master Calendar 
	

1 
	

1/10/2019 2:07 PM 

204



Date Description Staff Contact
Monthly Financial Report Victoria Runkle 0.50

Executive Session ‐ Annual Review of the City Manager Sharon McCabe

Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Gateway Park II Preliminary/Final PUD Brad Mueller Consent

Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Adoption of a Housing Accessibility Strategy for the City of Greeley Brad Mueller Consent

Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Centerplace North 2nd DCMP Amendments Brad Mueller Consent

Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Amendments to the Greeley Municipal Code for Chapter 6.16 

regarding Liquor Licensing
Betsy Holder Consent

Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Amendments to the Greeley Municipal Code for Chapter 13.40 

regarding Alcohol Beverages in Public Places
Andy McRoberts Consent

Ordinance ‐ Final ‐ First Additional Appropriation  Victoria Runkle Regular

Northern Colorado Regional Economic Development Initiative (NoCO REDI) Ben Snow 0.50

Executive Session ‐ Annual Review of the City Attorney Sharon McCabe

Resolution ‐ 77th Avenue Right‐of‐Way Dedication Brad Mueller Consent

Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Gateway Estates 2nd Filing 1st Replat Brad Mueller Consent

Ordinance ‐ Final ‐ Gateway Park II Preliminary/Final PUD Brad Mueller Regular

Ordinance ‐ Final ‐ Adoption of a Housing Accessibility Strategy for the City of Greeley Brad Mueller Regular

Ordinance ‐ Final ‐ Centerplace North 2nd DCMP Amendments Brad Mueller Regular

Ordinance ‐ Final ‐ Amendments to the Greeley Municipal Code for Chapter 6.16 

regarding Liquor Licensing
Betsy Holder Regular

Ordinance ‐ Final ‐ Amendments to the Greeley Municipal Code for Chapter 13.40 

regarding Alcohol Beverages in Public Places
Andy McRoberts Regular

Board & Commission Appointments Betsy Holder Regular

Executive Session ‐ Annual Review of the Municiapl Court Judge Sharon McCabe

Ordinance ‐ Final ‐ Gateway Estates 2nd Filing 1st Replat Brad Mueller Regular

End of Year Financial Report Victoria Runkle 0.50

Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Historic Preservation Code Repeal/Replace Brad Mueller Consent

Board & Commission Appointments Betsy Holder Regular

Monthly Financial Report Victoria Runkle 0.50

Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Second Additional Appropriation  Victoria Runkle Consent

Ordinance ‐ Final ‐ Historic Preservation Code Repeal/Replace Brad Mueller Regular

Ordinance ‐ Final ‐ Second Additional Appropriation  Victoria Runkle Regular

Board & Commission Appointments Betsy Holder Regular

Monthly Financial Report Victoria Runkle 0.50

Board & Commission Appointments Betsy Holder Regular

Monthly Financial Report Victoria Runkle 0.50

May 14, 2019 

Worksession 

May 21, 2019 

Council Meeting

May 28, 2019 

Worksession 

June 4, 2019 

Council Meeting

June 11, 2019 

Worksession 

April 2, 2019 

Council Meeting

April 9, 2019 

Worksession 

April 16, 2019 

Council Meeting

April 23, 2019 

Worksession 

May 7, 2019 

Council Meeting

February 26, 2019 

Worksession 

March 5, 2019 

Council Meeting

March 12, 2019 

Worksession 

March 19, 2019 

Council Meeting

March 26, 2019 

Worksession

City Council Meeting Schedule
January 22, 2019 

Worksession 

February 5, 2019 

Council Meeting

February 12, 2019 

Worksession 

February 19, 2019 

Council Meeting

205



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 24 

 

Title 

Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required 

resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council 

at this meeting and at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City 

Clerk to sign all such resolutions, agreements and ordinances 

 

Council’s Recommended Action 

A motion to approve the above authorizations. 

                                 

206



Council Agenda Summary 
 

January 15, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 25 

 

Title 

Adjournment 

                                 

207


	Top
	1. Item No. 1 - Call to Order
	Call to Order.docx

	2. Item No. 2 - Pledge of Allegiance
	Pledge.docx

	3. Item No. 3 - Roll Call
	Roll Call.docx

	4. Item No. 4 - Recognitions and Proclamations
	Proclamations &amp;amp.docx
	1-15-19 Whats Great Fitzsimmons.pdf
	School Board Appreciation Month.doc
	Black History Month Proclamation 19.doc

	5. Item No. 5 - Citizen Input
	Citizen Input.docx

	6. Item No. 6 - Approval of the Agenda
	Approval of the Agenda.docx

	7. Item No. 7 - Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers
	Report from M &amp;amp; C.docx

	8. Item No. 8 - Petitions from Mayor and Councilmembers
	Petitions.docx
	Current Petition List.doc

	9. City Council Meeting Minutes
	Council Minutes.docx
	City Council.pdf

	11. DDA Resolution
	Municode.docx
	Resolution re DDA ED Contract 01 15 19.doc
	City-DDA Funding Agreement 1-4-19.pdf

	12. SBDC Resolution
	Municode.docx
	Resolution re SBDC.BizHub ED Agmt 2019.doc
	SBDC 2019 FINAL (002).doc

	13. GBA Dissolution Resolution
	Municode.docx
	2.0 2018.11.26 resolution dissolving GBA final.docx

	14. Reimbursement Resolution
	Municode.docx
	2.0 Reimbursement Resolution fire stations and engine.docx

	15. PD Resolution
	Municode.docx
	Municode Reso.docx
	Greeley Police Amendment WCRCC radios.pdf
	Greeley Fire WCRCC radios.pdf

	16. Concrete Change Order
	Municode.docx
	2018 Concrete Repair.pdf
	CO 1.pdf

	17. Additional Appropriation Ordinance
	Municode.docx
	Ordinance AA #1.docx
	#1 Appropriation 2019.pdf

	19. Pulled Consent Agenda Items
	Pulled Consent.docx

	20. Smoking Ban Ordinance
	Municode.docx
	Exhibit B Ordinance amending Ch. 9.44.DOCX
	CC FINAL Redline Chapter 9.pdf
	CC FINAL CLEAN Chapter 9.pdf

	21. 47th Avenue Eminent Domain Ordinance
	Municode.docx
	47th Centerplace Eminent Domain Ordinance.doc
	Ordinance Exhibit A 47th Centerplace Property Ownership Map.pdf
	Conceptual Plan Drawing 47th Centerplace Agenda Summary Attachment.pdf

	22. B&amp;C Appointments
	Agenda Summary (1).docx
	Ballot.pdf
	Transmittal Page.pdf

	23. Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events
	Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events.docx
	Council Master Calendar.pdf
	09 COUNCIL MEETING &amp; WORKSESSION SCHEDULE.pdf

	24. Consideration of..
	Consideration of...docx

	25. Adjournment
	Adjournment.docx

	Bottom

